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Chairman’s Statement

E

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors, | am pleased to present
the annual results of Eminence Enterprise Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2021.

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group’s loss attributable to owners of
the Company was approximately HK$180,793,000 as compared to the loss
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately HK$206,192,000
last year (2020). This year’s gross profit margin was approximately 95.3%
(2020: approximately 94.8%) and consolidated revenue slightly decreased by
approximately 0.5%. The basic and diluted loss per share for the year ended
31 March 2021 were HK19.41 cents and HK19.41 cents (2020: basic and
diluted loss per share were HK70.68 cents and HK70.68 cents) respectively.

This year, the Group successfully acquired through auction of Nos. 93 and
95 Catchick Street, Hong Kong and is the successful bidder at the auction of
Fung Wah Factorial Building at Castle Peak Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The Group will continue to focus on industrial and non-residential sectors and
sharpen its competitive edge and strengthen its income base to create and
realize value in a sustainable manner over the long term for its shareholders.

The Board and | would like to express our most sincere gratitude to our
management team, staff, shareholders and business partners for their
continued support.

Lai Law Kau
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 June 2021
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Eminence Enterprise
Limited (the “Company”) is pleased to announce the audited annual results
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 March 2021 together with comparative figures. These annual
results have been reviewed by the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit
Committee”).

FINAL RESULTS

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group’s loss attributable to
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) was approximately
HK$180,793,000 as compared to the loss attributable to the Shareholders of
approximately HK$206,192,000 last year (2020). The decrease in loss for the
year was mainly attributable to, among other things, (i) decrease in fair value
losses of investment properties and properties held for development for sale;
and (i) net gain on changes in fair value of financial assets through profit and
loss during the year. Such decrease in loss was partially offset by (i) net loss
on modification of terms of convertible notes during the year; (iv) increase in
impairment loss on loans receivable; and (v) gain on disposal of subsidiary
recognized in last year. This year’'s gross profit margin was approximately
95.3% (2020: approximately 94.8%), and consolidated revenue slightly
decreased by approximately 0.5%.

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group’s revenue amounted to
approximately HK$80,253,000 compared to approximately HK$80,682,000
last year, which represented a decrease of approximately HK$429,000 or
approximately 0.5% as compared to last year (2020).

The basic and diluted loss per share for the year ended 31 March 2021 were

HK19.41 cents and HK19.41 cents (2020: basic and diluted loss per share
were HK70.68 cents and HK70.68 cents) respectively.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for the year
ended 31 March 2021 (2020: nil).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENmRE DN

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year, the Group was principally engaged in property development,
property investment, comprising the ownership and rental of investment

properties, investment in securities and loan financing business which

property development and property investment are the core businesses of the

Group. The review of the individual business segments of the Group are set

out below.

@

Property Development

One of the core businesses of the Group is property development.
The Group has extensive experience on property redevelopment, in
particular, acquisition of old buildings for renewal and redevelopment.
Below are the major projects of the Group during the year.

Project Matheson Street

As at 31 March 2021, the Group, through its wholly-owned
subsidiary, owned the site at Nos. 11, 13 and 15 Matheson
Street, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong. The total area of the site
is approximately 2,857 square feet and is currently under
construction. After redevelopment, the site will provide a gross
floor area of approximately 42,778 square feet of commercial/
office mixed-use building. The construction of superstructure is
ongoing. The project is expected to complete in February 2022.

Project Wing Cheong

As at 31 March 2021, the Group, through its wholly-owned
subsidiary, owned Wing Cheong Factory Building (the “Wing
Cheong Factory Building”), a building located at No. 121 King
Lam Street, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The site area is approximately
5,483 square feet. The Group plans to redevelop the Wing
Cheong Factory Building into an industrial building with modermn
amenities, facilities and loading/unloading bays utilizing floor area
allowable under all relevant laws and regulations which maximize
the usage and potential of the lot to its fullest extent. Foundation
work is ongoing and the project is expected to complete in
December 2023.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Project Kennedy Town

As at 31 March 2021, the Group owned all the units of Nos.
1B and 1C and Nos. 1D and 1E of Davis Street, Kennedy
Town, Hong Kong respectively. The registered site area is
approximately 4,940 square feet.

On 22 July 2020, the Group, through its indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary, Nice Able Holdings Limited (“Nice Able”) (which was
acquired on 22 June 2020), completed the acquisition of all the
units at No. 93 Catchick Street, Hong Kong and the units on G/F.,
1/F., 3/F., 4/F., 5/F., and Roof at No. 95 Catchick Street, Hong
Kong. On 31 December 2020, Nice Able further completed the
acquisition of half share of 2/F., No. 95 Catchick Street, Hong
Kong (the “Remaining Unit”). On 1 March 2021, Nice Able and
its wholly-owned subsidiary, Success Mark Investment Limited
(“Success Mark”) were the successful bidders at the auction
of Nos. 93 and 95 Catchick Street, Hong Kong such that the
Group now owns 100% of Nos. 93 and 95 Catchick Street,
Hong Kong, which has a total site area of approximately 2,182
square feet.

For further information, please refer to “Material Acquisitions and
Disposal” section below.

Project Fung Wah

As at 31 March 2021, the Group, through its wholly-owned
subsidiaries, owns approximately 93.33% of Fung Wah
Factorial Building, Nos. 646, 648 and 648A Castle Peak Road,
Kowloon (collectively, the “Fung Wah Factorial Building”). On
6 September 2019, the Company filed an application under
the Land (Compulsory Sale for Redevelopment) Ordinance (the
“Ordinance”) (Chapter 545 of the Laws of Hong Kong) to the
Lands Tribunal for an order to auction all the undivided shares
of the Fung Wah Factorial Building (including those owned by
the Group) for the purposes of redevelopment of the site, with
an intention to bid in the auction and acquire all remaining units
of the Fung Wah Factorial Building. On 19 February 2021, the
Company successfully obtained the Shareholders’ approval at
the Company’s special general meeting to have a mandate for
possible very substantial disposal if the Group is not successful
in the auction. If the Group successfully acquires all the units
of the Fung Wah Factorial Building, the tentative plan is to
redevelop the site into a high-rise modern industrial building to
maximize its usage of the site.

For further information, please refer to “Material Acquisitions and
Disposal” section below.
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(i) Property Investment
The other core business of the Group is property investment.

During the year, the total rental and management fee income of
the Group recorded was approximately HK$61,309,000 (2020:
approximately HK$61,142,000), representing an increase of
approximately 0.3% over last year. The increase is primarily due to
the contributions from rental income from properties in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) and continued management of tenant

mix during the year under review.

Hong Kong

In Hong Kong, the Group owns residential units, commercial units
and industrial units with a total carrying amount of approximately
HK$775,500,000 as at 31 March 2021 (2020: approximately
HK$777,100,000). For the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group
recorded property rental income of approximately HK$36,160,000
(2020: approximately HK$39,945,000), representing a decrease of

approximately 9.5% as compared with 2020.

Singapore

In Singapore, the Group owns 3 residential units with a total carrying
amount of approximately HK$150,467,000 as at 31 March 2021
(2020: approximately HK$148,049,000). For the year ended 31 March
2021, the Group received property rental income of approximately
HK$2,696,000 (2020: approximately HK$2,739,000), representing a

decrease of approximately 1.6% over last year.

PRC

In Huzhou City, Zhejiang Province of the PRC, the Group has 15 blocks
of factory premises and 5 blocks of dormitories with a total carrying
amount of approximately HK$359,107,000 as at 31 March 2021
(2020: approximately HK$337,424,000). For the year ended 31 March
2021, the Group recorded property rental income and management
fee income of approximately HK$6,420,000 and approximately
HK$16,033,000 respectively (2020: approximately HK$5,010,000 and
approximately HK$13,448,000 respectively), representing an increase
of approximately 28.1% and an increase of approximately 19.2%

respectively as compared with 2020.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Securities Investment

The Group adopted a prudent attitude in its securities investment.
During the year, the Group had acquired listed securities and other
investments and disposed of some shares and other investments in the
investment portfolio. The Group recorded fair value gain in securities
and other investments of approximately HK$18,744,000 (2020: loss
of approximately HK$20,429,000). As a result, the Group reported
a segment profit of approximately HK$18,814,000 (2020: segment
loss of approximately HK$22,450,000) during the year under review.
The Group received dividend income from the listed securities of
approximately HK$1,569,000 during the year under review.

On 16 September 2019, the Company successfully obtained the
Shareholders’ approval at the special general meeting of the Company
to dispose of all or in part(s) of the 6,800,000 shares of China SCE
Group Holdings Limited (“CSCE”) (stock code: 1966) held by the
Group during the 12-month period from the date of approval. Details
of the disposal and the mandate can be found in the Company’s
announcement dated 12 July 2019 and circular dated 30 August 2019
respectively. During the period from 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021,
the Group did not dispose any CSCE shares and therefore, the Group
still owned a total of 6,313,000 CSCE shares as at 31 March 2021.

On 7 December 2020, the Group acquired on-market a total of
3,800,000 shares of China Construction Bank Corporation (stock code:
939) for an aggregate purchase price of approximately HK$22,534,000
(exclusive of transaction costs) (equivalent to an average price of
approximately HK$5.93 per acquired share).

On 22 January 2021, the Company acquired 394,275 American
Depository Shares (“ADS”) in the initial public offering of RLX
Technology Inc. (“RLX”, the shares of which are listed on the New
York Stock Exchange) at the price of US$12.00 per acquired RLX ADS
(equivalent to approximately HK$93.00) (exclusive of transaction costs)
at a total consideration of approximately US$4,731,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$36,668,000) (exclusive of transaction costs).
Subsequently, the Company disposed on-market a total of 210,929
RLX ADS at an average price of approximately US$21.9321 per
disposed RLX ADS (equivalent to approximately HK$169.97) (exclusive
of transaction costs) for an aggregate selling price of approximately
US$4,626,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$35,852,000) (exclusive
of transaction costs). A gain of approximately US$2,095,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$16,236,000) (exclusive of transaction costs) was
recognized.

(ii)
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On 8 March 2021, the Group acquired on-market a total of 680,000
shares of Chinese Energy Holdings Limited (stock code: 8009) for an
aggregate purchase price of HK$489,600 (exclusive of transaction
costs) (equivalent to an average price of HK$0.72 per acquired share).

As at 31 March 2021, the Group’s investment in equity securities
listed in Hong Kong and the United States of America amounted to
approximately HK$84,616,000 (2020: approximately HK$39,606,000).
This value represented an investment portfolio comprising 7 (2020:
5) equity securities which are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and the
New York Stock Exchange. The movement during the year were: (i)
the purchase of securities of approximately HK$65,861,000 during the
year under review; (i) the disposal of securities which had a fair value of
approximately HK$34,921,000; and (i) net increase in market value of
securities investments in the amount of approximately HK$14,070,000.

The Group held significant securities investments as at 31 March 2021
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2} RREA REAK/ tEEZ ATE 3A31AZ g
AAERROKE) kh#e At WEAA REBA  K&/(BR) AYE LR
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 %
% TEn TEn TEn T %
China SCE Group Holdings Ltd. (1966)
PEEEERER L1966 6,313,000 015 10,451 1,669 947 22,664 049
Best Food Holding Company Limited (1488)
BRIERERAT 1468 27,050,000 171 29,706 - 273 18,935 041
China Construction Bank Corporation (339)
PERRETRNERAT (939) 3,800,000 0.00 22615 - 2,199 24814 0.54
RLX Technalogy Inc.
American depositary shares (RLX)
RLX Technology Inc.
ZEFERHAN) 183346 0.01 17,0685 S (2,364) 14,702 0.32
Other listed shares™
Hih ik 868,150 - 4,162 - (292) 3,501 0.08
Grand tofal:
gt 83,999 1,569 763 84,616 1.84
- Other listed shares included 3 companies whose shares are listed on the Main * Hih FRD BIESMER R MER

Board of the Stock Exchange.
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The Group understands that the performance of the investments may
be affected by the degree of volatility in the Hong Kong stock market
and subject to other external factors that may affect their values.
Accordingly, the Group will continue to maintain a diversified portfolio
of investment of different segments of markets to minimise the possible
financial risks. Also, the Group will closely monitor the performance
progress of the investment portfolio from time to time.

Loan Financing

During the year, the Group recorded interest income from the loan
financing business amounting to approximately HK$18,944,000
(2020: approximately HK$19,540,000), representing a decrease of
approximately 3.1% comparing to last year. The segment loss of loan
financing business was approximately HK$35,799,000 for the year
ended 31 March 2021 (2020: profit of approximately HK$6,060,000).
The outstanding principal amount of loans receivable as at 31 March
2021 was approximately HK$130,179,000 (2020: approximately
HK$329,969,000). As at 31 March 2021, net impairment allowance
was recognized in profit or loss amounting to approximately
HK$45,685,000 in its loan financing business. The Group will continue
to develop this segment in order to earn higher interest income.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

(iv)

EEENWRE DN

AEERAD  REXRBIXFBHD
EHREXE  UYXIATEEEE
RN ERER S - Bt - NEE
REEEFTRAM SN Z TR ER
& NUEEREKEBENSEEAR - U1t
Sh - AEBETB T TIERKEM
BRRBERAMR -

EXmE

REEN  AREHBREERGRE
¥ 2 F B WAL 518,944,00075 T
(20204F : #J19,540,000/87T) © &
i*athﬁd\iﬁm% REE202143
AS1BILFE  EXMEERK 2 ED
Eﬁ%amz%%,?gg,oooﬁém(2020¢ :
i 7 #96,060,00074 7T) © 7A20214F3
A31H  EWERZAEELRESS
%8 497/5130,179,0005% 7T (20204 : 49
329,969,000/ 7T) ° 72202143 A 31
A BEXREEBRIBRER
BB R 4 545,685,000/ 7T © AELE
5 B T R o SR UA R EE = A1 B R
)\ °

B %5 ol B8

Year ended 31 March

BZ3AALEE

2021 2020 Change

20216 20206 2%

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR FHT THET

Revenue EEL 80,253 80,682 (429)

Gross profit 7 76,515 76,455 60

Gross profit margin EfE 95.3% 94.8% 0.5%

Administrative expenses THAX (44,694) (52,472) 7,778

Finance costs BEMA (28,683) (31,578) 2,895

Loss before taxation REAIEE (190,743) (209,657) 18,914

Taxation I 9,950 3,465 6,485
Loss for the year attributable NG

to shareholders of the Company rEEHE (180,793) (206,192) 25,399

Net profit margin JEAE N/ATE A N/ATE A N/ATE A

Basic loss per share SREFRERE HK(19.41) cents HK(70.68) cents HK51.27 cents

(19.41)7%4L (70.68)7 11l 51.27754

Diluted loss per share SR#ESE HK(19.41) cents HK(70.68) cents HK51.27 cents

(19.41)7%4L (70.68)7 11l 51.27754
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Revenue

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group’s revenue decreased by
approximately 0.5% to approximately HK$80,253,000 as compared with last
year of approximately HK$80,682,000 which was mainly due to decrease in
interest income from loan financing.

Gross Profit/Margin

Gross profit of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2021 was
approximately HK$76,515,000, representing an increase of approximately
0.1% or approximately HK$60,000 as compared to approximately
HK$76,455,000 in 2020. Gross profit margin for the year reached
approximately 95.3% (2020: approximately 94.8%), representing an increase
of approximately 0.5% over last financial year.

Loss before Taxation

Loss before taxation of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2021 was
approximately HK$190,743,000, as compared with last year loss before
taxation of approximately HK$209,657,000.

Administrative expenses of the Group decreased from approximately
HK$52,472,000 to approximately HK$44,694,000, a decrease of
approximately 14.8% as compared with last year.

During the year under review, there was net gain on changes in fair value of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss amounting to approximately
HK$18,744,000 (2020: loss of approximately HK$20,429,000).

Finance costs of the Group for the year was approximately HK$28,683,000,
representing a decrease of approximately HK$2,895,000 or approximately
9.2% from approximately HK$31,578,000 in 2020, of which approximately
HK$18,393,000 (2020: approximately HK$16,741,000) was the effective
interest expense on convertible notes.

Loss Attributable to the Shareholders and Loss per Share

Loss attributable to the Shareholders for the year ended 31 March 2021
was approximately HK$180,793,000 as compared to last year loss of
approximately HK$206,192,000.

For this year, the taxation credit was approximately HK$9,950,000 whilst last
year the taxation credit was approximately HK$3,465,000.

Basic and diluted loss per share for the year ended 31 March 2021 were
approximately HK19.41 cents and HK19.41 cents respectively as compared
to basic and diluted loss per share of approximately HK70.68 cents and
HK70.68 cents respectively in 2020.

L

HZE2021F3A31HILLFE  AEEL X
X F 480,682,000 70 L H0.5% E 4
80,253,000 7T * W EBERHRENRBME
FEBWARDFTER -

EFERE
AREFBREE2021F3A3IBALEFEZ
EHMHAE76,515,0008 7T © H20206F 4
76,455,000/ L3 M 490.1% 3% 4960,0007%
TC o AFE 2 EFELA95.3% (20205 : 4
94.8%) + B AR IR EIEAN£I0.5% ©

MRBL AT 18
NEBMREE2021F3A3IALELFE 2B
AIES 1B 4 £190,743,0008 7T © MEFBRE AT
E5184945209,657,0007 7T ©

NEB 2 TH R X B 452,472,000 7T
F#144,694,0008 7T + BEF R #114.8% o

REBEFERN  BRAFEFABSEZEHE
EzRFES)NE FELAE18,744,000%8
JL(20204F : [E51E#4920,429,000 7T) °

REE 2 NEE A KAL) 728,683,000/
7T+ M 20204F #931,578,0007 TT R, 4 49
2,895,000/ TT 3K £99.2% + £ /1 4918,393,000
77T (20204 : #916,741,00058 7T) /& AT #2 %
ERZERMBIE -

BREGCEERSRER
REREE2021F3A31B L FEREIGERE
#9/4180,793,0007 7T + i1 2 F Bl & & F 4
206,192,000 7T °

NEER BT AL 59,950,0008 7 © MEF
FRIEEt A RI49/53,465,000 7T ©

HZE2021F3A31BLLFE  SREAKRE
SEEIBD B A19.418 11 2 19.417810L - ™
2020F TR E A K B E E 18 5 5140 A£70.687%5
il & 70.68% 1l
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 March 2021, total assets of the Group amounted to approximately
HK$4,613,337,000 (2020: approximately HK$4,602,993,000). In terms of
financial resources as at 31 March 2021, the Group’s total bank balances
and cash was approximately HK$112,260,000 (2020: approximately
HK$357,767,000).

As at 31 March 2021, the Group has total bank borrowings of approximately
HK$1,514,933,000 (2020: approximately HK$1,431,740,000). The Group’s
gearing ratio, which is calculated as a ratio of total bank borrowings to
Shareholders’ equity, was approximately 0.5 (2020: approximately 0.5). As
at 31 March 2021, the Group’s current ratio was approximately 5.5 (2020:
approximately 5.9).

The Group financed its operations primarily with recurring cash flow generated
from its operations, proceeds raised from the capital market and bank
financing.

Share Offer

On 11 February 2021, the Company and Easyknit International Holdings
Limited (“Easyknit”) (stock code: 1218) jointly announced that Ace Winner
Investment Limited (the “Offeror”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Easyknit,
intended to make a pre-conditional voluntary conditional cash offer to acquire
all the issued shares (the “Share(s)”) of the Company (other than those
already owned or agreed to be acquired by the Offeror and parties acting
in concert with it) at the share offer price of HK$0.50 per Share (the “Share
Offer”). On 19 March 2021, the pre-condition of the Share Offer (that is, the
requisite approval being obtained by Easyknit from the Easyknit shareholders
in relation to the Share Offer as required under the Listing Rules) has been
fulfilled and the composite offer and response document (the “Composite
Document”) in connection with the Share Offer in accordance with the Hong
Kong Code on Takeovers and Mergers was despatched on 26 March 2021
and the Share Offer opened on the same day.

Further details of the Share Offer are set out in the Composite Document
jointly issued by the Offeror and the Company dated 26 March 2021 and the
joint announcements issued by the Offeror, Easyknit and the Company dated
4 March 2021, 19 March 2021 and 25 March 2021 respectively.

For further information, please refer to the section headed “EVENTS AFTER
THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD” in the Directors’ Report.

EEENWRE DN

REBESRMBEER

M2021463A31H  *EEZEAEHBOR
4,613,337,000/% 7T (20204F : 474,602,993,000
BT o AR E - M202143A31H » K
SEZRITHEBR IR BTEL A112,260,000
78 7T (20204F + #9357,767,0008 7T) °

MH2021F3A31H  AEBEZRTIEER
4 51,5614,933,000/8 7T (20204 : 4
1,431,740,000%7T) - XEB s ERAEL X
(BIRITIEBERBEEREEEZADLIOE
0.5(2020%F : #90.5) ° 202143 H31H » &
EBRB R4 A5.5(2020% : £)5.9) °

AEEZEEESTERBELEELNE
RAGR CEAMGEENES LRTR
% o

BHEL

R2021F2A11H ARG EKZERER
BRAR(TKED BRHDARSE - 1218) KR 3
i BREEERAFR(ENA]  kEZ—
2B M B A 7)) B E L A5 R ikt 2 B FE
EBRHERSZHUER050BITZRHELN
BUEARRZIEHTRD (R (BRE
WARE—HRITHATEHEEXCRERE
INTRBELY]) - R2021F3H198 » R
et (BIkERBCEMRADRECE A A
BRDBH 7 KERELBRE)BEK - MR
BCRRAIWBRAEHTRADBBERNDEH 27
AEHREEX S (HEXMH])ER2021F3
H268 %% - MRHELHDRRB RS

BNDBHZE—SFBHIRBEHARRE
NEBAE M A A2021F3A26R 2454
XHREBHAN - KERRARBEEMS B
DB B2021F3H48 ~ 2021F3H198 &
202143250 2B A A

HAENFESHEZRENMEHNRRZ
EIR]—HF -
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Outstanding Convertible Notes
Below are the particulars of the outstanding convertible notes of the Company
as at 31 March 2021:

(1) 2017 Convertible Note 1 (the “2017 CN1”)

Holder of the 2017 CN1
2017 A R EB 1A A

Principal amount

rEEH

Outstanding principal amount

REERESEH

Interest

ME

Issue date

BT

Maturity date
A

Conversion price

During the year, no exercise of the conversion rights under the 2017
CN1 was made and the outstanding principal amount as at the date of
this annual report is HK$16,000,000.

RAEBZTRRER
U TABEAQBR2021F3A31A KRR 2T
BRRER B -

(1) 2017F AT BRBREE1(2017FTRERE
#1))

Goodco Development Limited
ERERAGRLQA

HK$16,000,000
16,000,000/% 7T

HK$16,000,000
16,000,000/% 7T

4% per annum
GEAE

11 May 2017
201758118

28 August 2024
202448 A28H

HK$0.25 (subject to adjustment)
0.25% 7L (Al T A %)

REER 201 7F 0 BIREE1 2 Hif
HRBRITE AR AFRB X
B8 N4 4 % /516,000,00078 7T °
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2017 Convertible Note 2 (the “2017 CN2”)

Holder of the 2017 CN2
2017 AR EHR2FF A A

Principal amount

PING ]

Outstanding principal amount

REERSEH

Interest

ME

Issue date
F1TEH

Maturity date
IR

Conversion price
HI(E

During the year, no exercise of the conversion rights under the 2017
CN2 was made and the outstanding principal amount as at the date of

this annual report is HK$11,280,000.

2019 Convertible Note (the “2019 CN”)

Holder of the 2019 CN

20195 AR RN A A

Principal amount

AL TR

Outstanding principal amount
REBREEH

Interest

MR

Issue date
F1TEH

Maturity date
F|E#R

Conversion price

()

(©)

EEENWRE DN

2017F AR RiE2([2017F AR E
#2])

Goodco Development Limited
EEEREGRLQA

HK$28,200,000
28,200,000/ 7T

HK$11,280,000
11,280,000/ 7T

4% per annum
GFE4E

26 September 2017
201749 AH26H

28 August 2024
202448 H28H

HK$0.25 (subject to adjustment)
0.25% 7T (Al T 38 %)

REERA - 2017 AR ER2 2 ik
BLBRITE  HILRAFHRBHR
BEARESF/R11,280,000/ 7T °

2019 AR EH ([2019F TR E
#1)

Goodco Development Limited
ERERBGRAF

HK$70,000,000
70,000,000/ 7T

HK$70,000,000
70,000,000/ 7T

4% per annum
HF4E

28 August 2019
201948 H28H

28 August 2024
202458 H28H

HK$0.25 (subject to adjustment)
0.25/8 7T (A] T A %)
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During the year, no exercise of the conversion rights under the 2019
CN was made and the outstanding principal amount as at the date of
this annual report is HK$70,000,000.

On 18 September 2020, the Company and Goodco Development Limited
(“Goodco”) entered into three deeds of amendment in respect of the
proposed alteration, pursuant to which both parties agreed to (a) revise the
conversion price of the 2017CN1, 2017CN2 and 2019CN (collectively, the
“Goodco CNs”) to HK$0.25 per conversion share (subject to adjustment);
(b) extend the maturity date of the Goodco CNs to 28 August 2024; and
(c) increase the interest payable to 4% per annum (the “Alteration”). The
Alteration was approved by the independent Shareholders on 19 November
2020 and completion took place on 25 November 2020.

For further information, please refer to the Company’s announcements dated
21 September 2020, 19 November 2020 and 25 November 2020 and circular
dated 30 October 2020 respectively.

Capital Structure
As at 31 March 2021, the Company’s total number of issued ordinary Shares
was 931,458,010 Shares (31 March 2020: 931,458,010 Shares).

Charges of Assets

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had bank loans amounting to approximately
HK$1,514,933,000 (2020: approximately HK$1,431,740,000) which were
secured by the Group’s properties with an aggregate net book value of
approximately HK$925,967,000 (investment properties) and approximately
HK$2,754,027,000 (properties held for development for sale) respectively
(2020: approximately HK$925,149,000 and HK$2,441,200,000).

REFER - 2019F AR ZE 2 ik
BSBWTE IR AFHRBE R
B8 "% 4% /570,000,000 7T °

R2020F9A18H * ARRILREZHESR
EUNGII(RES SDE-a=14-1 kETETi: MEFT R
% BREEFRAE  BEREZEER (2152017
FAHMREE 2017¢T¢§Hxﬂ§2&2019
FARRER(GRAERTRRER]Z
HMEAEATREIRRH0.25% (Al T
) ORBERTLEREENIHEERE
2024F8A28H : R BEMNFERSEE
F4E([EFT)) - 5T ER2020F 11 A190 &
BRI 2 #E - WH2020F11 A25H %
Eyl °

HHERBE2HAAF BB R A2020F9
HA21H » 2020911 A1982020411 A25H
2 N K% 2020E10 5308 Z @K °

R 418

M20216F3A31H - ARBIBETERRE
#5931,458,0100%f% 15 (2020F3 A31H
931,458,0100% A% 1%

BEERH

MW2021F3A31H AKEBEZRITEE
#4/41,514,933,000/8 7L (20204 : &
1,431,740,000/70) AR SE B 2 M¥EER
- BRAERFESD BI4)5925,967,000/8 7T
(EEME) k#2,754,027,000/%8 7T (e
EERYE) (20207 : £9925,149,000/8 7T &
2,441,200,0008 7T) °
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Material Acquisitions and Disposal

il

Project Kennedy Town

On 6 April 2020, Success Edge Limited (“Success Edge”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, as buyer, and an independent
third party, as seller, entered into an agreement for sale and purchase,
pursuant to which, among other things, the buyer conditionally
agreed to buy and take up, and the seller conditionally agreed to
sell and assign, the entire issued share capital of Nice Able and its
shareholder’s loan at a consideration of approximately HK$89,116,000
subject to the terms and conditions of the agreement for sale and
purchase. Nice Able was committed to (i) acquire the entire issued
share capital of Success Mark (the registered and beneficial owner of
the unit on G/F., No. 93 Catchick Street, Hong Kong) and a loan to it;
and (i) acquire the units on 1/F., 2/F., 3/F., 4/F., 5/F., and Roof, No. 93
Catchick Street, Hong Kong and the units on G/F., 1/F., 3/F., 4/F., 5/F.,
and Roof, No. 95 Catchick Street, Hong Kong from the respective
property vendors. The agreement for sale and purchase was approved
by the Shareholders at the special general meeting of the Company
on 8 June 2020. Completion of the agreement for sale and purchase
took place on 22 June 2020, and Nice Able became an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company. On 31 December 2020, Nice Able
further completed the acquisition of half share of the Remaining Unit.
On 1 March 2021, Nice Able and Success Mark were the successful
bidders at the auction of Nos. 93 and 95 Catchick Street, Hong Kong.

Details of the transaction can be found in the Company’s
announcements dated 6 April 2020, 29 April 2020, 15 May 2020, 30
October 2020 and 1 March 2021 respectively and circulars dated 21
May 2020 and 4 December 2020 respectively.

On 5 November 2020 (as supplemented by a supplemental agreement
dated 9 November 2020), the Company and Easyknit entered into
a sale and purchase agreement, pursuant to which, among other
things, Easyknit conditionally agreed to purchase, and the Company
conditionally agreed to sell, the entire issued shares of Above Ace
Limited (“Above Ace”) and Success Edge, both being wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company, and the Company agreed to procure
the assignment to Easyknit of each of the shareholders’ loans owing
by Above Ace and Success Edge to the Company at completion,
at an aggregate consideration of HK$1,100,000,000 (subject to
adjustments). Completion of the sale and purchase agreement is
subject to the independent Shareholders’ approval and is conditional
on the Company’s successful bid for Nos. 93 and 95 Catchick Street,
Hong Kong in the public auction pursuant to the Ordinance.

Further information can be found in the joint announcements of the
Company and Easyknit dated 9 November 2020, 4 January 2021, 22
January 2021, 19 February 2021 and 31 March 2021 respectively.

EEENWRE DN

BEABBREE

78

R iIE H

M2020%F4HA6H * Success Edge
Limited([Success Edge)) (A2 @] 2 —
ME2EMBARMWERE ) B—RE L
FE-HUWEARBR)IVEERZ ' Bit
(EhBiE)  EFERHRAEREER
1p 75 B M6 3R B R R R (B £989,116,000
BTRERZEMBEFBKERER
BEEEHRANBRRKEZRRELS
K #E:E)Nice AbleZ £ 882 31T I D
HAZTRE X o Nice Abler s () BE B
(EABBETRHSHI THEMN 2T
MAEEESA) 22 BB BITRAR
HEZ RESVEEHWEEES
FEAO35R14E « 21 - 31 - 412 5ER
KEMBEMNREBEEEHSHEMT ~ 1
318 412 SERKEMEN B
EZER2020F6 A8HZTHAR
AIRREFRIAE LERRILE - BE
W R2020F6 228 A+ MNice
AbleBE X AKX AR —HMEE2EN
BAF] - R2020F12H31H ' Nice
Ableitt — PR M IE SR TN B 2 — - %
¥ - 72202193 H18 * Nice Able I8
MR BB L EHISRISTH ZAE R K
g o

AR S 2HE  B2HARR B
R A2020%F4 A6H ~ 202094 A29H -
2020558150 ~ 2020510 A30H &
202163 A18 2 AfF1 B 85 Bl A2020
F5H21 8B K2020F 12 B4H 2B ©

R2020F11 A58 (K HE A2020%F
11AIRZHAMFEMBR) - AA7A
HOKEFIVEEWS Bt (Ede
B) XKEBKRHERBEWE  mAA
RAIA &R E & Above Ace Limited
(TAbove Acel) & Success Edge(y
BRAARZE2ENBRAR)Z2EE
BTG - A A F R E R E R 5K
Above Ace}: Success Edge& B R AL
AIZBEREREREGKE  BREAE
1,100,000,0008 L (Al FHAE) - BEF
HEASB YRR MKEREER
T ARARBIZBZIGHESHE
HREI3RISHA AFHMER KN H
1E RGN -

HHERBL2HARR ERKER B H
SR A2020%F11 H98 - 20214184
H 2021918228 * 20214F2H19H
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2. Project Fung Wah

On 17 November 2020, Skill Master Investments Limited (“Skill
Master”) (as purchaser), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a conditional agreement for sale and purchase (the
“SPA”) with an independent third party as vendor, pursuant to which,
among other things, Skill Master conditionally agreed to acquire and
take up, and the vendor conditionally agreed to sell and assign, the
entire issued share capital of Upway International Group Limited
(“Upway International”) and the shareholder’s loan owing by Upway
International to the vendor on the completion date at a consideration
of HK$45,000,000 subject to the terms and conditions of the SPA. On
25 November 2020, completion took place and Upway International
became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and the Group
now owns 29 units, representing approximately 93.33% of the
undivided shares of Fung Wah Factorial Building, Nos. 646, 648 and
648A Castle Peak Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

Further information can be found in the Company’s announcement
dated 17 November 2020.

For further information, please refer to the section headed “EVENTS AFTER
THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD” in the Directors’ Report.

Exposure on Foreign Exchange Fluctuations

Most of the Group’s revenues and payments are in United States dollars,
Hong Kong dollars, Singapore dollars and Renminbi. During the year, the
Group did not have significant exposure to the fluctuation in exchange rates
and thus, no financial instrument for hedging purposes was employed. The
Group considered the risk of exposure to the currency fluctuation to be
minimal.

Contingent Liabilities
The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at 31 March
2021 (2020: nil).

Capital Expenditure and Capital Commitments

Capital Expenditure

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group invested approximately
HK$295,000 (2020: approximately HK$4,664,000) in the purchase of
property, plant and equipment, and spent approximately HK$4,87.3,000 (2020:
approximately HK$3,518,000) on addition of investment properties. These
capital expenditures were financed from internal resources, bank facilities and
funds from previous fund raising activities of the Company.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had capital commitments in respect
of capital expenditure contracted for but not provided of approximately
HK$26,236,000 (2020: approximately HK$33,891,000).

2. Z#EH

M2020%E11 4178 » Skill Master
Investments Limited([ Skill Master]) ({£
BER)(KRRRz—B2ENMBAR)
BB IE=H(ERERILEK
HEERZ(EERRD) B (EHP e
&) + Skill MasterE KR ERBEEE
1555 B9 163K % 40 BIJ 3% X {8 45,000,000/
T R EE(ME S A EGRERE
BEBENGERRAARRELE R
ER)ELBEREEERAR(ELER
B2 2EEHITRN RELBRBRE
MARERZIRRER - K20204F 11
R25B%EMK%E  ELEEBEXAELA
A—HE2EWNBRAR  MASERHE
BRoEBA (AN BEENESILE
646 648K 64BATREET X KETH
Z15 H(#993.33% °

HAEREL2BARRR BB AE2020
FAI7TRZAH -

HMENFEZHEZSRENIRESRMRZ
EIR]—FF

SN R B 2 [ B
AREEZEFEBEHIASET - BT - 0
BRARARBRE -NFER  AEELE
BHAEZHMARERELR - F b3 #E
REA ST BT AR - AEERRA
R HMERE 2 RBRIRNK o

RARBE
MR2021F3A31H  AEBEWEFEMEKNK
SREE (20204 : ) -

BERBXREREE

&N

HZE2021F3A31HILFE AEEEED
295,000/ 7T (2020%F : 474,664,000/ 7T) &
BEWME - BB KEME - WEFAL4,873,000%
JC(2020%F : 493,518,000/ L) MG B E Y
¥ - ZZEARAIHESHRENIBER -
BITRMEREFARNB ZEEEE ©

BARE

MR2021F3A31H AEBEEBEERH
BABEBZEAEAINEREREN A
26,236,000/ 7T (20204F : #733,891,000/%
TT) °
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Update on Use of Proceeds in relation to the Rights Issue

On 6 November 2019, the Company announced a proposed rights issue
on the basis of four (4) rights share for every one (1) consolidated share at
a subscription price of HK$0.483 per rights share to raise net proceeds of
approximately HK$353.9 million (the “Rights Issue”). Details of the Rights
Issue were set out in the Company’s announcement dated 6 November 2019,
circular dated 17 December 2019 and prospectus dated 16 January 2020 (the
“Prospectus”) respectively. The Rights Issue was completed on 11 February
2020, and the number of issued Shares was increased to 931,458,010
Shares.

References are made to (i) the Prospectus in relation to the Rights Issue and
announcement dated 10 February 2020 in relation to the results of the Rights
Issue; (i) the annual report of the Company for the year ended 31 March
2020; (iii) the interim report of the Company for the six months ended 30
September 2020; and (iv) the supplemental announcement of the Company
dated 8 July 2021. The details of an update on the use of proceeds during
the year ended 31 March 2021 and expected timeline of utilisation as of 31
March 2021 are set out in the following table:

EEENWRE DN

FREHBRAESRERRZEHBER
R2019F 11 A6H  ARRIEMUEHE—
(1R% A B %17 AT JE 2% 0 (4) AR (L PR 1 2 EEE
RREESRERIRGKD0.4838 LETES
#A% - AL RIS 5IAF EE41353,900,000
B (TR - HEFBORIHER AR R H
B A2019F 11 A6R 2 A ~ HEA2019
F12R17A 2B K& A H /20201 B16H
ZHBRER(HBRER] o £ 2 R 2020F
2RAI1EHRERK  MEBITRMEKEDEMNE
931,458,0100% A% 15 -

IR () EEERRKR 2 HRKRER KB HA2020
FoA10BEHBER 2 A ¢ (VA2 FE
ZE2020F3A31BILFEEZFR ¢ (i)AR A
HZE2020F9A30H LA A 2 P HAR &R
% R(WARRIBEIA2021F7A8A 2 /7
N o R2021F3A31BILFEEARZFAER
A% 2 & B RR2021F3A318 2 #
TEABRZBHBRRFTIIATE

Proposed use of Actual use of Unutilised
net proceeds as net proceeds proceeds Expected
disclosed in the as of as of timeline of
Project/Property Purpose Prospectus 31 March 2021 31 March 2021 utilization
BERMERERZ  N202153A31A 20215
FrEsERE FEREREL 3A%1HZ RERBZ
BE/NE B RERR ERAR RBAMERE HHERR
HK$'million HKS'million HKS million
BEAT BEAT BEAT
(approximately) (approximately) (approximately)
(47) (547 (BE4Y)
Matheson Street Project Construction cost for redevelopment 79.0 (33.1) 459 February 2022
MbEEER BREEKA 20222
Huzhou Properties Construction cost for properties 25.0 (18.1) 6.9 July 2022
REIES MERERA 2022F 7R
Wing Cheong Factory Building Preliminary cost (including planning, 22.1 (15.4) 6.7 June 2021
design and demolition cost)
XEIEAE AIERABERS R RERKE) 2021664
Wing Cheong Factory Building Additional acquisition cost for 12.0 (12.0) - -
remaining units
XBI%$KE BT Ef 2 BIMER A
Kennedy Town Properties Construction cost for redevelopment 15.8 (14.2) 1.6 December 2021
BRI ME ERRBENA 2021F12R
Fung Wah Factorial Building Acquisition cost for remaining units 62.0 (56.4) 5.6 September 2021
BETEAE BT B 2 R A 2021694
Potential acquisition of new 80.0 (80.0) - -
properties and other investments
EERBEMER AR
Bank loan repayment 49 (4.9 - -
BERTER
General working capital 53.1 (63.1) - -
—ReELe
353.9 (287.2) 66.7
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EEENmRE DN

As at 31 March 2021, the Company did not change the purpose and use
of the proceeds as disclosed in the Prospectus and the unutilised proceeds
from the Rights Issue will be applied in accordance with the intended uses as
disclosed.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had 62 employees (2020: 55). Staff costs
(including Directors’ emoluments) amounted to approximately HK$24,187,000
for the year under review (2020: approximately HK$23,336,000). The Group
remunerates its employees based on their performance, experience and
prevailing industry practice. The Group has set out the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme for Hong Kong’s employees and has made contributions to the
state-sponsored pension scheme operated by the PRC government for the
PRC employees. The Group has a share option scheme to motivate valued
employees.

PROSPECTS

The Group will continue focusing its efforts on the development of its existing
principal businesses: property development, property investment, securities
investment and loan financing business while exploring other potential projects
with a view to providing steady and favourable returns for the Shareholders
and bring increased growth to the Group.

Despite the uncertainties on global economic outlook caused by the softening
global economic growth and the outbreak of coronavirus disease (COVID-19),
the Group is prudently optimistic about the prospects of the property and
securities markets in Hong Kong and believes these markets will continue to
grow over the longer term.

In line with its prudent investment strategy and policy, the Company will
continue to identify appropriate investment and divestment opportunities that
fit the objective and investment criteria of the Company, and will continue to
seek opportunities to replenish its property portfolio as an ongoing business
exercise. The Board would exercise utmost caution, so as to bring long term
value on the operating and financial results to the Company in the foreseeable
future.

R2021F3A31H  ARAWEZEHKTERN
HEERABHREZENEAR  #HE2
REAMBFEBREMER BT ARE
)EH o

3=

#2021F3A31H © A%LEHE62% E T (2020
F:55%)  REIBEFEAN  BIRA(RE
EEBE)4/524,187,000/8 7T (20204 « 4
23,336,000/ 7T) - AEEIRIEEE 2RI
KHRERITERNEFMETBREZFTH - &
EEEABERERERIBIMAEETE
WEFHEERNTRBFELZEREHR
REFTEEL MR - NEBRA —HERE
T8l UEBEFET -

RE
AEBBEESTRERARAIZEY Y
EBRE MERE BEFrRERERBEE
%o UERFEHEMEERR  HEAKRRE
HREMAFA @R - WAKREETREK
REOERK -

BEHRNRREBEERRER2019BRAFS
B(COVID-19) 8 3 A AR IR E N ARRA » 1B
FEBUHBENERBLF TS ZASHRIE
LENEE  YTRBZEMSRESHEL
£ o

RBEHFENRERERBE - ARAHE
BVEAENREREAERS  UFAEAA
AZBRREERE  UHEESHESH
FEER - BARBXEBR LD ZYWEREA
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ARRMEE R BEETRRIENRE -
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Biographical Details of Directors

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
MR. LAI LAW KAU
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Lai Law Kau, aged 60, is an executive director (the “Director”), the
chairman, chief executive officer, the chairman of the executive committee (the
“Executive Committee”) of the Company, and a member of the remuneration
committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination committee
(the “Nomination Committee”) of the Company. Mr. Lai has been involved
in the textiles industry over 20 years and has extensive experience in design,
manufacturing, marketing and distribution of apparel. He is a brother-in-law of
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, the deputy chairman and an executive Director; and the vice
president and an executive director of Easyknit International Holdings Limited
(stock code: 1218) (“Easyknit”). Mr. Lai is also an uncle of Ms. Koon Ho Yan
Candy, the president and chief executive officer, and an executive director
of Easyknit. In August 2020, he was appointed as an executive Director and
a member of the Executive Committee, the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee. In October 2020, Mr. Lai was re-designated
from an executive Director and a member of the Executive Committee to
the chairman, chief executive officer, and the chairman of the Executive
Committee.

MS. LUI YUK CHU
Deputy Chairman

Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, aged 63, is an executive Director and deputy chairman
of the Company and a member of the Executive Committee. She is also
an executive director and vice president, and a member of the executive
committee of Easyknit. Ms. Lui has been involved in the textiles industry
for over 30 years and has extensive experience in design, manufacturing,
marketing and distribution of apparel. She serves as director of various
subsidiaries of the Company and Easyknit. Ms. Lui was appointed to the
board of the Company (the “Board”) as an executive Director in 2003 and
was appointed as deputy chairman in 2006. She is a sister-in-law of Mr. Lai
Law Kau, the chairman, chief executive officer, and an executive Director of
the Company.

MR. KWONG JIMMY CHEUNG TIM

Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim, aged 78, is an executive Director, authorised
representative of the Company and a member of the Executive Committee.
Mr. Kwong graduated from The University of Hong Kong in 1965 and was
admitted as Barrister-at-Law in the United Kingdom in 1970 and in Hong
Kong in 1973 respectively. He has over 30 years of experience in the legal
field. Mr. Kwong was appointed to the Board as an independent non-
executive Director in 2003, and was subsequently re-designated as an
executive Director in 2007. In 2007, he was appointed as chairman and
chief executive officer of the Company. Mr. Kwong also serves as director of
various subsidiaries of the Company. In October 2020, he was re-designated
from the chairman, chief executive officer and the chairman of the Executive
Committee of the Company to an executive Director and a member of
the Executive Committee; and resigned as a member of the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee.

ESCBE
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
MR. KAN KA HON

Mr. Kan Ka Hon, aged 70, is an independent non-executive Director since
2003. Mr. Kan is also a member and chairman of the audit committee of
the Company (the “Audit Committee”), a member of the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee. He holds a Bachelor’s Degree
in Science from The University of Hong Kong and is a fellow member of The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of The Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Kan has over 30 years of
experience in accounting and finance. He resigned as an independent non-
executive director of Victory City International Holdings Limited (stock code:
539) with effect from 1 April 2021.

MR. LAU SIN MING

Mr. Lau Sin Ming, aged 59, is an independent non-executive Director
since 2004. Mr. Lau is also a member and chairman of the Remuneration
Committee, a member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination
Committee. He is a fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and a member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Lau has over 30 years of experience in accounting and
auditing and is now working as a tax consultant.

MR. WU KOON YIN WELLY

Mr. Wu Koon Yin Welly, aged 36, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 1 January 2017. Mr. Wu is also a member and chairman
of the Nomination Committee, a member of the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee. He holds a Master in Finance degree from the
University of Essex and a Bachelor of Commerce degree in the University of
Sydney, Australia. Mr. Wu is the Vice President of Sales in FXCM, which is a
leading provider of online foreign exchange (FX) trading, CFD trading, spread
betting and related services. He has over 11 years of extensive experience in
the brokerage industry.
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The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of the Company is
dedicated to maintaining a good standard of corporate governance within a
sensible and practical framework and key practices. The Board firmly believes
that the principles of transparency, accountability and independence are
essential for upholding the interests of the stakeholders and maximizing the
shareholders’ value.

The Board is committed to excellence in corporate governance. It is
responsible for developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance as well as complying with statutory and
regulatory requirements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the principles
and the code provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. During the year, the Company
has fully complied with the code provisions of the CG Code, except for the
deviations disclosed herein.

Code Provision A.2.1

The roles of chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual.

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code provides that the roles of chairman (the
“Chairman”) and chief executive of the Company (the “Chief Executive”)
should be separate and should not be performed by the same individual.
During the year, Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim served as the Chairman as
well as the Chief Executive until 30 September 2020; and Mr. Lai Law Kau
serves as the Chairman as well as the Chief Executive since 1 October 2020.
This dual leadership role has been adopted by the Company for a number of
years. Such deviation is deemed appropriate as it is considered to be more
efficient to have one single person to be the Chairman as well as to discharge
the executive functions of the Chief Executive thereby enabling more effective
planning and better execution of long term strategies. The Board believes that
the balance of power and authority is adequately ensured by the operations
and governance of the Board which comprises experienced and high calibre
individuals, with half of them being independent non-executive Directors.
The Company will review the current structure when and as it becomes
appropriate.
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Code Provision C.2.5
The issuer should have an internal audit function.

Code provision C.2.5 of the CG Code provides that the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) should have an internal audit
function. The Group does not have an internal audit function. During the year
ended 31 March 2021, the Board reviewed the effectiveness of the internal
control system of the Group and there were no major issues but areas for
improvement have been identified by the audit committee of the Company
(the “Audit Committee”) and appropriate measures have been taken. In
addition, the Board was of the view that there is no immediate need to set
up an internal audit function within the Group in light of the size, nature and
complexity of the Group’s business. The situation will be reviewed annually.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The overall management of the business of the Group is vested in the
Board, who assumes the responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and
operational performances, interests of all shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) and that all issues are considered in an objective manner.

BOARD COMPOSITION

During the year ended 31 March 2021 and up to the date of this annual
report, the Board comprised six (6) Directors, including three (3) executive
Directors and three (3) independent non-executive Directors.

Details of the Board are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lai Law Kau (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu (Deputy Chairman)

Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Kan Ka Hon

Mr. Lau Sin Ming

Mr. Wu Koon Yin Welly

Details of background and qualifications of all Directors are set out in the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors” of this annual report. Each
of the Directors is subject to retirement by rotation at the annual general
meeting of the Company (the “AGM”) for a term of up to three (3) years under
bye-law 99 of the bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-laws”).
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The Board possesses a balance of skills, experience and diversity which are
appropriate for the requirements of the business of the Group. A balanced
composition of executive and independent non-executive Directors also
generates a strong independent element on the Board, which allows
independent and objective decision making process for the best interest of
the Group. The Company will review the composition of the Board regularly to
ensure the Board possesses the appropriate and necessary expertise, skills
and experience to meet the needs of the business development of the Group.

The Company has received written annual confirmation of independence
from each of the independent non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. Despite the fact that each of Mr. Kan Ka Hon and Mr.
Lau Sin Ming has served as an independent non-executive Director on the
Board for more than nine (9) years, the Board is of the view that their duration
of service will not interfere with their exercise of independent judgement in
carrying out their duties and responsibilities as the independent non-executive
Directors and believes that their valuable knowledge and experience in the
Group’s business will continually benefit the Company and the Shareholders
as a whole. Accordingly, the Company considers that all independent non-
executive Directors have met the independence guidelines of Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules.

The Chairman meets at least annually with the independent non-executive
Directors without the presence of other Directors, in compliance with code
provision A.2.7 of the CG Code.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, all Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at
the AGM no later than the third AGM since the last re-election. Any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until the
next following AGM after his or her appointment, or any Director appointed by
the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the
next following AGM after his or her appointment and shall then be eligible for
re-election.

Board Meetings

Regular Board meetings are held at least four (4) times a year with at least
fourteen (14) days’ prior notice being given to all the Directors. Additional
meetings, if necessary, are arranged and held as and when required.
Directors may attend Board meetings either in person or through electronic
means of communication. A total of eleven (11) Board meetings (including four
(4) regular Board meetings) were held and written resolutions of the Directors
were circulated and passed for approving significant matters during the year
ended 31 March 2021. The attendance records of the Directors are set out
as below section headed “ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF DIRECTORS AND
COMMITTEE MEMBERS”.
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The Board is responsible for the approval and monitoring of the Group’s
overall strategies and policies, approval of business plans, evaluating the
performance of the Group and oversight of management. It is also responsible
for promoting the success of the Company and its businesses by directing
and supervising the Company’s affairs.

The Board focuses on overall strategies and policies with particular attention
paid to the growth and financial performance of the Group.

The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the Group to the executive
Directors and senior management of every business segment, while reserving
certain key matters for its approval. Decisions of the Board are communicated
to the management through executive Directors who have attended the Board
meetings.

All Directors have been provided, on a monthly basis, with the Group’s
management information updates to give them aware of the Group’s affairs
and facilitates them to discharge their duties under the relevant requirements
of the Listing Rules.

Director’s Induction and Continuous Professional Development

Every newly appointed Director receives a comprehensive induction package
to ensure that he/she has a proper understanding of the Group’s operations,
business and governance policies. In addition, our external legal adviser meets
with the new Director to ensure that he/she is fully aware of the responsibilities
as a Director under the Listing Rules, applicable legal requirements and
other regulatory requirements. Mr. Lai Law Kau, who was appointed as an
executive Director on 20 August 2020, received the Director’s induction
before his appointment.

During the year, the Company provides regular updates on the business
performance of the Group to the Directors. The Directors are regularly
updated on the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other
applicable statutory requirements to ensure compliance and upkeep of good
corporate governance practices.
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The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development (the “Continuous Professional Development”) to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the
Board remains informed and relevant in compliance with code provision A.6.5
of the CG Code. According to the confirmations received from all the existing
Directors, all Directors have participated in the Continuous Professional
Development for the year ended 31 March 2021 in the following manner:

TRERHRE

BRI ZEEATRIZ TR EAB5H - &
SERBEF2URETELE(FESE
BR])  UBRRENESAE M - MU
BRESTCABEEZEENARDEMENER
THEFSELEH - REFMEARTESR
HemERE  2EESNEE2021F3A31
BIEFEB2HBETERE  BRET :

Name " Type of Training
EEE
(Note)
(5 5%)
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Lai Law Kau FEERIRSE AL v
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu EEHZL v
Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim B RARNEE v/
Independent Non-executive Directors BFHITES
Mr. Kan Ka Hon B e v/
Mr. Lau Sin Ming 2ERAEAE v/
Mr. Wu Koon Yin Welly REBESE v/

Note:

Continuous Professional Development through attending briefings/seminars/webcast/

conferences/forums/online training/reading relevant materials

Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance functions
as set out below:

(@) To develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance by monitoring of the corporate governance
practices and procedures; and maintenance of appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control systems of the Group to
ensure compliance with applicable rules and regulations;

(b)  To review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management;

() To review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d)  To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and the Directors; and

(e) To review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure
in the corporate governance report in the Company’s annual report.
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During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Board had performed the
abovementioned corporate governance functions by reviewing the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance and compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance and Indemnity

The Company has appropriate insurance cover for the Directors’ and officers’
liabilities in respect of any claims against the Directors and officers of the
Group arising out of corporate activities of the Group.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

Board Committees (the “Board Committees”)

The Board has established four (4) Board Committees, namely, Audit
Committee, remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”), nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) and executive committee of the Company (the “Executive
Committee”), to assist in the execution of the Board’s responsibilities and
to oversee particular aspect of the Group’s affairs. Each Board Committee
is provided with sufficient resources to discharge its duties properly, and
holds meetings in accordance with the Bye-laws, its specific written terms of
reference and, where applicable, the proceedings of the Board Committees
meetings. The terms of reference of the Board Committees are reviewed and
updated regularly to ensure that they are aligned with prevailing governance
practices. The terms of reference of each of the Board Committees are
available on the Company’s website. The attendance records of each member
of the Board Committees are set out as below section headed “ATTENDANCE
RECORDS OF DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEE MEMBERS”.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises all three (3) independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Kan Ka Hon (chairman of the Audit
Committee), Mr. Lau Sin Ming and Mr. Wu Koon Yin Welly and held two (2)
meetings during the year ended 31 March 2021.

The chairman of the Audit Committee, Mr. Kan Ka Hon, possesses
appropriate professional qualifications in finance and accounting and meets
the requirements of Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. No member of the Audit
Committee is a former partner of the existing auditing firm of the Company
during two (2) years after he ceases to be partner of the audit firm.

The principal functions of the Audit Committee included:

- to oversee the relationship with the external auditor;

- to review the interim and annual financial statements before publication;
- to oversee the Group’s financial reporting system and internal control

procedures; and

- to review of the internal control and risk management framework.
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During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Audit Committee has reviewed
(i) the reports from the Company’s auditor, accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group, management representation letters, and
management’s response in relation to the annual results for the year ended 31
March 2020 and the interim results for the six months ended 30 September
2020; (i) the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 and the
six months ended 30 September 2020 and recommended the same to the
Board for approval; and (iii) the effectiveness of risk management and internal
control systems of the Company.

The Audit Committee reviewed the 2020/2021 consolidated financial
statements in conjunction with the external auditor of the Company. Based
on this review and discussions with management, the Audit Committee
was satisfied that the consolidated financial statements were prepared in
accordance with applicable accounting standards, and fairly present the
Group’s financial position and results for the year ended 31 March 2021.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee, currently comprises three (3) independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lau Sin Ming (chairman of the
Remuneration Committee), Mr. Kan Ka Hon and Mr. Wu Koon Yin Welly, and
one (1) executive Director, namely Mr. Lai Law Kau in replacement of Mr.
Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim who resigned as a member of the Remuneration
Committee with effect from 1 October 2020.

The principal functions of the Remuneration Committee included:

- to recommend to the Board on the Company’s policies and structure
for the remuneration of the Directors and senior management of the
Group;

- to recommend to the Board on the remuneration package of all
executive Directors and senior management of the Group; and

- to review and approve the management’s remuneration proposals with
reference to corporate goals and objectives by the Board from time to
time.

The primary objective of the Company’s remuneration policy is to attract,
retain and motivate the personnel by providing fair reward for their
contributions to the Group’s performance. In this context, the remuneration
policy is to set the overall remuneration package at a competitive level and in
a form that permits additional remuneration to be earned for high performance
over a sustained period. The remuneration packages are determined with
reference to the time commitment and responsibilities of each individual, the
Company'’s performance and the prevailing market conditions.
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During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Remuneration Committee held
three (3) meetings to review and make recommendations to the Board for
approval on (i) the remuneration policies and structure for the Directors
and senior management of the Group; (i) the remuneration of a newly
appointed executive Director, namely Mr. Lai Law Kau; and (jii) the change of
remuneration of re-designated executive Director, namely Mr. Kwong Jimmy
Cheung Tim.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises three (3) independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wu Koon Yin Welly (chairman of the
Nomination Committee), Mr. Kan Ka Hon and Mr. Lau Sin Ming, and one (1)
executive Director, namely Mr. Lai Law Kau in replacement of Mr. Kwong
Jimmy Cheung Tim who resigned as a member of the Nomination Committee
with effect from 1 October 2020.

The principal functions of the Nomination Committee included:

- to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board;

- to identify and nominate suitable candidates of directors for the Board’s
consideration; and

- to assess the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Nomination Committee held
three (3) meetings to review and make recommendations to the Board for
approval on (i) the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board;
(i) the assessment of the independence of the existing independent non-
executive Directors; (iii) the nomination of the retiring Directors for retirement
by rotation and re-appointment at the AGM; (iv) the nomination of a newly
appointed executive Director, namely Mr. Lai Law Kau and his appointment
as a member of the Executive Committee, the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee; and (v) the re-designation of (a) Mr. Lai Law
Kau from an executive Director and a member of the Executive Committee
to the chairman, chief executive officer and the chairman of the Executive
Committee, and (b) Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim from the chairman, chief
executive officer and the chairman of the Executive Committee to an executive
Director and a member of the Executive Committee, and his resignation as a
member of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee.
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Nomination Policy and Board Diversity Policy

The Board adopted a nomination policy and board diversity policy which
set out the nomination procedures adopted by the Nomination Committee
and the approach to achieving board diversity in the Company in order
to enhance the effectiveness of the Board and its corporate governance
standard. The Company recognizes the importance of having a diverse team
of board members, which is an essential element in maintaining a competitive
advantage. The Nomination Committee has been delegated the authority
to review and assess the diversity of the Board and its skills and experience
by way of consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited to,
gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional experience,
industry experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The Nomination
Committee will give consideration to the board diversity policy when identifying
and selecting suitably qualified candidates. The policy has been and will be
reviewed on a regular basis.

Both the nomination policy and the board diversity policy are available on the
Company’s website.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee currently comprises all the executive Directors,
namely Mr. Lai Law Kau (chairman of the Executive Committee), Ms. Lui Yuk
Chu and Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim.

It meets as and when required between regular Board meetings of the
Company, and operates as a general management committee under the
direct authority of the Board. Within the parameters of authority delegated by
the Board, the Executive Committee is committed to the implementation of
the Group’s strategy set by the Board, monitors the Group’s investment and
trading performance, funding and financing requirements, and reviews the
management performance.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu have been re-appointed as the external
auditor of the Company at the 2020 AGM until the conclusion of the
forthcoming 2021 AGM.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the audit and non-audit fees paid or
payable to the Company’s external auditor, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, was
made up of an audit fee of approximately HK$2,380,000 and a non-audit
related service fee of approximately HK$641,000. The latter included taxation
service and professional service.
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ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEE
MEMBERS

Details of the attendance records of each individual Director at the Board
meetings (including regular Board meetings), the Board Committee meetings,
the AGM and the special general meetings of the Company (the “SGMSs”) held
during the year ended 31 March 2021 are as follows:

EENREEENEMNHFERLE

202143 A31BILFER » BRI EEFER
ARFBRzZESE e (REEEE TS

CERZEEeE  REEAFAERAA
Tﬂxi%ﬂllﬁ”*(mﬁi RIRE]) Z HE ek
RERFBEDT -

Attended/Eligible to attend

L/ RERLRE
Audit Remuneration Nomination
Board  Committee Committee Committee
Name meeting meeting meeting meeting AGM SGM(s)
EX® ERZE® HMWEEE REZEE RREF KRS
HE = = = g3 N g
Executive Directors HEE
Mr. Lai Law Kau BREREE
(appointed on 20 August 2020 and (202058 A20H
re-designated with effect from BZIRE2020F
1 October 2020) 10810 #£EE) 66" NATER 111 111 NATER 3/3
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu BE%RL 11/11 N/A T iE B N/A N E A N/A TR 0N 0/4
Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim BRALE 1011 NATER 213 213 11 4/4
Independent Non-executive Directors By FEHTEE
Mr. Kan Ka Hon HESTE 10/11 2/2* 3/3 3/3 17 4/4
Mr. Lau Sin Ming AEREE 1111 22 33 3/3 111 44
Mr. Wu Koon Yin Welly REBLE 11/11 2/2 3/3 3/3* 17 4/4

* Chairman of the Board/Board Committee

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company, Mr. Lee Po Wing, assists the Board
by ensuring that the Board policy and procedures are followed and the Board
activities are effectively and efficiently conducted. In accordance with Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules, Mr. Lee Po Wing confirmed that he has taken no less
than 15 hours of the relevant professional training during the year ended 31
March 2021.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board leads and maintains effective controls over the Group’s activities,
with executive responsibility for the running of the Group’s business being
delegated to management. The management provides all members of the
Board with monthly updates in order to give a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group’s performance, position and prospects to enable
them to discharge their duties.
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Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the nature and
extent of the risks and it is willing to take in achieving the Group’s strategic
objectives and ensuring that the Group establishes and maintains appropriate
and effective risk management and internal control systems and reviewing
their effectiveness. The Board is also responsible for overseeing the design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk management and internal control
systems. The risk management and internal control systems are designed
to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss and to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in
operating systems or in achievement of the Group’s business objectives.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, conducts a review of the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
annually by requiring all department managers to undergo a detailed self-risk
assessment process using a common risk management framework. It covers
all material controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls,
on an annual basis. It also considers the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programs and budget of the Group’s
accounting and financial reporting function.

Under the enterprise risk management framework, policies and procedures
are in place to identify, assess, manage, control and report risks. Such
risks include strategic, credit, operational (including but not limited to,
administrative, system, human resources and reputation), market, liquidity,
legal and regulatory risks. Exposure to these risks is continuously monitored
by the Board through the Audit Committee. The internal control system
includes a defined management structure with specified limits of authority.
The Board has clearly defined the authorities and key responsibilities of each
division to ensure adequate checks and balances.

The internal control system has been designed to safeguard the Group’s
assets against unauthorized use of disposition, to ensure the maintenance of
proper accounting records for producing reliable financial information, and to
ensure compliance with applicable laws, regulations and industry standard.

The Group does not have an internal audit function. During the year under
review, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control system
of the Group and there was no major issue but areas for improvement have
been identified by the Audit Committee and appropriate measures taken. The
Board is of the view that the enterprise risk management and internal control
systems in place for the year and up to the date of issuance of the annual
report is effective and adequate. In addition, the Board is currently of the view
that there is no immediate need to set up an internal audit function within the
Group in light of the size, nature and complexity of the Group’s business. The
situation will be reviewed from time to time.
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Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledged their responsibilities for the preparation of
the financial statements of the Group which give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Group and the Group’s financial performance and
cash flows for the relevant accounting periods, and in compliance with all
the relevant statutory requirements, the Listing Rules requirements and
applicable accounting standards. In preparing the financial statements of the
Group, the appropriate accounting policies are selected, applied consistently
and in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
appropriate and reasonable judgment and estimates are made. The Directors
have prepared the financial statements for the reporting year on a going
concern basis.

The Board is committed to present a clear, balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group’s performance and financial positions in all its
financial reporting and to ensure relevant publications in a timely manner.

Auditor’s Statement

The statement by the Company’s external auditor about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
is set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 68 to 74 of this
annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE OF THE LISTING RULES

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct for the Directors in their dealings
in the Company’s securities. Having made specific enquiries by the Company,
all the Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the required
standards as set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March
2021. The Company has also adopted the Model Code to regulate the
dealings in the Company’s securities by its employees and directors of the
subsidiaries of the Group who are likely to possess inside information relating
to the Company’s securities.

Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”) which
sets out the guideline for the Board and the Company to determine (i) whether
dividends are to be declared and paid, and (i) the level of dividend to be paid
to the Shareholders.

The Dividend Policy is to allow the Shareholders to participate in the
Company’s profit whilst to retain adequate cash reserves for its working
capital requirements and future growth.
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In determining/recommending the frequency, amount and form of any
dividend in any financial year/period, the Board shall, inter alia, consider the
following factors:

(i) the actual and expected financial performance of the Group;

(ii) economic conditions and other internal or external factors that may
have an impact on the business or financial performance and position
of the Group;

(i) the Group’s business strategies and operations, including future cash
commitments and investment needs to sustain the long-term growth
aspect of the business;

(iv)  the current and future liquidity position and capital requirements of the
Group;

(v) the interests of the Shareholders; and
(v)  any other factors that the Board may consider relevant.

The dividend payout ratio will vary from year to year. There is no assurance
that dividends will be paid in any particular amount for any given period.

Subject to the Bye-laws and the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the
Laws of Hong Kong), the Company may declare and pay dividends by way of
cash or scrip or by other means that the Board considers appropriate.

The Board may determine and pay to the Shareholders interim dividends as it
considers appropriate. Any final dividends declared by the Company must be
approved by the Shareholders at general meetings and must not exceed the
amount recommended by the Board.

SHARESHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for Convening a SGM

Shareholders shall have the right to request the Board to convene a SGM.
Shareholders holding in aggregate of not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company as at the date of deposit carries the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company may send a written request to the Board
to request for a SGM. The written requisition must state the purposes of the
meeting, and must be signed by the Shareholder(s) and deposited at the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at Block A, 7th Floor,
Hong Kong Spinners Building, Phase 6, 481-483 Castle Peak Road, Cheung
Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong (for the attention of Company Secretarial
Department).

The Company would take appropriate actions and make necessary
arrangements, and the Shareholders concerned would be responsible for the
expenses incurred in giving effect thereto in accordance with the requirements
under Section 74 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended) (the
“Companies Act”) once a valid requisition is received.
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Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at the General Meetings
The following Shareholders are entitled to put forward a proposal (which may
properly be put to the meeting) for consideration at a general meeting of the
Company:

(@) any number of Shareholders representing not less than one-twentieth
of the total voting rights of the Company on the date of the requisition;
or

(b) not less than 100 Shareholders holding Shares in the Company.

The requisition specifying the proposal, duly signed by the Shareholders
concerned, together with a statement of not more than 1,000 words with
respect to the matter referred to in the proposal or the business to be
dealt with at the general meeting must be deposited at the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong at Block A, 7th Floor, Hong Kong
Spinners Building, Phase 6, 481-483 Castle Peak Road, Cheung Sha Wan,
Kowloon, Hong Kong. The Company would take appropriate actions and
make necessary arrangements, and the Shareholders concerned would be
responsible for the expenses incurred in giving effect thereto in accordance
with the requirements under Sections 79 and 80 of the Companies Act once
valid documents are received.

If a Shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a retiring Director for
election as a Director at a general meeting, the Shareholder should follow the
“Rules and Procedures Governing the Election of Directors”, which can be
found on the website of the Company.

Procedures for Putting Enquiries by the Shareholders to the Board
Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concemns to the Board
in writing via the following channel:

Company Secretarial Department
Block A, 7th Floor

Hong Kong Spinners Building, Phase 6
481-483 Castle Peak Road

Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon

Hong Kong

E-mail: info@eminencehk.com

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the general meetings
of the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company had not made any
changes to its Bye-laws. A consolidated version of the memorandum of
association of the Company and the Bye-laws are available on the respective
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) present this annual report
together with the audited financial statements of Eminence Enterprise Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 March 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group are property development, property
investment, investment in securities and loan financing and the principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 40 to the consolidated financial
statements.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2021 are set out in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
on pages 75 to 76 of this annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Further discussion and review on the business activities of the Group as
required by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) including an analysis of the Group’s performance,
material events that have occurred since the year end date and an indication
of likely future development in the Group’s business are contained in the
preceding “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and
Analysis” set out on pages 4 to 20 of this annual report.

Details of the Group’s financial risk management are disclosed in note 33 to
the consolidated financial statements.

In addition, relevant details of the Company’s environmental, social and
governance policies and performance are reported in the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report” set out on pages 54 to 67 of this annual

report.

The Directors were not aware of any non-compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations that had a significant impact on the Group during the year.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last
five (5) financial years is set out on page 221 of this annual report.

DIVIDEND

The board of the Directors (the “Board”) does not recommend the payment
of a final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2021 (2020: Nil).
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the year are set
out in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group’s investment properties were revalued as at 31 March 2021 by
independent firms of qualified professional property valuers and the gain/loss
arising from changes in fair value of investment properties was recognised
in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive
Income. Details of these are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES
Details of movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during
the year are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity on

pages 79 to 81 of this annual report and note 42 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to its shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”) as at 31 March 2021 and 2020 are as follows:
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31 March 2021
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31 March 2020
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HK$’000 HK$'000
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Contributed surplus AR 261,126 261,126
Accumulated profit (losses) RETE I (E8) 244,082 (320,152)
505,208 N/A i

Under the Companies Act, the contributed surplus shall not be distributed to
the Shareholders if there are reasonable grounds for believing that:

(a) the company is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realizable value of the company’s assets would thereby be less
than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and
share premium account.
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DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations of
approximately HK$1,330,000.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lai Law Kau (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Lui Yuk Chu (Deputy Chairman)

Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Kan Ka Hon

Mr. Lau Sin Ming

Mr. Wu Koon Yin Welly

The biographical details of the Directors as at the date of this report are set
out on pages 21 to 22 of this annual report.

Pursuant to bye-law 102(B) of the bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-laws”),
as Mr. Lai Law Kau (“Mr. Lai”) was appointed as an executive Director with
effect from 20 August 2020, Mr. Lai will hold office as a Director until the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM”) which will
be held on Friday, 13 August 2021 and subject to re-election. Mr. Lai, being
eligible, has offered himself for re-election at the AGM.

Pursuant to bye-law 99 of the Bye-laws and the Corporate Governance Code,
Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim (“Mr. Kwong”), an executive Director and Mr.
Kan Ka Hon (“Mr. Kan”), an independent non-executive Director, shall retire
from office by rotation at the AGM. Mr. Kwong and Mr. Kan, being eligible,
have offered themselves for re-election at the AGM.
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CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, changes in information of

the Directors since the date of the Company’s latest published 2020 annual

report and up to the date of this report are set out below:

)

On 20 August 2020, Mr. Lai was appointed as an executive
Director and a member of the executive committee (the “Executive
Committee”), the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) and the nomination committee of the Company, with an
annual remuneration of HK$480,000. Subsequently, with effect from 1
October 2020, (a) Mr. Lai was re-designated from an executive Director
and a member of the Executive Committee to the chairman, chief
executive officer and the chairman of the Executive Committee; and
(b) Mr. Kwong was re-designated from the chairman, chief executive
officer and the chairman of the Executive Committee to an executive
Director and a member of the Executive Committee; and resigned as a
member of the remuneration committee and the nomination committee
of the Company. The remuneration for Mr. Kwong was changed
to HK$600,000 per annum and there is no change for Mr. Lai’s
remuneration.

Mr. Kan Ka Hon resigned as an independent non-executive director of
Victory City International Holdings Limited (stock code: 539) with effect
from 1 April 2021.

There were changes to the directorships of each of Mr. Lai and Mr.
Kwong in certain members of the Group.

Pursuant to the Company’s policies and practices, the remuneration
package of the following Directors were reviewed by the Remuneration
Committee and approved by the Board, and revised with effect from 1
April 2021:

(@ The annual emolument of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu was revised from
HK$2,640,000 to HK$3,240,000.

(b)  The director’s fee of all independent non-executive Directors
was changed from HK$150,000 per annum to HK$155,000 per
annum.

Save as disclosed above, there is no other change in information of the

Directors required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing

Rules.
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received annual written confirmation pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules from each of the independent non-executive Directors
as regards their independence to the Company for the year ended 31 March
2021. Despite the fact that each of Mr. Kan and Mr. Lau Sin Ming has served
as an independent non-executive Director on the Board for more than nine (9)
years, the Board is of the view that their duration of service will not interfere
with their exercise of independent judgement in carrying out their duties and
responsibilities as the independent non-executive Directors and believes
that their valuable knowledge and experience in the Group’s business
will continually benefit the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.
Accordingly, the Company considers all the independent non-executive
Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors is subject to retirement by rotation at the AGM for a
term of up to three (3) years under bye-law 99 of the Bye-laws.

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM
has a service contract with the Group which is not determinable by the Group
within one (1) year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts for the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of any business of the Company was entered into or existed
during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions” below,
there was no contract of significance relating to the business of the Group
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

There was no contracts of significance between the Company or any of its
subsidiaries and a controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries subsisting
during or at the end of the year, and there was no contracts of significance
for the provision of services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by a
controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2021, none of the Directors or chief executive of the
Company (the “Chief Executive”) in the shares of the Company (the
“Shares”), underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”)), which were required to be (i) notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests which the Directors or the Chief Executive were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or (ii) entered in
the register kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or (i)
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2021, so far as is known to the Directors and the Chief
Executive, the interests and short positions of the persons or corporations
other than a Director or the Chief Executive, in the Shares or underlying
Shares as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:
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Number of Number of percentage of
ordinary underlying the total issued
Name of substantial Shareholder Notes  Capacity Shares held Shares held Total Shares
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BRLBR EHEEER Ripagz
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Ace Winner Investment Limited (‘Ace Winner”) i Beneficial owner 90,855,000 - 90,855,000 9.75%
ERRABRDOR(ER) i ERBBA
Goodco Development Limited (“Goodco”) i&ii Beneficial owner 161,445,295 389,120,000 550,565,295 59.10%
ERERARARA(ER]) iki - EREBA
Easyknit Properties Holdings Limited i &ii Interest of controlled corporation 161,445,295 389,120,000 550,565,295 59.10%
ki RESEEzER
Easyknit International Holdings Limited P&l Interest of controlled corporation 275,687,665 389,120,000 664,807,665 71.37%
(‘Easyknit’)
XEERSEERLA (X&) ki RESEEER
Hu Rong Beneficial owner 47,030,000 - 47,030,000 5.06%
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Notes:

i. In the 275,687,665 Shares, 90,855,000 Shares, 23,387,370 Shares and 161,445,295
Shares are registered in the name of and beneficially owned by Ace Winner, Landmark
Profits Limited and Goodco (which is wholly-owned by Easyknit Properties Holdings

Limited) respectively, all of which are wholly-owned subsidiaries of Easyknit.

ii. The 389,120,000 underlying shares comprise of (i) 64,000,000 shares (subject to
adjustment) to be issued upon full conversion of the convertible note held by Goodco
issued by the Company on 11 May 2017; (i) 45,120,000 shares (subject to adjustment)
to be issued upon full conversion of another convertible note held by Goodco issued
by the Company on 26 September 2017; and (i) 280,000,000 shares (subject to
adjustment) to be issued upon full conversion of the convertible note held by Goodco
issued by the Company on 28 August 2019.

. Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, a Director, is also a director of Ace Winner, Goodco, Easyknit
Properties Holdings Limited and Easyknit.

Apart from Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, no Director is also a director or employee of any
substantial Shareholders.

Save as disclosed herein, as at 31 March 2021, the Company had not been
notified by any persons who had interests in the Shares and underlying
Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were required to be
recorded in the register kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 29 June 2012, a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was
adopted and approved by the then Shareholders for a period of 10 years
commencing on the adoption date whereby the Board, may at its discretion,
grant share options (the “Share Options”) to any eligible participant to
subscribe for the Shares subject to the terms and conditions as stipulated in
the Share Option Scheme. The Share Option Scheme will expire on 28 June
2022.

Further details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.

At the AGM held on 1 August 2019, the scheme mandate limit for the Share
Option Scheme was refreshed to allow the Company to issue a maximum
of 310,583,205 new Shares under the Share Option Scheme to eligible
participants. After such refreshment of scheme mandate limit, during the year
ended 31 March 2021, the Company did not grant any Share Options to any
eligible participants.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Other than the Share Option Scheme disclosed above, at no time during the
year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in,
or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate, and none of the
Directors or any of their spouses or children under the age of 18, was granted
any right to subscribe for the equity or debt securities of the Company or any
other body corporate nor had exercised any such right.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
Interests of the Directors in competing businesses as at 31 March 2021
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules were as

follows:

Name of Director Name of company

Nature of competing business
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Nature of interest

EEMA NEEBE REEBMEE ERME

Ms. Lui Yuk Chu Easyknit Property development, property Director of Easyknit and
investment, securities investment substantial shareholder
and loan financing of Easyknit

EEHRL L XE MEER  MERE  BHFRER KBEENKBETEZRER

ERRE

As the Board is independent of the board of Easyknit and maintains three
(8) independent non-executive Directors, the Group operates its businesses
independently of, and at arm’s length from, the businesses of Easyknit.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES

On 11 January 2021, Madian Star Limited (“Madian”) exercised its right
under the 3% coupon convertible note in the outstanding principal amount
of HK$40,400,000 issued by the Company to Madian on 12 June 2015 at
the then conversion price of HK$0.9855 due on 12 June 2022 (the “Madian
Convertible Note”) to require early redemption of the Madian Convertible
Note in full together with all accrued and unpaid interest thereon. The total
amount payable on redemption was settled from assets of the Company. The
Madian Convertible Note was cancelled, the Company had been discharged
from any and all of the obligations under and in respect of the Madian
Convertible Note. The conversion rights under the Madian Convertible Note
had lapsed.

Further information can be found in the Company’s announcement dated 11
January 2021.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year ended 31 March 2021.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Alteration of Terms of the Goodco Convertible Notes

On 18 September 2020, the Company and Goodco (a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Easyknit and a substantial Shareholder) entered into three
deeds of amendment in respect of the proposed alteration, pursuant
to which both parties agreed to (a) revise the conversion price of the
2017CN1, 2017CN2 and 2019CN (collectively, the “Goodco CNs”) to
HK$0.25 per conversion share (subject to adjustment); (b) extend the
maturity date of the Goodco CNs to 28 August 2024; and (c) increase
the interest payable to 4% per annum (the “Alteration”). The Alteration
was approved by the independent Shareholders on 19 November 2020
and completion took place on 25 November 2020.

For further information, please refer to the Company’s announcements
dated 21 September 2020, 19 November 2020 and 25 November
2020 and circular dated 30 October 2020 respectively.

Disposal of Project Kennedy Town

On 5 November 2020 (as supplemented by a supplemental agreement
dated 9 November 2020), the Company and Easyknit entered into a
sale and purchase agreement (the “Sale and Purchase Agreement”),
pursuant to which, among other things, Easyknit conditionally agreed
to purchase, and the Company conditionally agreed to sell, the entire
issued shares of Above Ace Limited (“Above Ace”) and Success Edge
Limited (“Success Edge”), both being wholly-owned subsidiaries of
the Company, and the Company agreed to procure the assignment
to Easyknit of each of the shareholders’ loans owing by Above Ace
and Success Edge to the Company at completion, at an aggregate
consideration of HK$1,100,000,000 (subject to adjustments).
Completion of the sale and purchase agreement is subject to the
independent Shareholders’ approval and is conditional on the
Company’s successful bid for Nos. 93 and 95 Catchick Street, Hong
Kong in the public auction pursuant to the Ordinance.

On 30 April 2021, the Company and Easyknit agreed to terminate
the Sale and Purchase Agreement and entered into a termination
agreement, pursuant to which the Company should return the deposit
of HK$10,000,000 to Easyknit and no parties should have any claims
against each other and all their rights and obligations under the Sale
and Purchase Agreement were terminated and ceased to have further
effect.
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Further information can be found in the joint announcements of the
Company and Easyknit dated 9 November 2020, 4 January 2021, 22
January 2021, 19 February 2021, 31 March 2021 and 30 April 2021
respectively.

Save as abovementioned connected transaction, the Company or its
subsidiaries did not have any material connected transactions or continuing
connected transaction which were subject to the requirements of the Listing
Rules during the year ended 31 March 2021.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions which were undertaken in the normal course
of business are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.
For those related party transactions that constitutes connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions (as the case may be) (other than those
described in the above section headed “Connected Transactions”) under the
Listing Rules, these transactions are exempt from reporting, annual review,
announcement and the independent Shareholders’ approval requirement
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Bye-law 178 of the Bye-laws provides that, among others, every Director and
other officers of the Company shall be indemnified and secured harmless out
of the assets and profits of the Company from and against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them shall or
may incur sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted
in or about the execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in their respective
offices and related matters provided that the indemnity shall not extend to any
matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any of them.
In this connection, the Company has arranged directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the Company during the
year.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year, the five (5) largest suppliers of the Group accounted for
approximately 59% of the Group’s purchases and the largest supplier
accounted for approximately 22% of the Group’s purchases.

The five (5) largest customers of the Group accounted for approximately 14%
of the Group’s revenue and the largest customer accounted for approximately
4% of the Group’s revenue.

None of the Directors and their respective close associates or any
Shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5%
of the Company’s issued Shares) have any interest in the five (5) largest
suppliers or customers of the Group.

HHEMNBL2EARARRKENRAH
2R A2020%F 11 A9H » 202141 A4
H  2021F1A228 * 2021F2819
EI ~ 2021 3A31 8 Kk202144 A30H

4{2 /\ N\ ﬁﬁ

%%L LEERZ SN H2021FE3A318 IH4F
AN B B EL B B A B) 3 4 (T (A B2 AR
Lx%dz%%ﬁﬁ ERX 5BEST FTRAIAR

BEALRS

REFEBEREPETNHEALRZHER
e MK ST o SR EHRRIET
MEXFRFEAEXZNOBBEALRSZ (B
BRmE) S (EXBER S|~
BN - ZERFEHRRET LETHRAUFE14A
BETzZHE  FEEH AMORBIERR
HERE ©

RAMRIEATSIRME - BREMIN  BRES
RARABEMEE A B ERITHBA PR
MBS ERRERAWEFEEL  XE
ERITRIGEBEREL - BZRITHRAIT
ERATHMERZAAFR  RE - ER -
Bk BERERFAX  BRARRBEER
EANFREHELERRETRES - HEE
HETEER LA T RFFRKEEIED
EAIEE - Bt - ARRENRFEARES
RARRETEAEBRHEERTIEABZE
ERE -

TRHEBREF

RER AEBZRAGAREEEAEE 2
REBRAI59% » M AHEAAGEAEEZ
REBER#HI22% °

AEBEZRAGIABRFMAEB ZEE£8BY
14%  MEARFAGAEEZEEHLH
4% o

MEEERHE 2 ZRHE A TREMBRE
(BEEEMANEEZNE% 2 B HTRD)
RAEBERG)KEREKEE B #A T E

P



PROPERTY VALUATION

Property valuations in respect of the Group’s investment properties in Hong
Kong and the People’s Republic of China have been carried out by Vigers
Appraisal and Consulting Limited, an independent firm of qualified professional
property valuers. For the investment properties in Singapore, the valuation
as at 31 March 2021 was carried out by Edmund Tie & Company (SEA) Pte
Ltd, another independent firm of qualified professional property valuers. Their
valuations were based on residual value approach, income capitalisation
approach and/or direct comparison method as the valuation methodologies
and were used in preparing 2020/2021 final results. The Group’s investment
properties were valued at approximately HK$1,285,074,000 (2020:
approximately HK$1,262,573,000), an increase over 2020 after adjusted
for the exchange adjustments and disposals of investment properties. The
decrease in fair value of approximately HK$18,530,000 was recognized in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
for the year. Development properties and non-investment properties of the
Group were stated at cost less impairment, if any, in these consolidated
financial statements.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group is exposed to various risks in its businesses and operations.
Through internal control systems and procedures, the Company has taken
reasonable steps to ensure that significant risks are monitored and do not
adversely affect the Group’s operations and performances. The relevant risks
are managed on an ongoing basis. A non-exhaustive list of principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Group is set out below.

Market Risk

The Group’s revenue is principally derived from Hong Kong. The conditions of
the economy as a whole and the property market may have significant impact
to the Group’s financial results and conditions.

Compliance Risk

The Group’s operations require compliance with local and overseas
laws (including those of the PRC, Bermuda, Singapore and the British
Virgin Islands) and regulations, including but not limited to property sale,
management and construction as well as companies and securities laws.
The Group has constantly monitored its compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group.
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ACCOUNT OF KEY RELATIONSHIP

The Group adheres to the standards of business ethics, this underpins how
we conduct business with our customers, suppliers and contractors.

Employees

The Group value its employees who are the Group’s most important assets.
Staff are rewarded with competitive remuneration packages and benefits. The
Group is committed to fostering a conducive, harmonious and discrimination-
free working environment.

Occupational health and safety is the top priority across the Group’s
operations. Safety guidelines are established to safeguard the employees
from any occupational hazards.

Customers

The Group strive to provide high quality and reliable services to its customers.
The privacy of the Group’s customers are well protected through a privacy
policy. Any complaints from customers are handled and investigated in a
thorough and efficient manner.

Suppliers

The Group is committed to forging collaborative partnership with its suppliers
and have a database of approved suppliers and vendors who are assessed
on a regular basis.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emoluments policy of employees of the Group is set up by the executive
Directors on the basis of employee performance, experience and prevailing
industry practice.

The emolument of the Directors is determined by the Board after review and
on the recommendation of the remuneration committee of the Company,
having regard to factors such as the time commitment and responsibilities of
Directors, the Company’s performance and the prevailing market practice.

The Group has adopted the Share Option Scheme as an incentive to
Directors and eligible participants. Details of the Share Option Scheme are set
out in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” above.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws although

there are no restrictions against such rights under the laws in Bermuda where
the Company is incorporated.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a sufficient
public float of more than 25% of the Company’s issued Shares as required
under the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 March 2021.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has an audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) in compliance
with the requirement of the Listing Rules and the Corporate Governance Code
and Corporate Governance Report as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules. The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee is to review and
supervise the financial reporting process and risk management and internal
control systems of the Group. The Audit Committee comprises all three
(8) independent non-executive Directors as at 31 March 2021. The Audit
Committee has reviewed the audited financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2021.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in the
“Corporate Governance Report” from pages 23 to 36 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company (or “we” or “our”) has prepared an annual environmental,
social and governance (“ESG”) report for 2020/2021 in compliance with
the ESG Reporting Guide set out in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules. This
section highlights the ESG policies and performance of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2021. The Company is committed to addressing
sustainability issues and managing ESG risks through prudent business
planning and operational implementation. The Board, assisted by the
management of the Company, has the overall responsibility to review policies,
oversee sustainability issues and address ESG-related risks. Through this
internal sustainability governance framework, the Board has developed and
formulated relevant policies which better align with the Group’s business
goals and objectives.

Discussion on Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group is devoted to the integration of corporate social responsibility
(“CSR”) into our day-to-day operations to create long-term value and
contribute to a better future. In line with our policies, we have focused
our efforts on energy efficiency, resource stewardship and cultivation of
environmental awareness amongst employees. Apart from undertaking
hardware upgrades to further enhance the energy performance of existing
infrastructure, we apply new technologies to our new properties, including
the installation of low emissivity or double-glazed windows which help reduce
heat loss and optimise thermal insulation. Furthermore, we work hard to
ensure waste materials and other useful resources are reused, recovered and
recycled whenever possible before the consideration of landfill disposal.
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Account of Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and
Suppliers

Employees

The Group works diligently to create a supportive, inclusive, caring and safe
work environment, which fosters professional development and protects
the well-being of our staff. We emphasize on equal opportunities, and a fair
and transparent recruitment process. We provide competitive remuneration
packages and benefits, which reference industry standards, and are
commensurate with individual merit, work experience, qualifications and job
duties.

To ensure all staff understand their responsibility to uphold the Group’s ethical
standards, the employees handbook of the Group specifies clear expectations
for professional conduct. All relevant anti-discrimination and personal data
protection regulations are strictly observed.

In support of continual staff learning and development, the Group encourages
our employees to pursue different interests and offers internal and external
opportunities to realise their full potential. We continue to provide internal and
external training opportunities such as seminars and training courses in order
to strengthen our workforce and stock our talent pipeline.

We ensure our work environments are free from any potential occupational
health and safety hazards, our internal safety guidelines were formulated
in accordance with the requirements set out by the Labour Department to
minimise risks. During the year, we fully complied with all relevant health and
safety regulations and we are pleased to report that there were no work-
related fatalities or lost days due to work injury.

Customers, Suppliers and Subcontractors

The Group strictly adheres to the internal mechanisms and standard operating
procedures relating to the expectations on quality assurance, customer
service, health and safety requirements, procurement procedures, and
regulatory compliance. Our management approach stresses control measures
to ensure our stringent requirements are met, in cases where quality concerns
may arise, a thorough investigation will be carried out and corrective actions
will be promptly implemented. Standardised complaint-handling procedures
have also been established to address customer concerns in a consistent and
timely manner.

To encourage corporate responsibility along our supply chain, we prioritize
business partners who share our sustainable practices and ethical standards.
Regular audits and assessments are conducted to ensure our stringent
requirements are fully met.

As a responsible business operator, we operate with a high level of business
ethics and product responsibility, and strictly comply with all relevant data
privacy regulations. The Group’s privacy policy is established in accordance
with local regulations to ensure that all personal data are handled in strict
confidence.
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Compliance Status with Relevant Laws and Regulations that have a
Significant Impact on the Business

During the year, there were no reported cases of non-compliance with
relevant laws and regulations that have had a significant impact on the
Group’s business regarding the environment, occupational health and safety,
labour standards, anti-corruption, data privacy and intellectual properties.

The ESG policies and performance of the Company for the year ended 31
March 2021 are set out in the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report”
from pages 54 to 67 of this annual report.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD

1. Share Offer

On 7 April 2021, the Shares in respect of which valid acceptances
have been received under the Share Offer, together with the Shares
already held or agreed to be acquired by Easyknit, the Offeror and
parties acting in concert with it, exceeds 50% of the voting rights of the
Company and the Offeror has waived all of the other conditions to the
Share Offer. Accordingly, all of the conditions to the Share Offer have
been fulfilled or waived by the Offeror and the Share Offer has been
declared unconditional in all respects on 7 April 2021.

Pursuant to Rule 15.3 of the Hong Kong Code on Takeovers and
Mergers, the Offeror and the Company jointly announced that the
Share Offer closed at 4:00 p.m. on 21 April 2021. Valid acceptances
of the Share Offer had been received in respect of 393,683,175
Shares, representing approximately 42.27% of the issued Shares.
Taking into account the said Shares, the Offeror and parties acting in
concert with it held an aggregate of 669,370,840 Shares, representing
approximately 71.86% of the issued Shares as of 4:00 p.m. on 21 April
2021.

On 22 April 2021, Easyknit further acquired on-market a total of
27,000,000 Shares at the price of HK$0.50 per Share such that
Easyknit, the Offeror and parties acting in concert with it held an
aggregate of 696,370,840 Shares, representing approximately 74.76%
of the issued Shares as at the date of this annual report.

Further details can be found in the joint announcements issued by the
Offeror, Easyknit and the Company dated 7 April 2021 and 21 April
2021 respectively; and announcement of Easyknit dated 22 April 2021.
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Project Kennedy Town

On 1 March 2021, Nice Able and Success Mark were the successful
bidders at the auction of Nos. 93 and 95 Catchick Street, Hong Kong
and have completed the acquisition of the remaining half share of the
Remaining Unit on 1 April 2021. As such, the Group now owns 100%
of Nos. 93 and 95 Catchick Street, Hong Kong.

On 30 April 2021, the Company and Easyknit agreed to terminate the
sale and purchase agreement (the “Sale and Purchase Agreement”)
dated 5 November 2020 in relation to the sale and purchase of
the entire issued shares of Above Ace and Success Edge and the
assignment of shareholders’ loans, and entered into a termination
agreement, pursuant to which the Company should return the deposit
of HK$10,000,000 to Easyknit and no parties should have any claims
against each other and all their rights and obligations under the Sale
and Purchase Agreement were terminated and ceased to have further
effect.

For further information, please refer to “Material Acquisitions and

[

Disposal” section under Management Discussion and Analysis of this
report, the announcement of the Company dated 1 March 2021 and
the joint announcement of the Company and Easyknit dated 30 April

2021.
Project Fung Wah

On 29 April 2021, the Lands Tribunal’s hearing for an order for sale of
the Fung Wah Factorial Building has been concluded on the decision
for an order for sale of the Fung Wah Factorial Building by public
auction with reserve price of HK$800,000,000.

On 23 June 2021, Daily Leader Limited, Treasure Arts International
Group Limited and Top Lead Investment Limited, being indirect wholly-
owned subsidiaries of the Company, were the successful bidders at the
auction and completion for the acquisition of the remaining units of the
Fung Wah Factorial Building is scheduled on or before 23 July 2021.

Further information can be found in the announcement of the Company
dated 23 June 2021.

Details of the significant events occurring after the end of the reporting period
are set out in note 41 to the consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITOR
The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 were audited by

Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. A resolution will be proposed at the AGM
to re-appoint them as the auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board

Lai Law Kau
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 23 June 2021

In case of any inconsistency, the English version of this annual report shall
prevail over the Chinese version.
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OVERVIEW st

This annual environmental, social and governance (‘ESG”) report (the “ESG
Report”) provides an overview of the management approach as well as ESG
sustainability initiatives and performance of Eminence Enterprise Limited
(“‘Eminence”, “we” or “our”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for
the reporting period from 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021 (the “Year”).

REFRE - HERBAIRE  HLERKE
BD|E(RE eERERBREDBME L
EERAR(EWLIKEHMD) REHE AR
(T8 AT ANER )R 2020F4 18 20214
SASTHHIM(AEENZRE HERER

ERTTEHAR BB RAAR -

1.  REPORTING STANDARD AND SCOPE e

The ESG Report was prepared in accordance with the requirements of
the ESG Reporting Guide (the “ESG Guide”) set out in Appendix 27 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “HKEX”). The scope of the ESG Report covers
our principal business operations, including industrial, commercial
and residential properties in Hong Kong and industrial properties in
Mainland China which have the most significant impact on the Group’s
environmental and social performance.

For a full list of ESG aspects, respective key performance indicators
(“KPIs”) and their references within the ESG Report, an ESG Guide
content index is included on pages 64 to 67 of the ESG Report.

Materiality Assessment

During the Year, the Group conducted a materiality review to identify
and determine material ESG issues for disclosure by following a three-
step process:

Stage 15 —25:

e mmon disclosure practices.
T common disclosure practices

#F AR -

Stage 258 =25:

Prioritisation

#IIEX

Stage 3F =25:

Validation

BREREREE

RE #HEREARENRETER
ERGAERRB(EBERN])ES
AR RIBER — HEPEECGRIE - 4
BRERBEESD(RE - HERE
RS DREE - BE M@ RERRE
BERERMcETELEER  BF
BENTE BENETEVEARE
TEAME TEYE  ZEEBHAR
SEZRREIHGEUERRERN

By 488
-2

BHERRE HeRERTEZTET
xR ERESERER ((EREARE
BOREARE HERERBRETZ
2E  F2HARK  HERER/BRSE
FOAECTATHZCRE HERE
AMEESDARRS -

EEMRME

REAFEAR  AEBEBAT=ES
BRRETEEMES  UETMH
MBRBENRE HEREREH:

e Reviewed ESG disclosures of industry peers to identify

o BHRXAFAMNERE HEREGREEE - UEHTEEW

e Consolidated and analyzed the results of the peer benchmark-
ing exercise to develop a prioritized list of ESG issues of
varying materiality levels for confirmation.

o IREWHTEERARNEEARNER - UHE—RITEE
EURBINIRE - 8 REAZENBEIBIR AR o

e The Group's relevant departments convened an
online meeting to confirm a finalized list of material
KPIs for disclosure.

B o AEEZAWMPIBMB LS - UHERRKHE

REIERIIR (EREEFE -
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

At Eminence, corporate social responsibility (“CSR”) is an integral part
of our daily business operations. As we drive business growth, we
are committed to the responsible management of our environmental
footprint while creating long-term positive value for our stakeholders
and the community as a whole. Over the years, we have made
continuous efforts to maintain sound governance practices, build a
sustainable workforce and proactively participate different community
programmes.

A robust governance framework is essential to ensure material ESG
issues which are appropriately managed and incorporated in the
Group’s corporate agenda. The board of directors of Eminence (the
“Board”) provides strategic guidance on the Group’s business direction
and maintain oversight over the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems. The Board is responsible for the detailed monitoring
and regular updating of the Group’s ESG performance and day-to-
day operational execution of CSR policies which set out our long-term
sustainability goals and direction.

OUR ENVIRONMENT

3.1 Introduction
Eminence has consistently demonstrated our commitment to
the sustainable management of our environmental impacts
throughout our operations. In line with the Group’s policies, our
efforts mainly focus on energy efficiency, resource stewardship
and cultivation of environmental awareness among employees.

During the Year, there were no non-compliance cases relating
to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and
land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

RE HERER®S
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3.2

3.3

3.4

Energy Consumption and Emissions

As energy consumption in our managed properties and office
premises represents a significant proportion of our carbon
footprint, we remain attentive to different energy-saving
opportunities and adopt hardware upgrades to improve our
energy performance over time. Aside from our ongoing LED
light fixture replacement programme, we introduced automatic
switch-off timers at our properties to avoid unnecessary lighting.
We also adopted air-conditioning zoning to maintain controlled
indoor temperature setting which ensures a comfortable and
energy-efficient working environment. We turned off electrical
appliances and lights during lunch hours, after office hours and
for offices spaces not in use. For all new properties, we adopted
low emissivity or double-glazed windows which helped reduce
heat loss and optimize thermal insulation.

Waste and Resource Management

Proper resource management is an integral part of our
environmental stewardship. We work to build a paperless office
where the use of electronic communication and documents are
widely promoted. When hardcopy documents are necessary,
we encourage employees to practice double-sided printing
and reuse paper whenever possible. Additionally, recycling
collection points have been set up in all our major properties and
proper separation of recyclable materials such as paper, glass,
aluminium and plastic is encouraged.

To efficiently manage our water use, we have put in place
different water-saving measures. For instance, sensor water
taps, flow restrictors and dual flush toilets were installed at our
managed properties and office premises along with regular
inspections on pipes to further enhance water efficiency.

Cultivating Environmental Awareness

Raising environmental awareness is conducive to fostering
positive behavioural change. To guide employees on the
sustainable use of resources in their day-to-day operations, we
have posted signs and internal notices in common areas and
washrooms relating to energy, water and consumption of office
supplies.

3.2

3.3

3.4
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4. OURPEOPLE

4.1

4.2

Introduction

As our continued business success depends on a motivated
and stable workforce, we make great efforts to build an inclusive
and supportive work environment which facilitates personal
development and protects the health and well-being of all
employees.

Caring Company

Eminence works to ensure a workplace free from any prejudice
or discrimination, supporting fair employment practices based on
individual merit, experience and qualifications regardless of race,
religion, gender, disability, family status, age or any other basis
restricted by law. As a responsible employer, child and forced
labour are strictly prohibited within the Group’s operations and
along our supply chain.

To attract and retain every talented individual, competitive
remuneration packages and fringe benefits, including medical
health insurance and a range of leave entitlements, are offered.
Our human resources department is responsible for annual
performance appraisals and determines promotion arrangements
and salary increments. Furthermore, we fully support our
employees to maintain a good work-life balance by organizing
different staff activities such as festive celebrations and weekly
breakfasts and lunches. These enable employees to mingle
and communicate with each other outside of the regular work
environment.

During the Year, there were no cases of non-compliance
with relevant laws and regulations relating to compensation
and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, labour practices,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination and other benefits and welfare, and in compliance
with the relevant legislation including, but not limited to, the
Minimum Wage Ordinance (Chapter 608 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) and the Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws
of Hong Kong).

4. BEMWET

4.1

4.2
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4.3

4.4

Occupational Health and Safety

Ensuring the health and safety of our staff is a foremost task. In
compliance with the Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance
(Chapter 509 of the Laws of Hong Kong), safety guidelines and
systems are established to protect employees and minimize
potential occupational hazards across our operations. An
emergency protocol has also been established providing
guidance on standard procedures to handle extreme weather
situations such as typhoons and rainstorm warnings.

During the early stage of the COVID-19 pandemic in 2020, it was
difficult to obtain anti-epidemic supplies due to drastic increase
in demand; thus, we provided face masks, hand sanitizers
and mask folios to our employees. We also implemented spin-
off office arrangement to reduce the number of employees at
each office premise, and flexible working hours to avoid peak
transportation hours.

Amid the COVID-19 pandemic, we also took precautionary
measures to help containing spread of the disease and
to safeguard our employees, such as daily temperature
monitoring of all personnel entering into the office premises,
use of video conferencing platform, social medium tools and
electronic communication tools to keep internal and external
communications, and at the same time, uphold social distancing.

During the Year, there were no reported cases of non-
compliance with applicable occupational health and safety laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group.

Training and Development

To thrive in an ever-changing business environment, we
understand the importance of equipping staff with up-to-date
knowledge and suitable skill sets. Apart from tailoring our training
programmes to cater to the needs of employees from different
departments and at varied career stages, we also subsidize staff
to participate in different external training, including courses,
seminars and workshops to enhance their personal toolkits and
support their career advancement.

4.3

4.4
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Business Ethics

Eminence upholds the highest ethical standards and
accountability throughout our operations and has zero-tolerance
towards bribery or malpractice of any form. All staff members
are required to follow our Employee’s Handbook which details
our expectations for responsible business conduct. Staff is
also required to strictly comply with the Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance (Chapter 201 of the Laws of Hong Kong), Money
Lenders Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
and Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing
Ordinance (Chapter 615 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

Eminence has provided guidelines on preventing and detecting
activities related to money-laundering and terrorist financing and
to ensure compliance with relevant laws and regulations. As
part of our due diligence process, a group-level whistle-blowing
policy has been put in place, providing channels for employees
at all levels to report suspected violations and raise concerns of
any improper behaviour. To ensure whistle-blowers can raise
grievances without fear of reprisal, all whistle-blowing disclosures
are treated in strict confidence and submitted to designated
personnel for thorough investigation.

During the Year, there were no confirmed cases of non-
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations relating to
corrupt practices.

5.  OUR VALUE CHAIN

5.1

Supply Chain Management

In line with our supply chain management approach, we prioritize
business partners who share our sustainable practices and
ethical standards. To appropriately manage ESG-related risks
arising from our supply chain, we conduct regular audits and
assessments to ensure our stringent requirements are fully met.
Suppliers who fail to deliver the promised quality are subject to a
series of inspections and reviews. This holistic approach enables
us to better manage ESG-related risks arising from our supply
chain while building effective long-term relationships with our
partners.

4.5
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5.2 Responsible Services
In our endeavor to deliver quality and responsible services,
stringent mechanisms and procedures have been put in place
providing employees with relevant guiding principles in relation to
quality assurance, customer service and privacy. For instance, a
complaint-handling mechanism is in place to handle and address
customer concerns in a consistent and timely manner.

Additionally, we work to ensure the confidentiality of personal
data and information collected from our customers. We set out
clear privacy guidelines and procedures covering the use and
management of data and information in accordance with the
relevant regulatory requirements. Only authorized personnel
can access customer data on a need-to-know and need-to-use
basis.

During the Year, there were no complaint cases relating to health
and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to
products and services provided and methods of redress.

OUR COMMUNITY

Eminence is committed to contributing positively to the community we
serve. With special focuses on youth empowerment and community
wellness, we have developed long-term partnerships with charitable
organizations through which we offer in-kind and financial donations to
people in need.

As the youth are the leaders of tomorrow, we make great efforts to
empower the younger generation who is disadvantaged in learning with
opportunities in pursuit of higher education and future careers. Through
our scholarship programme, we provided financial support to different
educational institutes in Hong Kong and Mainland China, including
Principal Chan Free Tutorial World, J Life Foundation and Huzhou
Vocational & Technical College. Meanwhile, to better promote health
awareness amongst the public, we donated more than HK$413,000 to
the Global Chinese Breast Cancer Organizations Alliance in support of
their health-related campaigns.

During the Year, we contributed over HK$1,329,000 in community
investment.
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HKEX KPI DATA TABLE

HKEx KPI

BB TERENIER

A. Environmental
A BRI

7. A

Unit

[CEya

By

eh AN

9H 2K

FrERENERRER

FY2020/2021
20202021 8§ BUE &

A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total and intensity
BERBAFNEREE

Scope 1 emission Tonnes of CO.e 9.78
HEHEME WALk E S
Scope 2 emission Tonnes of CO.e 188.75
#HE2HEME WALk E S
Scope 3 emission Tonnes of CO.e 1.65
#HESHEE WE ALk E S
—in total Tonnes of CO.e 200.18
- e WE—AtiRE 8
= by intensity Tonnes of CO.e/FTE 3.23
- B R WA tirg e
ZRE2BEE
Al.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity

BEERYELREREREBE
Concrete tonne 8,601.70
RETL 148

tonne/FTE 138.74

WEERZBES
Paper Consumption kg 1,125
HIRHFE F
kg/FTE 18.15
Fr/ERZHES

Recycled Metal tonne 4,719.95
AEkEE Mg

tonne/FTE 76.13

W EREEES

We take into account the electricity used for processing fresh water by government i

departments.

HIZ BB AT EFIARERAKES -
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HKEx KPI Unit FY2020/2021
BRI TEARBENIEE By 20202021 B B & £
A2.1 Energy consumption by type and intensity
REBEASHNEFREERREE
Direct Energy Consumption
HERRES
- in total ’000 kWh 32.90
- NEEF FEF R F
- by intensity 000 KWh/FTE 0.53
- AR E & FRAFTRE
ZRzBES
Indirect Energy Consumption
MEsRFEE
- in total ’000 kWh 269.64
- LAEER T{E F FL B
- by intensity 000 kWh/FTE 4.35
- pmEE FEFRS,
ERE2BES
Total Energy Consumption
HBELRFER
- in total 000 kWh 302.54
- EEF FEF R F
- by intensity 000 KWh/FTE 4.88
- mEs TETRE,
ERzBES
A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity
BFEKEREE
Water Consumption
FEKE
- in total m? 4,110
= LAEER SR
- by intensity m¥/FTE 66.29
= IAZ EEt MHK/EREBES
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HKEx KPI Unit FY2020/2021
BB ARARERIER By 20202021 B B & E
B. Social
B. &g
B1.1 Total workforce by employment type and gender Male Female
REBREARMANESNESHEH St 7t
Full-time Number of people 38 24
Eai3 AE
Part-time Number of people 0 0
R AEK
Total workforce by employment type and age group Under 30-50 Above
REBERARFRERZSNESREH 30 30mE 50
307% 505% 505%
AT Ak
Full-time Number of people 5 17 40
s N
Part-time Number of people 0 0 0
R AE
B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender Male Female
RUEFEDNEERALLE St g
% 11% 4%
Employee turnover rate by age group Under 30-50 Above
RERMAR B D NESRALLE 30 50
305% 30 % 505%
AR 505% LAk
% 0% 6% 10%
B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities
EIEEEMETHABRLEER
- By number Number of people 0
S LAABGT ABL
- By rate % 0%
-
B2.2 Lost days due to work injury
EIGEATERH
- Staff Days 0
- &T L
B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received
EEERERRBRENIRFHEE
Number of complaints 0
AR EE
B7.1 Number of concluded cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the company
HARNARBECSEENESTHRARGNEE
Number of cases 0
RUHBE
B8.2 Resources contributed
HIRE R
Donations (HK$) 1,329,818
BRECET)




EMINENCE ENTERPRISE LIMITED - Annual Report 2021

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERRE

8. HKEX ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX 8. EBEBIAMURE 1HEBRERR
Hi55)RARRLI

HKEx
KPI Description Page(s)/Remarks
=B
Bm BRENEE | #H B A
A. Environmental
A R
Al Al General Disclosure 55-56
Emissions —REEE
HEE Al.1 The type of emissions and respective emissions data Due to the business
BE & 58 I 4B B HE B EUR nature of the
Group, this KPI
is considered not
material.
ERAEER X
ME - LLEARER
BEEARRBIE
K o
A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total and intensity 61
BERBRFMERTR
A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and intensity Due to the business
FMEXEEREENBEERTE nature of the
Group, this KPI
is considered not
material.
ERAEER XD
ME - LERARAER
EIFRRRBIE
K o
Al.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity 61
FELBEEREENEENTE
A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results 56
achieved
HEIURE R IR B FE i R P BCR
A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes 56
are handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved
HAREEERBEEEENN AL  REEEENERK
FrigRCR
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HKEx
KPI Description Page(s)/Remarks
BB
B BRERIEE | Mt BE B
A2 A2 General Disclosure 55-56
Use of Resources —MREE
ARER A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total 62
and intensity
RREAESHNEER SEEEREEERTE
A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity 62
BFEKERTE
A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results 56
achieved
it B IR R FA R e 5T 8l R RS AR
A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water 56
that is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results
achieved
HUSKEVGE KR E AT B EAIRRE - LA RBAAKEEEET
ZI N PrigR
A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products and, if| Due to the business
applicable, with reference to per unit produced nature of the
YR MATABEEMRNEER(ER) BEEEMNE Group, this KPI
is considered not
material.
ERAEBR XD
ME - LERARAER
EIRRRRBENE
K o
A3 A3 General Disclosure 55-56
The Environment and —RRIRER
Natural Resources A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the 55-56

RENARER

environment and natural resources and the actions taken
to manage them
HMEHEDERERRAABERNEATZEREHFNER
BT ENITE
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HKEx
KPI Description Page(s)/Remarks
BB A
=] BARERIEE | Mt BHE fha
B. Social
B. &g
B1 B1 General Disclosure 56-57
Employment —RRIRE
1E 1R B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group 63
and geographical region
RIER - EEED - FRARI RIME S 58 E 8 A
B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and 63
geographical region
RIER - FEAR RIDEE D M E B RAE
B2 B2 General Disclosure 57-58
Health and Safety — MR EE
(e B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities 63
H TIERE R ML T8 ABR R LE 3
B2.2 Lost days due to work injury 63
EIGEATIEARH
B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures 57-58
adopted, how they are implemented and monitored
H TR B R R R 2 - AREERITRER
DAl
B3 B3 General Disclosure 58
Development and —RRIEEE
Training
R RIET
B4 B4 General Disclosure 57
Labour Standards —RHE
TR
B5 B5 General Disclosure 59
Supply Chain —RH R
Management

iy
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HKEx
KPI Description Page(s)/Remarks
BB T
=] BRENEE | #H BH e
B6 B6 General Disclosure 59
Product Responsibility — MR
EmAft B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints 59, 63

received and how they are dealt with

BEMANE D RRERIRFE B A REE T A
B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy 60
policies, how they are implemented and monitored

HEBEEERRERLEBRE - URBEERITRERT

=
B7 B7 General Disclosure 59
Anti-corruption —RRIETE
KA B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt 63

practices brought against the issuer or its employees during
the reporting period and the outcomes of the cases
RERBAHBEITASARBERETESENETHAR
eV B E REFAER

B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing 59
procedures, how they are implemented and monitored
B SR E R RBRF - UAREERITRERFE

B8 B8 General Disclosure 60
Community Investment —RRIRER
R A B8.1 Focus areas of contribution 60
BT ERER
B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus 60, 63
area

EETHEMERNER(NSEREH)
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Deloitte

TO THE MEMBERS OF EMINENCE ENTERPRISE LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Eminence
Enterprise Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the “Group”) set out on pages 75 to 220, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2021, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2021, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

=ED

HASLEEXAERIAME
(REFZEAMAK )R F])
=R

R EED (A T RBIEM) BBV SN E
75E220B MBI EBRAB A TEREBIE
AR EREMBAGATHBIEE®E]) 4R
AU HE - EBER2021F3A31 B MER
BMBRAKREBEZALFENREEE
REMEERZEX  GERZEBHRNLE
ReERER  URGEMBWMEWT - 821
FESHERHE -

BMRE  ZEREUBEHRRECBRERES
AR g((BEestMAg)BHHNEBHT
BHREEA((BEFHHRELADEEMR
FiREET BEBMK2021F3A31HMER
EMBRARBEZB LFENRAEVER
BREGRERE WO HBBEBQEEN
B R B SR AR o

ERVER

BMERBERSHMASRONEERG
R ([FBEF LR DETER - RAOEZ
FSRANTHAENBEEEEARE AZEA L
B AU BRRAENEET D e —
TR - RETESHMAGRMNELS
sHEnERTRIOATERISFAID) - BB
B EEE YEBRTTFATHHEMERE
£ - BPHEERMMESNERIREETE
KA RRMNES TR EER -
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RREFEFRASRBERMNERHE - RE
HAMGAMBRENEARAEENS
B BUEZHREAERMETBRBEAMHE R
REHABRRETREN - BHATSYHE
LEEREHEBNER



KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

BARETEE

Valuation of investment properties

REYFEZ14E

We identified the valuation of investment properties as
a key audit matter due to the significant judgments and
assumptions made by management of the Group in
determining the fair value.

B E5EEEEREBEEQFERYRERZ AR RE
R BB REMEZ BER—ABRETFE -

At 31 March 2021, the fair value of investment properties was
approximately HK$1,285 million (note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements), with a fair value loss recognised in
profit or loss of approximately HK$19 million (consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income).
2021 3A318 - REMHE R TF{EA1,285,000,000%
TR E M B|MERMT16) REZERZ A FEERED
19,000,000/ 7T (5 & Em M A M2 E K ER)

The Group’s investment properties are stated at fair value
based on valuations performed by independent firms of
qualified professional property valuers (the “Valuers”).
Details of the valuation techniques and key inputs used in
the valuations are disclosed in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.
EEEREMEZLNTENIREBEB LG EREXAERMT
(MEEMDIELE ZEENT - AEMRBZAEREREE
BABIE . FBEERGE M BMKRMT16MEKE -
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HMWET I RERREETER

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of investment
properties included:

HMEREMEZGEZRRERF 81

Obtaining an understanding from the Valuers and
management of the Group about the valuation techniques,
performance of the property markets, significant
assumptions adopted, critical judgmental areas, key inputs
and data used in the valuations;

REEmMER ESXEERETHREERE  WETSR
B FRAZEERS  FZ2HEHEHE - fEMRAZ
FEm A REUE

Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity of
the Valuers;

HEMERMNER  EHRFEBIIL

Assessing the integrity of information provided by
management of the Group to the Valuers by comparing,
on a sample basis, details of rentals to the respective
underlying existing lease agreements; and
FRAMETALBREBREAN 2 E2F 1B AR
it BESEEEEERMGEMAIRMENZ TBIE &

Assessing reasonableness of key inputs used by the
Valuers and management of the Group by comparing with
relevant market information with similar properties, and
assessing the appropriateness of specific assumptions
make on adjustments of the properties by reference to
character, location and other individual factors which affect
the valuation of properties.

FBLEBEAYENRBAT S ER - A GEMMR
SEERERANTIERANGEN  W2ELEYE
BEMNFLE CEMAMERNREZE  FHEDEREE

HOEERREEEE -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

BRETEE

Assessment of net realisable value of properties held for
development for sale (“PUD”)

I E BB YR 2 fT# B FE ([1FEH ERBEYFE])
We identified the assessment of the net realisable value of
PUD as a key audit matter due to the significant judgments
and assumptions made by management of the Group in
determining the net realisable value.

MRS EE R BT A 2B FERELERAB R
& FAER M EBEL SRR E R Z R FENTERE
ERBEESAEE -

The Group’s PUD were stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. The estimates of net realisable value are
determined based on best available information and with
reference to valuations made, less the anticipated costs to
completion and costs necessary to make the sales.
AEBENFELEERYERBANMA ZHRFEHHBE
FHR o AR FENGG EERKERIREEL2EMR
i B R AR 25 TR AT O S8 AR 7R K% i B 3 68 P 38 2 A 7 T e
TEH]

At 31 March 2021, the carrying amount of PUD was
approximately HK$2,754 million (note 19 to the consolidated
financial statements), with write-down on PUD recognised in
profit or loss of approximately HK$63 million (consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income).

M2021F3A31H  HIEHEERMENREFENOR
2,754,000,0008 7T (47 & B R R MIzE19) - R B PR

BY R 5 B R ) 3R E 40 563,000,000/ 7T (R & 185 &
Hth2EKER) °

The calculation of net realisable value of each PUD is
performed by an independent firm of qualified professional
property valuers (the “Valuer”). Appropriate write-down for
estimated irrecoverable amount is recognised in profit or loss
when the net realisable value is below cost. Actual realised
amount may differ from estimates, resulting in a decrease or
an increase in the net realisable value of the PUD for sale and
additional write-down or reversal of write-down previously
recognised may be required.
tﬂ%ﬁﬁE%E%¥m7“ﬁ@EMJ“Emﬁiﬂﬁ
SERNEEE M ENERE ([FHEA D) BITE - B
ﬁgﬁﬁ#&$ﬁ'¢ﬁﬁE£W@m%ﬁmmﬂ@iE
meo BERERMNEHErEEGHANSEARTR - EmE
ﬁﬁ%m%¢ﬁ¢¥E%¥mT“ﬁ@Eﬂ/ﬁ%m'ﬁ
B PTRE T ST RSN A S BORR 8 SR AT RERR A8 o

BERETERE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HMWET AR ERREETER

Our procedures in relation to the net realisable value of PUD
included:

BRI EHERRMENTZIEFENRZF B

. Obtaining an understanding from the Valuer and
management of the Group about the valuation techniques,
performance of the property markets, significant
assumptions adopted, critical judgmental areas, key inputs
and data used in the valuations;
FEEMMEEEERETHREERN  FHET SR
B RANEERS  EEMEES - AREANG
B ERANEE

o Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity of
the Valuer;

b A ER R - BE N MF B

o Testing, on a sample basis, the actual development costs
by tracing to construction contracts, certificates and
invoices;

MBENETIER  FENRE  HEBENRERARE
TR

. Assessing, on a sample basis, the reasonableness and
appropriateness of the management’s estimated costs of
completion by reviewing terms and conditions of the signed
construction contracts, inspecting the contract sum and
budget information, and assessing the appropriateness of
changes in the estimated costs of completion by inspecting
the supporting documents including signed construction
contracts and certificates; and
LL%EE S ENRESRBNIERTMEHE  BEERS
BNMBEEEEARMMETIEEERZHNESE - N
Twﬁt%ﬁaﬁﬁmmiﬁiémmA@Eﬂm#E

BAREHEXY  BEEINEISRNES R

o Assessing reasonableness of key inputs used by the Valuer
and management of the Group by comparing with relevant
market information with similar properties.
BREAFAUMENEBTISERETHER - FHE M
EMANAEEERECRANEEZRANSEL -



KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

BARETEE

Impairment assessment of loans receivable
FEWE T 2 B E 7T

We identified the impairment assessment of loans receivable
as a key audit matter due to the significance of balances
to the Group’s consolidated financial position and the
involvement of significant management judgment in evaluating
the expected credit losses of loans receivable at the end of
the reporting period.

HREKRERE HEEEZEAPBRREER LT H
RENERIR Z B ER 2 RREEBER S RERERE
i - BAPIER R E R R ER G R TR S FE -

As detailed in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements,
in making the assessment, the loans receivable from
borrowers are assessed individually by the management
of the Group, based on the financial background, financial
condition and historical settlement records, including
past due dates and default rates, of each borrower and
reasonable and supportable forward-looking information
such as macroeconomic data that is available without undue
cost or effort. Each borrower is assigned a risk grading under
internal credit ratings to calculate the expected credit loss,
taking into consideration of the estimates of expected cash
shortfalls. At every reporting date, the financial background,
financial condition and historical settlement records are
reassessed and relevant information from public domain and
changes in the forward-looking information are considered.
MANER S PR AR M R 4PA R - BRI - BEEE
ERBEERBRERAZHBES  HBRRLBEER
E BEAMARENR  UREAEAEBZANELEE
B Bl BREIEB RNV ER AN N A S 2 BB B H
B BIUMEBERAZEBKRER - SERARBABEE
ARESEERER  UAEEHEEBE  RRKEER
HAERRSER NEREEY  EFFEHBER
SRR SRR BRI Z B R H B 2 HEE S A
BB EE -

At 31 March 2021, the carrying amount of loans receivable
was approximately HK$130 million net of accumulated
impairment allowance of approximately HK$61 million (note
17 to the consolidated financial statements).
M2021F3A31H  EEKARE(E4)130,000,000% 7T
($0Bk REHRE R £61,000,00078 7T (47 A B 15 R & M =
17)) e
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BERETERE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HMWET I RERREETER

Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment of loans

receivable included:

R B E R BER S BRER TR

Understanding the Group’s policy on granting loans to
its borrowers and the Group’s credit and impairment
assessments including the related credit control and loan
monitoring process;

THR BEEERLEERTFERALBREFHEHOBEE 8
EHEANEEEERERETRRF

Evaluating the management’s assessment on the credit
quality of the borrowers by examining records including
financial background, current creditworthiness, collateral
and past collection history of the borrowers and relevant
information from public domain;
HEEEEALEHERERAVBESR BRESE -
ERDRBAEBRBER CHEATEBERAZEEE R
RAFEBEF ZEBRER

Checking the past due dates of outstanding loans
receivable against the loan agreements for the terms of
the loans to identify any significant change in credit risk or
default in loans receivable;

BEERHEZ ERETIREREZRKERNEAHHE
B ABERKEREERRIGENBR 2 ERERE
&

Testing the integrity of information used by management to
develop the impairment assessment of the loans receivable
as at year-end by checking the historical settlement
records on a sample basis;
BBHMEREERCHE AR B IEE N FRET R
ERBEN AR ER 2 TR

Evaluating the expected cash shortfalls estimated by
the management by checking the expected cash flows
from the realisation of collaterals received against publicly
available information; and
BBLARAGENRESERERERMZERRERE
M EREMG 2 TRRR SRR &

Assessing the reasonableness of forward-looking
information used by the Group.

FHE BEEEMEAAETER ZARIE -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED
WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

ERAEZFHHMES i)
BHNERFRANEE  ETRESEMHE
HRRBFIORBE RS -

m
il
p
P&
i
Cct

BPEEAMBHRRNBERLL MREEME
B BT EZEFEMERBEREMER

EVEERE MM o

EARMEGEMBRERNET  HMANE
ERUEEMES R  HElBES  EEH
EERE MG E B mRARMERTB
RHAEENBEAFEENEBXEUFE
HERFERRANBR - F - ERRMASH
TOTE  HARBEMEBFEERHR
Bt BB EREXFE - EEHE - &
8B EmFRE -

EZNAEERGRS M BRRAREN
BfE

ERAREFABRAREEEGIMAGHEM
BB MM EER REB R BGINRE
EREHBEABMAFOEAMBHRE LY
ERRBEGEVBRERNBENFEAR
AP RME BN EAERECLAF A
MEHEE -

ERBREVBREE  EFARNE &
SESBAKENRED  YTEERBRTRE
HRFECLERANER  URERKAKE
REHER RIEEFEH BEKEER
HIFLLEE - HRIBEMBRAOERTER -

RREREEEE BESEENYBREBE
2 .



SIWEEERAT - 2021 F3R

I

Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section
90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’'s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor’s
report is Leung Chui Shan.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

23 June 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

ReEsEkEMEEKRER

For the year ended 31 March 2021 & £202143A31HILFE

2021 2020
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
k3 FBr FHL
Revenue BEE 5
Rental income HalA 45,276 47,694
Management fee income EREWA 16,033 13,448
Interest income from loan financing REEHREZFBWA 18,944 19,540
80,253 80,682
Cost of services rendered RERREH A (3,738) (4,227)
76,515 76,455
Other income Ef A 7 6,614 9,141
Other losses HiEE (893) (354)
Other expenses HhF (1,051) (1,467)
Administrative expenses ABRY (44,694) (52,472)
Net loss on modification of terms of FYAHBRRBRESR 2 BRFE
convertible notes 24 (81,849) (37,526)
Loss on early redemption of convertible note REPBEOTBRER BB 24 (8,406) =
Loss on changes in fair value of investment REWME N TEEH 2 EE
properties 16 (18,530) (66,623)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB ARz ke 35 = 57,511
Release on disposal of debt instruments HERATEFALMGEE
at fair value through other comprehensive Ygs 2 &7 T AR RERR
income 295 (969)
Write-down on properties held for BELEEBMEZRNE
development for sale, net of reversal HBREEE 19 (63,065) (134,309)
Impairment loss on financial assets, net: SREERERE FE
- Loans receivable - EWE T 17 (45,685) (6,581)
- Debt instruments at fair value through - RATE A2 EKES
other comprehensive income ZBEBIA (55) (456)
Net gain (loss) on changes in fair value of BATFEFABEZEREE
financial assets at fair value through profit ZATEZEE(BE)FE
or loss 18,744 (20,429
Finance costs BERA 9 (28,683) (31,578)
Loss before taxation BREIAIEE (190,743) (209,657)
Taxation I 10 9,950 3,465
Loss for the year attributable to owners of ARRIRREEAEREE
the Company 11 (180,793) (206,192)
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2021 2020
NOTE HK$’000 HK$'000
FisE TET FEL
Other comprehensive income (expense) Htn2EWA i)
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently BEETBEE B E R
to profit or loss: BEH -
Exchange differences arising on translation REGINEERIBERELZ
of financial statements of foreign ERER
operations 35,374 (31,859
Change in fair value of debt instruments BATEG AR MEEREZ
at fair value through other comprehensive BHEIAZNTFELZE
income 976 (4,946)
Release on disposal of debt instruments HERATEF AL MEZE
at fair value through other comprehensive Wiz 2 BT ARG
income (295) 969
Impairment loss on debt instruments at fair HABEZEATEFARM
value through other comprehensive 2ENEZEBTIARESRE
income included in profit or loss 55 456
Other comprehensive income (expense) AEEEMZERAFER)
for the year 36,110 (35,380)
Total comprehensive expense for the year ARRRREEAFEREFAY
attributable to owners of the Company ek (144,683) (241,572)
Loss per share SREE
- Basic &K 13 HK(19.41) cents &l HK(70.68) cents /&1l
- Diluted -#g 13 HK(19.41) cents &1l HK(70.68) cents 7fll
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
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At 31 March 2021 7202143 H31H

2021 2020
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt FTHAT FAT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE &R 14 5,643 6,780
Right-of-use assets EREEE 15 5,884 1,013
Investment properties HEYE 16 1,285,074 1,262,573
Loans receivable W E R 17 3,070 8,616
Financial assets at fair value through profit BRAFEFABSZEMEE
or loss 21 16,137 21,951
Debt instruments at fair value through BATEF AL EZERE
other comprehensive income BEFTA 18 29,852 32,528
Deferred tax assets ERERIEEE 27 8,250 =
Other receivables Hfh FEWGRIA 20 103,160 66,741
1,457,070 1,400,202
Current assets mMENVEE
Properties held for development for sale BENEEEDE 19 2,754,027 2,441,200
Trade and other receivables B 5 R E A e WURIE 20 28,162 16,705
Loans receivable U E SR 17 127,109 321,353
Financial assets at fair value through profit BATEAABSZEREE
or loss 21 128,448 62,143
Debt instruments at fair value through BATEF AL EEREZ
other comprehensive income fEEIE 18 6,261 3,623
Bank balances and cash RITESRRA S 22 112,260 357,767
3,156,267 3,202,791
Current liabilities ik JE=KE
Trade and other payables 25 REMEMNIE 23 109,045 104,166
Tax payable FERTRIR 9,169 8,839
Convertible notes AR E R 24 13,417 45,431
Secured bank borrowings BEMBITEE 25 436,348 379,177
Lease liabilities HERE 26 2,442 1,031
570,421 538,644
Net current assets mEEEFE 2,585,846 2,664,147
Total assets less current liabilities BEGHARDARG 4,042,916 4,064,349
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2021 2020
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt = FAT FHET
Non-current liabilities FRBERE
Deferred tax liabilities RIEHIBEEE 27 34,812 27,647
Convertible note EE:S e 24 44,747 42,270
Secured bank borrowings BEMBITEE 25 1,078,585 1,052,563
Lease liabilities HEBE 26 3,479 =
1,161,623 1,122,480
2,881,293 2,941,869
Capital and reserves ERRREE
Share capital B 28 186,291 186,291
Reserves S 2,695,002 2,755,578
2,881,293 2,941,869
The consolidated financial statements on pages 75 to 220 were approved BEEN2021F6A23B M ERIRERRE
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 23 June 2021 and are TEE220E AWK HRE WA TIES
signed on its behalf by: RERFEF
Lai Law Kau Lui Yuk Chu
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

EE EE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEERBER

For the year ended 31 March 2021 & £202143A31HILFE

Convertiole Investment Property Share  Accumulated
Share Share  note equity Coptal ~ Contrbuted ~ Exchange  revaluaion  revaluation options profts
capttal premium esene Tesene surplus Tesene fesene Tesene Tesene (losses) Total
TERER REEfh  WEER Bl Zned
Ry ROEE  EREE  RERE  8ABR ENRK i £ i (F8) 4%
HK$'000 HKS 000 HKS000 HK000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR T ThR TR Tin Tin Tin TR TR TR
At 1 Apr 2019 201954718 20058 2,016,148 56,046 53,194 261,126 14,900 798 40624 1,257 199859 2734170
Exchange difieences arising on tansleion of - 4B SN EERBERE 2
financial statements of foreign oprations ~~ EREE - - - - - (31,859) - - - = (31,859)
Change i airvalue of debtinstruments at - RATEA AE 2 EREZ
value through other comprehensive income BB T2 ATEEY - - - - - - (4.946) = = = (4946)
Release on disposal of debtinstuments ~ ERATEF AL HREMEZ
atfair value through other comprehensive. T AB#R
income - - - - - - %69 - - - 969
Impairment loss on debt nstruments at i~ StABRZRATEHAEMZE
value through other comprehensive Wiz BRTIAAEER
income included in proft or loss - - - - - - 456 - - - 456
Loss forthe year KEEEE - - - - - - - = -1 (0619
Total comprehensive expense for theyear ~ AEE2ERR 48 - - - - - (31.859) (3521) = S 619 45T
Recognion of equity component of BT EREE RER A
convertble notes - - 30213 - - - - - - - 30213
Deferred tax labity on recognifon of equity ~ BERARRERE 2 BERAE 2
component of convertble notes ERHEERE < = 4989) = = = = = = = 4989)
Transfer upon modifcation o temns of FHTRREERRER
convertible note - - (48,710) - - - - - - 48710 -
Defered tax abiltes released upon FYTRREERTHERER
modifcation of terms of convertiole note HERE - - 6,132 o = = o = o © 6,132
Recogrition upon modifcation of terms of ~~ EA ARZ KA
convertiole note - - 42456 - - - - - - - 42456
Defored tax iablty on recogniion of equity ~ E S ARZ R AR ER
component upon modifcation of i ERRERE
terms of convertible note: - - (7,008) - - - - - - - (7,008)
Issue of shares on conversion of FETARRERE AR
convertble note 7,600 38,000 (22418 - - - - - - - 23,182
Defered tax iabilty refeasedt upon HETHRZERERET
conversion o converle note HEak = = 3699 s s = = = = = 3699
Rights issue of shares ity 149,033 206,546 - - - - - - - - 365,579
Transfer upon expiry of share options EiRiEs g - S = = S = = = (1,257) 1257 =
A Merch 200 RSN 01 208% K08 KM BUBD (6% Y 6 - B 2380
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Convertible Investment Property Share - Accumulated

Share Share  note equity Capital  Contributed ~ Exchange  revaluation  revaluation options profits

capital premium reserve reserve surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve (losses) Total
TRREZE REEH  NRER BRE 2R

B BEER  EsBRE  RARE HABR  ERGR Ci Ei e (&) 2
HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO0D  HKSO00  HKSOOD  HKS000  HKSOOD  HKS000  HKSO0D  HKS000  HK§000
TEn Thn Thn Thn TR TR Tin Tin TEn TEn Thn

At 31 March 2020 RONEIAA 186201 2,320,694 56,028 53,194 261,126 (16,959) (2,763) 40,624 - 43634 2,941,869
Exchange differences arsing on translation of - B 55V EERBT B

financialstatements of foregn operations ~~ FRZEZZE - c c > > 35374 = = = = 35374
Change i fir value of debt instruments at fair - RAF AL 2 AN B

value through other comprehensive noome. ~ TEZATEZE c o 976 c 976
Release on disposal of debtinstuments ot~ HERAFEFAZMRENEL

fair value through other comprefensive EEIARER

income - - (295) - (295)
Impaiment loss on debtinstuments atfar A& BATEHALBRE

value through other comprehensive Wiz BRI REER

income included in proft or loss - - 55 - 5
Loss for the year TEREE = = S (180,793) (180,799
Total comprehensive income (p¥pense) TERRER LR

for e year - %374 7% (160799 (144683
Early redemption of convertible note REBETARZE (2,085) = = - (2,085)
Transfer upon early redemption of REBOTARZERER

convertible note (16,397) - - 16,397 S
Deforred tax bities released upon ealy ~ REBREARRZERER

redemption of convertble note ERHERRE 1,730 = = - 1,730
Transfer upon modifcation of temns of FHTARREATRER

convertible notes (43,876) - - 43876 -
Defered tax ablties released upon FYTAREERRER

modication of terms of converblenotes ~ EREHEA(E 4,580 & & = 4580
Recogiton upon modifcation of terms of ~~ EMARRE G RERD

convertile notes 95,643 - - - 95,643
Deferred tax fabity on recognifon of eqity - EMAARS B EEDER

component upon modifcation oftems of AR ERERER(E

convertiole notes (15,781) - - - (15,781)
At31 March 2021 R0 E3A31H 79,862 18415 (2,027) (76,686) 2,881,293
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The capital reserve of the Group represents the credit arising from the
reduction of share capital of the Company in March 2004 and September
2005 and can be applied in the future for distribution to the shareholders.

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the credit arising from the
reduction of share capital of the Company in February 2003, October 2009,
December 2012, November 2013, October 2014, March 2015 and October
2015, part of which was applied to set off against accumulated losses of the
Company in October 2009, December 2012, November 2013, October 2014,
March 2015 and October 2015. The balance may be utilised by the directors
in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws and all applicable laws, including
to eliminate the accumulated losses of the Company.

The property revaluation reserve of the Group represents the gain on
revaluation of certain leasehold properties and prepaid lease payments of the
Group when these leasehold properties and prepaid lease payments were
transferred to investment properties.

KEBZBAREBER KRR R2004F3A
K 2005F9 A ABIRRAFTELE Z#ERR » 7]
AR DR FALE ©

REBZHABBREKARQAN2003F2
A ~ 2009104 ~ 20129127 + 20134 11
A 20149108 - 20153 A %2015 10 A
BIRAR AN BF FTE A2 2 HEBR - B 2 720094
108 ~ 20124128 - 2013F 118 20144
108 - 201543 A K2015F10 A B EIK s
RElZ RETEE - ESTRBARAERA
BIRFIB#EA AN TAERZLES - 25
LMK SEAR A Rl 2 RETESHE -

AEBEZMEEHRBRERERAEEEHELE
MELBANEERRERENERSHET
HEYE RFENEEREZ W -
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2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Operating activities e
Loss before taxation B AT E R (190,743) (209,657)
Adjustments for: LR
Bank interest income SRITHI BN (1,166) (2,885)
Interest income from debt instruments at fair BAFEG AR MZEREZ
value through other comprehensive income BERTAZFEWA (2,151) (2,416)
Interest expense F B 28,683 31,578
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BERREBEZIE 1,404 1,289
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEZITE 2,470 2,431
Net loss on modification of terms of convertible FRAHRRER G2 BB
notes pEik] 81,849 37,526
Loss on early redemption of convertible note RRER T RREE 2R 8,406 =
Loss on write-off property, plant and equipment WeEmE J??rﬁb‘%& 1% ZER 44 306
Loss on changes in fair value of investment REMFEZ R
properties B8 18,530 66,623
Impairment loss on loans receivable, net W ERZRERSE - T8 45,685 6,581
Impairment loss on debt instruments at fair value BATEFAEMEZERE
through other comprehensive income B TEZREERE 55 456
Write-down on properties held for development BIEHSREMEZRE -
for sale, net of reversal TDI‘%%%E 63,065 134,309
(Gain) loss on changes in fair value of financial assets $1E SIABGEZEREEY
at fair value through profit or loss %(Mﬂz 5)E1E (18,744) 20,429
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries H ’% Mﬂ% - (67,511)
Release on disposal of debt instruments at fair H %?ﬁ@%ﬁ%ﬂ\ﬁﬁ%@i{&f\éz
value through other comprehensive income B T AKRRR (295) 969
Dividend income from listed investments EiiREzREMA (1,569) (1,741)
Operating cash flows before movements in working RTEEESBDRICKLERS
capital meE 35,523 28,287
Increase in properties held for development for sale FELERRYELM (160,383) (315,962)
Increase in trade and other receivables = %&Hﬁtﬁ WK IR 3 h (67,131) (69,953)
Decrease (increase) in loans receivable W E TR A (38 hn) 115,145 (2,022)
Increase in financial assets at fair value through N ’fﬁ.ﬁr)\?ﬁ mZ e REEEM
profit or loss (30,919) (3,559)
Increase (decrease) in trade and other payables B 5 KA FRIEE 0 O ) 8,991 (14,010)
Cash used in operations ReEBEzRE (98,774) (877,219)
Income tax paid Eﬁﬁﬁ S8 (1,965) (2,077
Dividend received from financial assets at fair value RERATESNABRZEREELZ
through profit or loss [REAE 5N 1,569 1,741
Net cash used in operating activities REEER 2 REFE (99,170) (377,555)
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2021 2020
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
FiaE FTHAT FAT
Investing activities REE
Net cash outflow on acquisition of properties BERMENEARBA
held for development for sale through BIELEEREMEZ
acquisition of subsidiaries BERHFE 34 (191,810) (500,828)
Purchase of financial assets at fair value BARAFERABRZZ
through profit or loss SREE (110,233) (131,056)
Purchase of debt instruments at fair value BARAFENAEMEZE
through other comprehensive income W ERTE (33,113) (38,206)
Additions of investment properties REREYE (19,236) (6,378)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BADE  BE KRG (295) (4,664)
Net cash (outflow) inflow on disposal of HE—RBHBRARZES
a subsidiaries (RED)RAFEE 35 (77) 360,997
Proceeds from disposal/maturity of financial HeE B ESRAFERTA
assets at fair value through profit or loss Bl eMEEFEFIE 110,739 147,061
Proceeds from disposal of debt instruments BRAFEF AL 2 ERE
at fair value through other comprehensive ZEBTIAREZME
income HE 34,161 11,830
Deposit received from disposal of subsidiaries HEWNBARZERZSE 10,000 =
Interest received YA E 8,470 9,286
Withdrawal of bank deposits with original REGEA =8B 2IH 2 R1T
maturity of more than three months 73 = 12,763
Net cash used in investing activities ARREES 2 REFEE (191,394) (139,195)
Financing activities BERE
Bank borrowings raised EEBITIEE 617,810 585,240
Repayment of bank borrowings BRIBITIEE (534,703) (228,101)
Interest paid BAFE (37,413) (46,331)
Repayment of lease liabilities EEHEEE (2,451) (2,413)
Proceeds from rights issue of shares BITHR 2 TS 50E = 359,915
Proceeds from issue of convertible notes BITAIRER 2 T3 50R = 70,000
Transaction costs attributable to rights issue BITHBRRD 2 X SR
of shares - (4,336)
Net cash from financing activities REMEFB 2R FHE 43,243 733,974
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents 4 & ERIHE 2 %5 0R)
En (247,321) 217,224
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of FzRekERRE
the year 357,767 141,582
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes INERERE S B 1,814 (1,039)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of FRzBSRERRS
the year, represented by bank balances ERITHBRAS
and cash 112,260 357,767
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GENERAL

Eminence Enterprise Limited (the “Company”; the Company and its
subsidiaries are collectively referred to as the “Group”) is incorporated
in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited liability and its
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and
the principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
“Corporate Information” section of the annual report.

During the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2021, the Company was
an associate of Easyknit International Holdings Limited (“Easyknit
International”), an exempted company incorporated in Bermuda with its
shares also listed on the Stock Exchange. At 31 March 2021, Easyknit
International had 29.60% (2020: 27.47%) of the issued share capital of
the Company. Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, Easyknit
International acquired additional equity interest in the Company through
cash offer (see note 41), the shareholding increased to 74.76% at date
of approval of consolidated financial statements and the Company
became a subsidiary of Easyknit International.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in note 40.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$” or “HKD”) which is also the functional currency of the
Company.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the
current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the Amendments to
References to the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards and the
following amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time, which are
mandatorily effective for the annual period beginning on or after 1 April
2020 for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKAS 1 and Definition of Material
HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 Reform

Definition of a Business

—mEs
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REWEARGEAIAEE)NEAR
ERMRARBEERAR - 2R
BEBABARBHRAERAF(HX
FiD) L5 o A IREE N B A FIE
e S R NI
DB -

M2020K2021F3A31HIEFEH
M ARRAXKEEBREEFRA A
(CkEEBRDOBERR  —HRAER
EaM U mERE AT - HRH IR
REERZFr £ - 20214638318 -
KEBBEESARAAGEBHITRAD
29.60%(2020%F : 27.47%) ° MEHIK
% KERBRSBESEHREAR
BIEESNRHE (R EE41) RIRA BT
MEMAEZ AR ABEET4.76% -
RAARKAKEEREZ —BHEBQ
aj °

ARRRBREERAR - RAREE
BB A RIA) = ERBE M40

mePBRRIAET(DETIET])
25 BT AARBNNEER -

EREETEBMBREEN(E
B R EZER)

RAEERHERZEETEBHE
R AR

RAFE  AEBEHRXERATEEY
BREERP US| BB BT HREE
AL S AERME T R AT BB 5D
AE(BESHMARE ) BHNEE
BmEEREE] - WX BE2020F4 A1
Az kAN FEEHHEZEFEE
SEHIE - ARRES I HRE

EREHEAERREAGH EBAZES
ERIFER 2 EATA

BEMBREEREIR2EAL FBES

BEMBREERER  &F  NEEE
ERREIERS S R
ERETRZETA



SWWEEERAT - 2021 F3R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R M R

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #{Z=20214F3A31H It F &

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the
current year (Continued)

Except as described below, the application of the Amendments to
References to the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards and
the amendments to HKFRSs in the current year had no material impact
on the Group’s financial positions and performance for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKFRS 3 “Definition of
a Business”

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time in the current
year. The amendments clarify that while businesses usually have
outputs, outputs are not required for an integrated set of activities
and assets to qualify as a business. To be considered a business, an
acquired set of activities and assets must include, at a minimum, an
input and a substantive process that together significantly contribute to
the ability to create outputs.

The amendments remove the assessment of whether market
participants are capable of replacing any missing inputs or processes
and continuing to produce outputs. The amendments also introduce
additional guidance that helps to determine whether a substantive
process has been acquired.

In addition, the amendments introduce an optional concentration
test that permits a simplified assessment of whether an acquired
set of activities and assets is not a business. Under the optional
concentration test, the acquired set of activities and assets is not
a business if substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets
acquired is concentrated in a single identifiable asset or group of similar
assets. The gross assets under assessment exclude cash and cash
equivalents, deferred tax assets, and goodwill resulting from the effects
of deferred tax liabilities. The election on whether to apply the optional
concentration test is available on transaction-by-transaction basis.

The Group has elected to apply the optional concentration test on the
acquisitions of Nice Able Holdings Limited (“Nice Able”), Success Mark
Investments Limited (“Success Mark”), Upway International Group
Limited (“Upway International”) and Top Lead Investment Limited (“Top
Lead”) as detailed in note 34 and concluded that such acquisitions do
not constitute businesses.
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EHTINTEEBERIMEGFN -
BREREYE  —EMBRBZEHR
BEZEIVEABERAREE LB
B EMEZEABRERPNAEE T
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2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments to
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKFRS 3
Amendments to HKFRS 9,

HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1 and

HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRSs

Insurance Contracts and the related
Amendments®

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework®*

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
Phase 22

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions'

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 20213

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and
related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)°

Disclosure of Accounting Policies®

Definition of Accounting Estimates®
Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from
a Single Transaction®
Property, Plant and Equipment —
Proceeds before Intended Use*
Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling
a Contract*
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018 — 2020*
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P BHmRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &£ 202143 A31H I F &

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)
u Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.

§ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021.

0 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

© Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned below,
the directors of the Company anticipate that the application of all other
new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.
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APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and
HKFRS 16 “Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2”

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and
HKFRS 16 “Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2” relate to the
modification of financial assets, financial liabilities and lease liabilities,
specific hedge accounting requirements and disclosure requirements
applying HKFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures” to accompany
the amendments regarding modifications and hedge accounting.

o Modification of financial assets, financial liabilities and lease
liabilities. A practical expedient is introduced for modifications
required by the reform (modifications required as a direct
consequence of the interest rate benchmark reform and made
on an economically equivalent basis). These modifications are
accounted for by updating the effective interest rate. All other
modifications are accounted for using the current HKFRSs
requirements. A similar practical expedient is proposed for
lessee accounting applying HKFRS 16 “Leases”;

o Disclosures. The amendments require disclosures in order to
allow users to understand the nature and extent of risks arising
from the interest rate benchmark reform to which the Group is
exposed to and how the entity manages those risks as well as
the entity’s progress in transitioning from interbank offered rates
to alternative benchmark rates, and how the entity is managing
this transition.

As at 31 March 2021, the Group has several London Interbank Offered
Rate (“LIBOR”) and Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) bank
loans which will/may be subject to interest rate benchmark reform, as
appropriate. The Group expects no significant gains or losses should
the interest rate benchmark for these loans change resulting from the
reform on application of the amendments.
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APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 “Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current and related amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation
5 (2020)”

The amendments provide clarification and additional guidance on the
assessment of right to defer settlement for at least twelve months from
reporting date for classification of liabilities as current or non-current,
which:

o specify that the classification of liabilities as current or non-
current should be based on rights that are in existence at the
end of the reporting period. Specifically, the amendments clarify
that:

(i) the classification should not be affected by management
intentions or expectations to settle the liability within 12
months; and

(ii) if the right is conditional on the compliance with
covenants, the right exists if the conditions are met at the
end of the reporting period, even if the lender does not
test compliance until a later date.

o clarify that if a liability has terms that could, at the option of
the counterparty, result in its settlement by the transfer of the
entity’s own equity instruments, these terms do not affect
its classification as current or non-current only if the entity
recognises the option separately as an equity instrument
applying HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation.

In addition, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 was revised as a consequence
of the Amendments to HKAS 1 to align the corresponding wordings
with no change in conclusion.

As at 31 March 2021, the Group’s right to defer settlement for certain
borrowings are subject to compliance with covenants within 12
months from the reporting date. Such borrowings were classified as
non-current as the Group met such covenants at 31 March 2021.
Pending clarification on the application of relevant requirements of
the amendments, the Group will further assess whether application
of the amendments will have an impact on the classification of these
borrowings. The impacts on application, if any, will be disclosed in the
Group’s future consolidated financial statements.

Except for as disclosed above, the application of the amendments
will not result in reclassification of the Group’s other liabilities as at 31
March 2021, including convertible instruments in which the conversion
options are classified as equity instruments.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. For the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements,
information is considered material if such information is
reasonably expected to influence decisions made by primary
users. In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and
by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for investment properties and
certain financial instruments, which are measured at fair values,
at the end of the reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would
take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset
or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement
and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS
2 “Share-based Payment” (“HKFRS 2”), leasing transactions
that are accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16 and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are
not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories”
or value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.1

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

For financial instruments and investment properties which
are transacted at fair value and a valuation technique that
unobservable inputs is to be used to measure fair value in
subsequent periods, the valuation technique is calibrated so
that the results of the valuation technique equals the transaction
price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

3. WEGSUBHRERZEERTIES

TR ()
31 HmRECHMBERRZEEE

FEeRMBEENRTENBEATR
M52 REFRZEENERR
PR % A {5 R 3k 10 22 A B0 48 0K
Mamzee)  ABZEEHET
Hih g2 BlEEBREEINE
BEARERRERR

HARTFERGzEBMTARK
EMERERTABEBAZM
BN EAAEERBRZAF
B BEDEERENEGEES
ENBRERRHER

UEoh - B RMEMS - REA
FEFEGASBEZIEREE
R ASBREBREATEFEZ

ZH - ATEFENSEAR
FER - B2 FEIR - BN
T

. F1RBABIBEER
FAEREREEREER
ERTS TS ZWE
CREHE)

. F2RBABRIBIEBRF IR
FEAZBES  TEER
REBENEERBER
Y

. FIRWABBIEEER
BENTABRERE -

91



92

EMINENCE ENTERPRISE LIMITED - Annual Report 2021

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #{Z2021F3A31H It F &

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

o has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Business combinations or asset acquisitions
Optional concentration test

Effective from 1 April 2020, the Group can elect to apply an
optional concentration test, on a transaction-by-transaction
basis, that permits a simplified assessment of whether an
acquired set of activities and assets is not a business. The
concentration test is met if substantially all of the fair value of
the gross assets acquired is concentrated in a single identifiable
asset or group of similar identifiable assets. The gross assets
under assessment exclude cash and cash equivalents, deferred
tax assets, and goodwill resulting from the effects of deferred
tax liabilities. If the concentration test is met, the set of activities
and assets is determined not to be a business and no further
assessment is needed.

Asset acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities that do
not constitute a business, the Group identifies and recognises
the individual identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
by allocating the purchase price first to investment properties
which are subsequently measured under fair value model and
financial assets/financial liabilities at the respective fair values, the
remaining balance of the purchase price is then allocated to the
other identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis of their relative
fair values at the date of purchase. Such a transaction does not
give rise to goodwill or bargain purchase gain.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Business combinations or asset acquisitions (Continued)
Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the
sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the
Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-
related costs are generally recognized in profit or loss as
incurred.

Except for certain recognition exemptions, the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed must meet the definitions of
an assets and a liability in the Framework for the Preparation
and Presentation of Financial Statements (replaced by the
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting issued in October
2010).

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with HKAS 12 “Income
Taxes” and HKAS 19 “Employee Benefits” respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 at
the acquisition date (see the accounting policy below);

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations” are measured
in accordance with that standard; and
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3. mAEGCUBHRERZEERTES
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES TR (8)
(Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Business combinations or asset acquisitions (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

. lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments (as defined
in HKFRS 16) as if the acquired leases were new leases at
the acquisition date. Right-of-use assets are recognised
and measured at the same amount as the relevant lease
liabilities, adjusted to reflect favourable or unfavourable
terms of the lease when compared with market terms.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed as at acquisition date. If, after re-assessment, the net
amount of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the
excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase gain.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to
the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct
goods or services that are substantially the same.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the relevant performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of progress
towards complete satisfaction of a performance obligation

Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured based on output method, which is to
recognise revenue on the basis of direct measurements of
the value of the goods or services transferred to the customer
to date relative to the remaining goods or services promised
under the contract, that best depict the Group’s performance in
transferring control of goods or services.

As a practical expedient, if the Group has a right to consideration
in an amount that corresponds directly with the value of the
Group’s performance completed to date, the Group recognises
revenue in the amount to which the Group has the right to
invoice.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of
initial application or arising from business combinations, the
Group assesses Whether a contract is or contains a lease based
on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification date
or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not be
reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract are
subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or more
additional lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each lease component
on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease
component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-
lease components.

The Group applies practical expedient not to separate non-lease
components from lease component, and instead account for the
lease component and any associated non-lease components as
a single lease component.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

o the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;
and
o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the
definition of investment property or inventory as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position. Right-
of-use assets that meet the definition of investment property
and inventory are presented within “investment properties” and
“properties held for development for sale” respectively.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS 9
and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at
initial recognition are considered as additional lease payments
and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of lease
payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present
value of lease payments, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if the interest
rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable.
After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by

interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease modifications
The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease
if:

o the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

o the consideration for the leases increases by an amount

commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase
in scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-
alone price to reflect the circumstances of the particular
contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate
lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability, less any lease
incentives receivable, based on the lease term of the modified
lease by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities by
making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-of-use
asset.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3. mEGESUBBRERZEEARTES
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES STBCR (18)
(Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 32 FEEHEHE@E

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance
or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
an underlying asset to the lessee, the contract is classified as a
finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset, and such costs are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term except for investment
properties measured under fair value model.

Rental income which is derived from the Group’s ordinary course
of business is presented as revenue.

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

When a contract includes both leases and non-lease
components, the Group applies HKFRS 15 “Revenue from
Contracts with Customers” to allocate consideration in a contract
to lease and non-lease components. Non-lease components are
separated from lease component on the basis of their relative
stand-alone selling prices.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to
fair value at initial recognition are considered as additional lease
payments from lessees.

Lease modification

Changes in considerations of lease contracts that were not
part of the original terms and conditions are accounted for as
lease modifications, including lease incentives provided through
forgiveness or reduction of rentals.

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease as a
new lease from the effective date of the modification, considering
any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to the original
lease as part of the lease payments for the new lease.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. Exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items
carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for the period.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. HKD) using exchange rate prevailing at the end of
each reporting period. Income and expenses are translated at
the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of exchange reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets,
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets
is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group recognises
as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended
to compensate.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for
the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group
with no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable. Such grants are
presented under “other income”.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from loss before taxation because of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition of goodwiill.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time, rather
than through sale.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied
to the same taxation entity by the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting
for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes. Property, plant and equipment are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values at initial recognition. To the extent the
allocation of the relevant payments can be made reliably, interest
in leasehold land is presented as “right-of-use assets” in the
consolidated statement of financial position except for those that
are classified and accounted for as investment properties under
the fair value model. When the consideration cannot be allocated
reliably between non-lease building element and undivided
interest in the underlying leasehold land, the entire properties are
classified as property, plant and equipment.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation (including properties under development
for such purposes).

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their fair
values, adjusted to exclude any prepaid or accrued operating
lease income.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under
development are capitalised as part of the carrying amount of
the investment properties under development.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an
investment property because its use has changed as evidenced
by end of owner-occupation, any difference between the
carrying amount and the fair value of that item is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in property
revaluation reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement of the
asset, the relevant revaluation reserve will be transferred directly
to accumulated profits.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Investment properties (Continued)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposal. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the
period in which the property is derecognised.

Properties held for development for sale

Properties held for development for sale which are intended
to be sold upon completion of development, are classified as
current assets. Except for the leasehold land element which
is measured at cost model in accordance with the accounting
policies of right-of-use assets, properties held for development
for sale are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on a specific identification basis including
allocation of the related development expenditure incurred and
where appropriate, borrowing costs capitalised. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price for the properties
less estimated cost to completion and costs necessary to make
the sales.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance with
HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL”)) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments (including
all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset or
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income which is derived from the Group’s ordinary
course of business is presented as revenue.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

. the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”):

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both selling and collecting
contractual cash flows; and

. the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)
A financial asset is held for trading if:

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near term; or

on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking;
or

it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently
at amortised cost and debt instruments subsequently
measured at FVTOCI. Interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired. For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on
the credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that
the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
from the beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit-impaired.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

(i)

(i)

Debt instruments classified as at FVTOCI

Subsequent changes in the carrying amounts for debt
instruments classified as at FVTOCI as a result of interest
income calculated using the effective interest method, and
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit
or loss. All other changes in the carrying amount of these
debt instruments are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of investment
revaluation reserve. Impairment allowances are recognised
in profit or loss with corresponding adjustment to other
comprehensive income without reducing the carrying
amounts of these debt instruments. When these debt
instruments are derecognised, the cumulative gains or
losses previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains
or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss includes any interest but
excludes any dividend earned on the financial asset and
is included in the “net gain/loss on changes in fair value of
financial assets at FVTPL” line item.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL”) model (including trade and other receivables,
loans receivable, debt instruments at FVTOCI, and bank
balances) which are subject to impairment assessment under
HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date
to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
Assessments are done based on the Group’s historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current conditions at the reporting date as well as the
forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables
and lease receivables.

For all other assets, the Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, in which case the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

U

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

. significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the
credit spread, the credit default swap prices for the
borrower or debtor;

. existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the borrower’s or
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the borrower or debtor;
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3. mEGESUBBRERZEEARTES
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES TR (48)
(Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 FEEHBEGE
Financial instruments (Continued) 2ETAGE)
Financial assets (Continued) TEEE (&)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) S RVE ERRE ()
0] Significant increase in credit risk (Continued) (i) EERREZEMN

° an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the borrower or debtor that results
in a significant decrease in the borrower’s or
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt instrument
is determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date.
A debt instrument is determined to have low credit risk if
(i) it has a low risk of default, (i) the borrower has a strong
capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in
the near term and (iii) adverse changes in economic and
business conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its
contractual cash flow obligations. The Group considers
the credit risk of the debt instrument mainly with reference
to external credit rating of “investment grade” as per
globally understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3. mAEGCUBHRERZEERTES

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES TR (8)

(Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(ii) Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(iy  Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

o a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

o the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or

contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

° it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

e

3.2

=
ma

MRBREERTES
TR (&

FEETBE @)
EMTAE)
EHEEE)

ETREBEEMNMEGE)

(i)

FERESRHEE

EREEE-BHAL
EH(BZeREEMR
ARBEREBRTAH

VEEREREER

B - eREEHEFKEER
ENBEEEEBTIIE
R RS8R

BITARERALR
AERI R ;

BRAKHGNENSK
BEBEL)

ERANERAR
BERERAMBR
HRENRA T
B T (3] 8 3R AL
ERATERTTE
BHRS

& ZA K8 7T BE mE BS
WES A% E
43k

B B 3R B IR 2
BHZERMEENR
HERmS -



SWWEEERAT - 2021 F3R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P BHmRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #{Z=20214F3A31H It F &

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iv)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit
or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and
probability-weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is estimated as the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition. For a lease
receivable, the cash flow used for determining the ECL
is consistent with the cash flows used in measuring the
lease receivable in accordance with HKFRS 16.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

V)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

° Past-due status;
o Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
° External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset
is credit-impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

Except for investments in debt instruments that
are measured at FVTOCI, the Group recognises an
impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial
instruments by adjusting their carrying amount, with the
exception of loans receivable where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss allowance
account. For investments in debt instruments that are
measured at FVTOCI, the loss allowance is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
the investment revaluation reserve without reducing the
carrying amount of these debt instruments. Such amount
represents the changes in the investment revaluation
reserve in relation to accumulated loss allowance.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised
in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument
classified as at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve is reclassified
to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity instruments in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of
a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables, the liability
component of convertible notes and secured bank borrowings)
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 3. mEGESUBBRERZEEARTES
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES TR (48)
(Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Convertible notes containing liability and equity components

The component parts of the convertible notes issued by the
Company are classified separately as financial liabilities and
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument. A conversion option that will be settled by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for
a fixed number of the Company’s own equity instruments is an
equity instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component is
estimated by measuring the fair value of similar liability that does
not have an associated equity component.

A conversion option classified as equity is determined by
deducting the amount of the liability component from the fair
value of the compound instrument as a whole. This is recognised
and included in equity, net of income tax effects, and is not
subsequently remeasured. In addition, the conversion option
classified as equity will remain in equity until the conversion
option is exercised, in which case, the balance recognised
in equity will be transferred to share premium. Where the
conversion option remains unexercised at the maturity date of
the convertible notes, the balance recognised in equity will be
transferred to accumulated profits (losses). No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or expiration of the
conversion option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible notes
are allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion
to the allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs
relating to the equity component are charged directly to equity.
Transaction costs relating to the liability component are included
in the carrying amount of the liability portion and amortised over
the lives of the convertible notes using the effective interest
method.

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 FEEHBEGE
Financial instruments (Continued) 2ETAGE)
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Convertible notes containing liability and equity components
(Continued)

When the Group modifies the terms of convertible note, the
equity portion of the original convertible note is transferred to
accumulated profits (losses) in equity. When such modification
results in the discounted present value of the cash flows under
the new terms including any fees paid net of any fees received
is at least 10% different from the discounted present values
of the remaining cash flows of the original financial liability, it
is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial
liability and a recognition of a new financial liability or equity
instrument or compound instrument with the difference, being
the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and the
fair value of the financial liability, equity instrument, compound
instrument issued and/or hybrid instrument, recognised in profit
or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets to determine whether there is any indication that
these assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss
(if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets are estimated individually. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an asset
individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporates
assets are allocated to relevant cash-generating unit when a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be established,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be established. The recoverable amount is determined
for the cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating units
to which the corporate asset belongs, and is compared with the
carrying amount of the relevant cash-generating unit or group of
cash-generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced
to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets or portion of
corporate assets which cannot be allocated on a reasonable
and consistent basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group
compares the carrying amount of a group of cash-generating
units, including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets allocated to that group of cash-
generating units, with the recoverable amount of the group of
cash-generating units. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on a
pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit or the group of cash-generating units. The carrying amount
of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair value less
costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable)
and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata
to the other assets of the unit or the group of cash-generating
units. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit or a group of
cash-generating units) is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-
generating units) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss
is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to the state-sponsored pension scheme operated by
the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) government or the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered services entitling them
to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and
when employees rendered the services. All short-term employee
benefits are recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS
requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an
asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such
as wages and salaries and annual leave) after deducting any
amount already paid.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period,
or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies

The followings are the critical judgments, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the directors of the Company have made
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and that
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred tax
assets arising from investment properties that are measured using the
fair value model, the management has reviewed the Group’s investment
properties portfolios and concluded that the Group’s investment
properties located in Hong Kong and Singapore are not held under
a business model whose objective is to consume substantially all of
the economic benefits embodied in the investment properties over
time. Therefore, in determining the Group’s deferred taxation arising
from investment properties located in Hong Kong and Singapore, the
management determined that presumption that investment properties
measured using the fair value model are recovered through sale is not
rebutted.

For the Group’s investment properties located in the PRC, the
management concluded that they are being held under a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment properties over time, rather than
through sale. Therefore, in determining the Group’s deferred taxation
arising from investment properties located in the PRC, management
determined that the presumption that investment properties measured
using the fair value model are recovered through sale is rebutted.
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4,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets within the next financial year.

Fair values of investment properties

The Group’s investment properties are measured at fair value for
financial reporting purposes. The Group has a designated team to
determine the appropriate valuation techniques and key inputs for fair
value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s investment properties, the
Group uses market-observable data to the extent they are available.
Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages independent
firms of qualified professional property valuers to perform valuation of
the Group’s investment properties. At the end of the reporting period,
the management works closely with the independent firms of qualified
professional property valuers to establish and determine the appropriate
valuation techniques and key inputs for fair value measurements.
Where there is a material change in the fair value of the assets, the
causes of the fluctuations will be reported to the directors of the
Company. Information about the valuation techniques and key inputs
used in determining the fair value of the Group’s investment properties
is disclosed in note 16. Whilst the Group considers valuations of the
Group’s investment properties are the best estimates, the ongoing
Covid-19 pandemic has resulted in greater market volatility depending
on how the Covid-19 pandemic may progress and evolve, which have
led to higher degree of uncertainties in respect of the valuations in the
current year.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment assessment of loans receivable

Management regularly reviews the impairment assessment
and evaluates the ECL of loans receivable, which the gross
amount amounted to HK$191,637,000 at 31 March 2021 (2020:
HK$345,742,000). Appropriate net impairment loss of HK$45,685,000
was recognised in profit or loss during the year ended 31 March 2021
(2020: HK$6,581,000).

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring
on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the one
as at the date of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the
loans receivables from borrowers are assessed individually by the
management of the Group, based on the financial background,
financial condition and historical settlement records, including past
due dates and default rates, of each borrower and reasonable and
supportable forward-looking information such as macroeconomic data
that is available without undue cost or effort.

Each borrower is assigned a risk grading under internal credit ratings
to calculate the ECL, taking into consideration of the estimates of
expected cash shortfalls which are driven by estimates of possibility of
default and the amount and timing of cash flows that are expected from
foreclosure on the collaterals (if any) less the costs of obtaining and
selling the collaterals. At every reporting date, the financial background,
financial condition and historical settlement records are reassessed and
relevant information from public domain and changes in the forward-
looking information are considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The
information about the ECL and the Group’s loans receivable are
disclosed in notes 33 and 17 respectively.
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4,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Determination of net realisable value of properties held for
development for sale

Management regularly reviews the recoverability of the Group’s
properties held for development for sale, which are situated in Hong
Kong and amounted to HK$2,754,027,000 at 31 March 2021 (2020:
HK$2,441,200,000), with reference to current market environment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of the assets may exceed its net realisable value. Appropriate
write-down for estimated irrecoverable amount is recognised in profit
or loss when the net realisable value is below cost. The estimates of
net realisable value are determined based on best available information
and with reference to valuations made, less the anticipated costs to
completion and costs necessary to make the sales. Whilst the Group
considers valuations of the Group’s properties held for development
for sale are the best estimates, the ongoing Covid-19 pandemic has
resulted in greater market volatility depending on how the Covid-19
pandemic may progress and evolve, which have led to higher degree
of uncertainties in respect of the valuations in the current year. Actual
realised amount may differ from estimates, resulting in a decrease
or an increase in the net realisable value of the properties held for
development for sale and additional write-down or reversal of write-
down previously recognised may be required.
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REVENUE

Revenue represents the aggregate of rental income and management
fee income from property investment and interest income from loan
financing during the year. An analysis of the Group’s revenue is as
follows:

EXE

EEBEFARABREMEZETK
ANEBRBWARKEERFE ZH
BIALTE - AEBEZEXEHNA
T

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHT FHET

Rental income HEWA 45,276 47,694
Management fee income BEERA 16,033 13,448
Interest income from loan financing REERREZFBEWA 18,944 19,540
80,253 80,682

Rental income and interest income from loan financing fall outside the
scope of HKFRS 15 and the revenue from contracts with customers for
the year ended 31 March 2021 amounted to HK$16,033,000 (2020:
HK$13,448,000).

Management fee income is recognised over time (i.e. the service
period). The Group receives monthly management service payments
from customers one month in advance under the contracts in the PRC.
The Group elected to apply the practical expedient by recognising
revenue in the amount to which the Group has right to issue the
invoice. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated
to these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.

This is consistent with the revenue information disclosed for each
reportable segment.

HEWARKREERBE ZF B
AWEBREBTERELEAFES
SoEHEAN MAREBEEFAELOH
WAREE2021F3A31ALEFE A
16,033,00078 7T (20204F : 13,448,000
BT °

B2 B UL A BE R ] (B AR 7% 40) #E R o
RENTEARITZER  AEE
RAE—EARTFEKRRT A EEMR
BE AEEERRAERNEEZ
it MERASEEAEFARENS
BORARE - RIBEBHBREE
AIFE1SRARE - RRBE DR EL
RAmreRNR 5 ERE -

SREEBERE SR B AERE
SR — B -

I i
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SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. ZEEH
Information reported to the Group’s chief executive officer, being the RERIERAPBERRAEMS - 2
chief operating decision maker (“CODM?), for the purposes of resource MEARE T ELERRE(EEL
allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses on types ERAREDERTREBEZER - &%
of goods delivered or services provided. This is also the basis of FREMmRNSRBGRME 2B - It
organisation, whereby the management has chosen to organise the MRtz B2 EEEEZR
Group around differences in products and services. BRAEEERRREIEZE -
The Group’s operating and reportable segments under HKFRS 8 RIRE BN HREERERELE D
“Operating Segments” are: (a) property investment, (b) property B AEBZEEREROESR (@)
development, (c) investment in securities and (d) loan financing. MERE  OWEER - OFHFKRE
RA)BEFEE -
Segment revenue and results PEEEBERER
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by RIEEREBOEINMAER 2 L
operating and reportable segment: BREENT
For the year ended 31 March 2021 B Z2021F3H31HILFE
Property Property Investment Loan
investment  development in securities financing  Consolidated
MERE MERR EERE BEXmE =e
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET T TR TAT TAT
(note) (note)
(FffzE) (FffzE)
Segment revenue HEEEE
External SR 61,309 = = 18,944 80,253
Segment profit ((0ss) SEHF(ER) 23,867 (72,694) 18,814 (35,799) (65,812)
Other losses Hig5E (893)
Other expenses Hitf% (1,051)
Finance costs BAKA (28,683)
Net loss on modification of FRATAREEER L
terms of convertible notes BEE (81,849)
Loss on early redemption of REECTARERCER
convertible note (8,406)
Other income HiA 6,614
Unallocated corporate expenses ENRARIHY (10,663)
Loss before taxation BRHAIER (190,743)
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEERGE)
Segment revenue and results (Continued) PEEEBERERE)
For the year ended 31 March 2020 BLZ2020F3H31HILFE
Property Property Investment Loan
investment  development in securities financing  Consolidated
MERE MELRE BHERE ERmE e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR T TET TR
(note) (note)
(P35) (Pr5)
Segment revenue NREEE
External IV 61,142 - - 19,540 80,682
Segment profit (oss) AR (ER) 26,332 (143,564) (22,450) 6,060 (133,622)
Other losses HipEiE (354)
Other expenses Hif% (1,467)
Finance costs BMEKA (31,578)
Net loss on modification of ERABRERBER L
terms of convertible note BEFE (37,526)
Other income HA 9,141
Unallocated corporate expenses ENRARIRY (14,251)
Loss before taxation BRERIEE (209,657)

Note: Rental income generated from properties held for development for sale was

included in the property investment segment.

Segment profit (loss) represents the result of each segment without
allocation of other losses, net loss on modification of terms of

convertible notes, loss on early redemption of convertible note, other
expenses, finance costs, other income and unallocated corporate
expenses. There are asymmetrical allocations to operating segments
because the Group allocates all fair value changes of financial assets
at FVTPL to segment of investment in securities without allocating
the certain financial instruments to those segment assets. This is the
measure to the Group’s CODM for the purposes of resource allocation
and performance assessment.

Bt . AREHERRMEELEZHEESRAR
BREENEEENEN -

DEEM (BB DEDEZEE - BF
BREDEEMER  ERABREREE
BRZBEFE  REBEQABEE
BEZBE - B BERE K
AR ENEARMS - BENH
MEETHBEOE  DRAXEED
EmERAFE AR (EAFER
AB#ZEMEEZ A TEEDHER
FRENE YRS EETERTA
EZENREE - WA ERAEE
ZIERERARE ERERIER
RRFH22E -
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEERGE)

Segment assets and liabilities PEEERAE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by RIEEREBOEINMAER 2 EE
operating and reportable segment: REENT :
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FHBT
Segment assets PEEE
Property investment MERE 1,288,136 1,267,969
Property development YIEER 2,881,099 2,511,772
Investment in securities BHIEE 148,733 113,819
Loan financing EXmE 131,000 331,046
Total segment assets DIAERRE 4,448,968 4,224,606
Unallocated financial assets at FVTPL EATEAFTEFABE ISR
BE 32,852 13,487
Right-of-use assets ERREEE 5,884 1,013
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRIA S 112,260 357,767
Others Hih 13,373 6,120
Consolidated assets REBE 4,613,337 4,602,993
Segment liabilities PEEE
Property investment YIERE 53,421 61,214
Property development YIEERE 32,171 29,755
Investment in securities BHEE 97 120
Loan financing BERREE 10,400 10,690
Total segment liabilities PEBEEE 96,089 101,779
Secured bank borrowings BEIFRITEE 1,514,933 1,431,740
Convertible notes AT AR IR 58,164 87,701
Lease liabilities HEAE 5,921 1,031
Unallocated LA 56,937 38,873
Consolidated liabilities measE 1,732,044 1,661,124
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Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)
For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and allocating

resources between segments:

e P BHmRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &£ 202143 A31H I F &

o all assets are allocated to operating and reportable segments
other than unallocated financial assets at FVTPL, right-of-use
assets, bank balances and cash and other assets.

o all liabilities are allocated to operating and reportable segments
other than secured bank borrowings, liability portion of
convertible notes, lease liabilities and other liabilities.

Other segment information

For the year ended 31 March 2021
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss or segment

2EER(E)

TREEREEE
ROBRKRREERADBEREZERS
EmE :

. BESREATEFABRZE
MEE  EAEEE  RITEH
RBReRAMEEN  MBEEE

EOEERENEHOE -

. BABMRITES - TBRRER
afEss  HEAGREMEE
Oy FIBRBESRERERE

Hib D EER
B Z2021F3H31HILFE
ERSEFESBBERINBEEY

assets: B
Property Property  Investment Loan
investment  development in securities financing  Unallocated Total
MERE MELR EHERE ERmE BHE ek
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
Ti#En TiEn TiEn FER T T
Capital additions BRRE 4,881 = = = 287 5,168
Depreciation of property, plant and nE BEREEINE
equipment 109 370 - - 925 1,404
Loss on changes in fair value of REMEL NTES
investment properties EB# 18,530 = = = = 18,530
Write-cown on properties held for BELERRIEL
development for sale, net of reversal E - MRAER = 63,065 = = = 63,065
Impairment loss on loans receivable, net  EWE K 2 HIERE »
HE - = = 45,685 = 45,685
Impairment loss on debt instruments at R AFEF AL 2E
FVTOC! W EBIRZ
HEER = = 55 = = 55
Net gain on changes in fair value of BATEGANBR SR
financial assets at FVTPL AEZATEZDWE
e = = 18,744 3 = 18,744
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEERGE)

Other segment information (Continued) HthpEEHR
For the year ended 31 March 2020 BLE2020F3H31HILFE
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss or segment EEEEFMEDHERI N EAEY
assets: B
Property Property Investment Loan
investment  development  in securities financing  Unallocated Total
mERE MEER BHRE ERmE BHRE k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL FEL FHL FEL FEL FEL
Capital additions BARE 3,524 966 - - 3,692 8,182
Depreciation of property, plant and mE - BEREEZAE
equipment 106 356 - - 827 1,289
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBARZ K 57,511 = = = = 57,511
Loss on changes in fair value of REWE 2 DY E
investment properties ZEER 66,623 = = = = 66,623
Write-down on properties held for BIEHERRMEZRE
development for sale - 134,309 - - - 134,309
Impairment loss on loans recaivable, EREFRZREFE
net FHE - - - 6,581 = 6,581
Impairment loss on debt instruments at R AFEF AL 2E
FVTOC WEz EBEIRL
HEER - - 456 - = 456
Net loss on changes in fair value of BATEGNBE SR
financial assets at FVTPL BEZDTEEDER
B - - 20,429 - - 20,429
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Geographical information
The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong (place of domicile),
the PRC and Singapore.

The Group’s revenue from external customers based on location of
its customers for segments and information about its non-current
assets (excluding financial instruments and deferred tax assets) by

2EER(E)

REFE 2 EBANER (FTE) - FE
K IE o

AEERBIREFZEXBIRAE
PR D ERIREE 2 i iE 3
DZIRDEETEEERTARE

geographical location of the assets are detailed below: ERRIBAE)ERAT
Revenue from
external customers Non-current assets
REMREF 2 EHERE FRBEE
2021 2020 2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FET FHT
Hong Kong (place of domicile) B (FriE i) 53,615 59,485 890,009 851,381
PRC s 23,942 18,458 359,285 337,677
Singapore b 2,696 2,739 150,467 148,049
80,253 80,682 1,399,761 1,337,107

Information about major customers
No revenue from customers contributed over 10% of the total revenue
of the Group for both years.

FEEFZEHR
MEFTEALEBETRAHBBEESE
10% A EZRF ©

OTHER INCOME HAU A
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FiET FHET
Bank and other interest income RIT REMF B WA 3,317 6,973
Dividend income from listed investments KELEHERE ZBRBWA 1,569 1,741
Government grants BT B 1,277 -
Others HAth 451 427
6,614 9,141

During the current year, the Group recognised government grants of
HK$1,277,000 in respect of Covid-19-related subsidies, which are
related to Employment Support Scheme provided by the Hong Kong
Government.

RAFE  ARBERBEBRNEHEN
201978 iR SR IR MR BE 3 IR 5T
BB AL FERR T 1,277,00078 LAY IR
SR
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

8. EEBEREEZME

(a) Information regarding directors’ emoluments (@) FBHESMEzEHR
Details of emoluments to the directors of the Company for the HZE2021F3A31HEFEAR
year ended 31 March 2021 are as follows: AIEEMEHIINT :
Independent
Executive directors (Note a) non-executive directors (Note b)
HES (i) BUFHTES (Wb
Kwong
Jimmy Wu Koon Yin
LailawKau ~ CheungTim  LuiYukChu  KanKaHon  LauSinMing Welly Total
RER BRA BT% GEL L E4 g%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
Tién TERL Tén Tién TERL Tén TERL
(Note c) (Note d)
(HfEe) (Ht3td)
Fees EEZ0ES = = = 150 150 150 450
Other emoluments Eftie
- Salaries and other benefits -HeREMER 2% 1,320 2849 - - - 4,465
~ Controutions to retirement - RINEF3E
benefts schemes iz 1 > 18 = > = 2
Total directors’ emoluments ESHoaE 307 1,320 2,867 150 150 150 4,944

Details of emoluments to the directors of the Company for the
year ended 31 March 2020 are as follows:

B Z2020F3A31H IEFEARR
AIEEMEHINNT ¢

Executive directors (Note a)

Independent non-execitive directors (Note b)

H1EZ () BUEnTEE (i)
Kwong Jimmy Foo  WuKoonYin
CheungTim  LuiYukChu ~ KanKaHon  LauSinMing Tak Ching Welly Total
B EE% g 228 B REE &%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000
ThL ThL T ThL ThL Tk ThL
(Note d) (Noteg)
(Hd) (Hrte)
Fees EELon - - 140 140 a7 140 467
Other emoluments A
- Salaries and other benefits -HeREMmER 2,040 2,861 = = = = 4901
- Contributions to retrement - RIEAEEIER
benefits schemes - 18 - - - - 18
Total directors’ emoluments R 2,040 2879 140 140 4 140 5,386
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Information regarding directors’ emoluments (Continued)
Notes:

(a) The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company and the Group.

(b) The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were for their services as directors of the Company.

() Mr. Lai Law Kau was appointed as an executive director of the
Company on 20 August 2020 and the Chief Executive on 1 October
2020 and his emoluments disclosed above include those for services
rendered by him as the Chief Executive and an executive director.

(d) Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim was also the Chief Executive of the
Company. Mr. Kwong was re-designated from the Chief Executive to
an executive director on 1 October 2020. His emoluments disclosed
above include those for services rendered by him as the Chief Executive
and an executive director.

(e Foo Tak Ching resigned as independent non-executive director with
effect from 1 August 2019.

Information regarding employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals of the Group included two (2020:
two) directors whose emoluments were included above for both
years. The emoluments of the remaining three (2020: three)
highest paid individuals, not being directors, are as follows:

8. EEREEZME@

(a)

(b)

THESEHE 2 ER G
i

(@) ERBERZHTEFHE ARE
BRARRIRAKRBEEREHK
PR °

(b) ERBERZBUFFATEEHS
REFERARRESF 2R -

(© FEZEERE A 1A 202058 A20H 1
ZERRRAZHTES TR
2020F10 A1 B EZEAEFET
Baas - HU FRBEZ#MeE
BIERERTRARRITES
FiR 4t 2 AR T -

(d) BEANEETRBRRRZ EREAT
BAEH 20205510 A1 B #E - BB
EEHBERTRERRBERNT
EF - HULRBRZMEBER
ERBRITRARRATESR
R R -

© BEEEN20196F8 A1 B & T
BLFEHNITES ©

FHREEMeER
AEEBREERHNEALTRER
% (2020%F : ME)EE  HER
MEFE2MEEBEEEX
A o HEp=2 (20205 : =8) -
WIHESE  Zafe ATE#HI®
T

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$’000

FiBxT FHET

Salaries and other benefits e REMBERN 7,082 6,591
Contributions to retirement benefits RIREFE IR

schemes 54 54

7,136 6,645
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 8. EEREEZHE(E)
(Continued)

(b) Information regarding employees’ emoluments (b) EBEEEMSER(E)
(Continued)
Their emoluments were within the following bands: BEZHMEN T IIIEHE :
2021 2020
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
EEAH EEAH
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ % 1,000,000 & IT - 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 TE
1,500,0007% 7T 2 1
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 TE
5,000,000 BT 1 1
B &
During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group RWEEE - REERE XA
to the directors and the other three (2020: three) highest paid S TEFRHM=%(2020%F :
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or —H)EaMez AL - fEAM
as compensation for loss of office. In addition, during both years, ASRAE I A SR B 2 S8 B ok 2k
no director waived or agree to waive any emoluments. KRS 2 F1E o UbIN - RAEH
M REEEREXRENEMS
B o
9. FINANCE COSTS 9. MEMK
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FHBT
Interest on bank borrowings IRITEEF S 33,453 42,396
Interest on lease liabilities HEBENE 95 83
Effective interest expense on convertible notes A IR E 1% ~ BEEF S5 X 18,393 16,741
51,941 59,220
Less: Amount capitalised in the cost of W RNEEBEREEZKAERL
qualifying assets s x| (283,258) (27,642)

28,683 31,578
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SEEERAT - 2021 FiR

TAXATION 10. H1E
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FiET FHT
The tax (credit) charge comprises: RIEGIA) B 2
Current tax: RITHIR :
Hong Kong B (78) 138
Other jurisdiction H b RE 2,485 1,615
2,407 1,753
Under(over)provision in prior years: BEFETE (B BH -
Hong Kong HE 1 _
Other jurisdiction HEApalE (257) 470
(256) 470
Deferred tax (note 27) IEIEFE (M 7E27) (12,101) (5,688)
(9,950) (3,465)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated

assessable profit for both years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”)
and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC

subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

Taxation arising in other jurisdiction is calculated at the rates prevailing

in the relevant jurisdiction.

SR EEE 2 BAMNEH RE A
JERBLE N2 16.6%7T & °

REPEAREMB M EEAEB
E(REMBBE]) RERAFHIELZ
EiED  MEFERTREZMER

Bl Z K 25% ©

H Ay &% 5| R 2 BIR TR B A2

BITHERFEHE -
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10.

TAXATION (Continued)

10.

Tax credit for the year can be reconciled to the results per the

BiIE ()

REERAFARGEARERE MR

consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive HiamREE 2 HERAT ¢
income as follows:
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FHET
Loss before taxation BRELAIE R (190,743) (209,657)
Tax credit at the applicable rate of 16.5% 28 FA A1 R 16.5% (2020 :
(2020: 16.5%) 16.5%) 518 2 BT A (31,473) (34,593)
Tax effect of income not taxable for FARMBAZ BB E
tax purposes (14,090) (20,585)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for TENHAT CHIBATE
tax purposes 22,587 22,082
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERBEB 2B EZE 4,628 7,612
Tax effect of deductible temporary AERANGEREE 2 fHE
differences not recognised -2 9,703 23,260
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses B AT R ERTIIEEE 2 BIE
previously not recognised B (2,129) 1,812)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries EENEMAE B AR 2
operating in other jurisdiction RERIRE 1,250 133
(Over)underprovision in prior years BAFEGER)TERE (256) 470
Others HAh (170) (32)
Tax credit for the year REFBREA (9,950) (3,465)
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LOSS FOR THE YEAR 1. AEFEEES
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FHET
Loss for the year has been arrived at after AEEEEENR
charging:
Directors’ emoluments (note 8(a)) E=<E (KizEs() 4,944 5,386
Other staff costs, including retirement HEMmBITER  BERKERN
benefits costs B#N 19,243 17,950
Total staff costs (including directors’ BIXAEE(BEEENE)
emoluments) 24,187 23,336
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEM S 3,010 2,646
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #1% - [E Mi&E 2 ITE 1,404 1,289
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ERREEZTE 2,470 2,431
Loss on write-off of property, Wi - BEREZBEZEER
plant and equipment 44 306
Net exchange loss bE X &R 5 893 354
DIVIDENDS 12. RE
No dividends were paid or proposed for the years ended 31 March HZE20214F %2020F3A31HILEE
2021 and 2020, nor has any dividend been proposed since the end of REZINHEZRE  BREHRE

the reporting periods. RBERBEMRE -
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13.

BASIC AND DILUTED LOSS PER SHARE 13.

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share attributable to
owners of the Company is based on the following data:

BEREAREE (R B

AABBRREMEZSRERREEE
BIMRIBEATERGE

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Loss 2]
Loss for the purpose of basic and diluted REREARARBEEREEMS
loss per share pd) it (180,793) (206,192)
2021 2020
’000 000
F T
Number of shares BHEE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ~ FLERERREEEEEBME 2
for the purpose of basic and diluted loss hntE 1 EmAR AR 8B
per share 931,458 291,744

The computation of diluted loss per share for the year ended 31 March
2021 does not assume the exercise of the conversion of all convertible
notes issued as their assumed exercise would result in a decrease in
loss per share.

The computation of diluted loss per share for the year ended 31 March
2020 does not assume the exercise of the Company’s outstanding
share options and the conversion of all convertible notes issued as their
assumed exercise would result in a decrease in loss per share.

FHEEHZE 2021 F£3 A 31 BIEFER
BRESHBEENELSEREME
BETABRREBRNESRIGWTE
AAERIITEREREREEBR

e

FFTEEHZE202063A31A L FEFR
BEEBISERRITELBRAAR
MARITEZBERERMBED BT 2
RREBAEBRITEERSSTRE

18-
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. % BERZE
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Motor
properties equipment vehicles Total
&M HE
HOYZE REE RE Bz
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET FET FET
COST AR
At 1 April 2019 R2019F4H81H - 4,402 1,670 6,072
Exchange adjustments fE 5 AR - @3) 61) (74)
Additions NE 3,650 6 1,008 4,664
Acquisition of a subsidiary Uy B8 — B B A A = 47 = 47
Write-off b€ - (385) - (385)
At 31 March 2020 R2020%43A31H 3,650 4,047 2,627 10,324
Exchange adjustments Rk - 28 60 88
Additions NE - 295 = 295
Write-off i - (107) - (107)
At 31 March 2021 M202143A31H 3,650 4,263 2,687 10,600
DEPRECIATION FERRE
At 1 April 2019 R2019%F4H81H - 2,155 231 2,386
Exchange adjustments AR - (13) (39) (52)
Provided for the year NEERME 22 723 544 1,289
Write-off bk = (79) = (79)
At 31 March 2020 H202093A31H 22 2,786 736 3,544
Exchange adjustments L - 19 53 72
Provided for the year NEFEAE 133 726 545 1,404
Write-off g = (63) = (63)
At 31 March 2021 M202143A31H 155 3,468 1,334 4,957
CARRYING VALUES IREE
At 31 March 2021 HR2021F3H31H 3,495 795 1,353 5,643
At 31 March 2020 M2020F3A31H 3,628 1,261 1,891 6,780

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the following useful lives:

Leasehold properties

50 years or over the lease term if

EREEYE  BERREHAELR

ERIEAT Z Al R iRt BT E

BomE REQZFHRE+F

shorter NEEETE
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3 to 10 years RFh - HE 3E10F
s
Motor vehicles 5 years E 5%
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RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

15. fE fRE:

¥
e}

Leasehold land

and buildings
YT REF
HK$°000
FET
As at 1 April 2020 20204818
Carrying amount BRmEE 1,013
As at 31 March 2021 A2021F3831H
Carrying amount AREE 5,884
For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE2021F3A31HLEEE
Depreciation charge e 2,470
For the year ended 31 March 2020 B E2020F3A31HLFE
Depreciation charge e 2,431
2021 2020
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FBT FHT
Total cash outflow for leases MR M aE 2,546 2,496

Additions to right-of-use assets (Note) FRAEAEE P

7,341 -

Note: Amount includes right-of-use assets resulting from new leases entered
and lease modification. During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group
renewed the lease agreement of an office by entering into new contract,
which constituted a non-cash transaction. The renewal of lease agreement is
accounted for as a lease modification.

The right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

For both years, the Group leases offices for its operations. Lease
contracts are entered into for fixed terms of 2 to 3 years (2020: 3 years)
without extension and termination option. Lease terms are negotiated
on an individual basis and contain different terms and conditions.
In determining the lease term and assessing the length of the non-
cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of a contract and
determines the period for which the contract is enforceable.

Mizk: SBEEFIVHBRENHEEBRES
HEAEEE - H%E2021F3A31H 1k
FEN  AEEBBEINEGREASEH
AREBHHZE - BRIFBLZH - Y
W EEEE RSB -

EREEEREGFATEAFRME
HWHR AP EIE B IR B AERITE -

MEFERHE AEEEERERAE
ETRE - FAINHEOEREEHR
R2FEBF (20204 : 35F) - BRAL
MR R 1A - A IRSIR IR (E B
BRETHE - EREBOHRILF
HAABUEHIRE - REBERAE R
Y E 3 I REE & RE AT SR B 31T -
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. REYE
The Group leases out various residential, commercial and industrial AEERELLHELHASEEE -
units under operating leases with rentals payable monthly, quarterly MEMIESENG  MENESAS
or semi-annually. The leases typically run for an initial period of 1 A BFEXEBFFRIM—KEL -
to 7 years (2020: 1 to 10 years), with unilateral rights to extend the AR E A1 5749 (20204 : 1510
lease beyond initial period held by lessees only. Majority of the lease F) WEEBFEEMBHEOTESRS
contracts contain market review clauses in the event the lessee ERAMAFEOIHREAN - AR
exercises the option to extend. AEMEAITEEAEZE - AXZHME
HERHBETHBERIGER
The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result of the BHRABEHAOYUNEEERSENY
lease arrangements, as all leases are denominated in the respective RREEE WAKRETEHERENR
functional currencies of group entities. The lease contracts do not mAZIINERR - HOEGRTEE
contain residual value guarantee and/or lessee’s option to purchase BRERE R EFE AL B m
the property at the end of lease term. BEERYENEERE -
Investment
Completed properties
investment under
properties development Total
ERARENE BEPREYE Pkl
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FH&xT FExT FET
FAIR VALUE DNHE
At 1 April 2019 R2019F4/81H 1,611,006 52,355 1,663,361
Exchange adjustments P& 5 S (31,445) (2,238) (33,683)
Additions NE 2,475 1,043 3,518
Disposal of subsidiaries HEKBAR (304,000) = (304,000)
Transfer to completed investment EEETERIREDE
properties 51,160 (51,160) =
Decrease in fair value recognised REHERZATE
in profit or loss > (66,623) - (66,623)
At 31 March 2020 72020434318 1,262,573 - 1,262,573
Exchange adjustments Rk 36,158 - 36,158
Additions NE 4,873 - 4,873
Decrease in fair value recognised REHER ATE
in profit or loss Ve (18,530) = (18,530)
At 31 March 2021 HR2021F3H31H 1,285,074 - 1,285,074
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16.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties as at 31 March
2021 and 31 March 2020 has been arrived at on the basis of valuation
carried out on the respective dates by the following independent firms
of qualified professional property valuers not connected with the Group:

Location of

Name of valuer investment properties

At 31 March 2021 and 2020

Vigers Appraisal and Consulting Limited Hong Kong
Vigers Appraisal and Consulting Limited PRC
Edmund Tie & Company (SEA) Pte Ltd Singapore

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group transferred
investment properties under development with an aggregate
carrying amount of Renminbi (“RMB”) 46,069,000 (equivalent to
HK$51,160,000) to completed investment properties upon the
completion of the construction work and commencement of lease to
an independent third party during the year.

The loss arising on changes in fair value of investment properties of
HK$18,530,000 (2020: HK$66,623,000) was recognised in profit or
loss during the year ended 31 March 2021.

All investment properties of the Group are under the Level 3 fair value
hierarchy. The total amount of the change in unrealised gains or losses
relating to these assets was the same amount as the gain or loss
arising on changes in fair value of investment properties in both years.
There was no realised gain or loss on investment properties in both
years.

16.

REMZE(E)

AEBZREMENRBREHRZ AT
BENEATARNEEREHEZEY
EERBEXEYMEMEMTNZERY

EITHEZREEERE :

RENEZ
EMITEE FriEt
2021F 20203 A31H

B HEETEER AR AR Bk

B HEETER AR AR I

Edmund Tie & Company (SEA) I
Pte Ltd

HZE2020F3A31RILEE  A%KH

FARBETIRTKAFAREE TS
YE=ZR BEEEERARE

(TAR¥1)46,069,000% 7T (HHZFR
51,160,000/8 70) M Z R B W X EE
EETIREME -

HE2021F3ABIBILFEEZKEY
¥ 2N FEZFEIE18,530,000/8 T
(20204 : 66,623,000/ 7T) B N B a1

27
o ©

REEMBRENENE=ZRAFE
ERT - BZFEEAHENARERRK

HmABEREHRFEMBEFRREY
EZRFEZEAEEN KA IEE
HE - MEFEREDEHRECER
Yeas sk B8
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

16. REWEGE)

The following table gives information about how the fair values of
the investment properties are determined (in particular, the valuation
techniques and key inputs used), as well as the fair value hierarchy
into which the fair value measurements are categorised (Levels
1 to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value

measurements is observable.

TERINTEMEERENEN L FE
ZEMUFRIRAERZMET A RS
AR - URBEGARE 2 TBE
REIDNATFESREIZERZ

AT E -

Investment
properties held Fairvalue  Valuation techniques Significant
by the Group Fair value at 31 March hierarchy and key inputs unobservable inputs Sensitivity
REBRECRENF R3B3AZATE NTEER MAELERIEGAUE  EXTUERGAHE HRE
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
TARL TAT
Commercial units in 133,700 143,300 Level 3 Direct comparison method - Price per square foot, using The higher the price per
Hong Kong based on market observable market direct comparables square foot, the higher the fair
transactions of similar and taking into account of value
properties and adjusted to character, location and other
reflect the locations and individual factors such as road
conditions of the subject frontage, size of property,
property etc., which is ranged from
HK$60,350 to HK$251,601
(2020: HK$84,309 to
HK$271,605) per square foot
REBZBREN F3 HENEE - ERAENE S8YHRER KATHE

Industrial units in
Hong Kong

81,100

RERZIREN

84,300 Level3

LTEABRR S BHER
AR E BME A E Rk
R

Direct comparison method -
based on market observable
transactions of similar
properties and adjusted to
reflect the locations and
conditions of the subject
property

BRERE - ERAANE
LTEABRZSUBEE
AR E BME A E R
n

BEUHBORERZRLE &

NRERERRZMEEE
% MEANE  BEAR
960,350/ L 2251,6017%
TC(2020% © 84,309 T &
271,605% 7T)

Price per square foot, using
market direct comparables
and taking into account of
character, location and other
individual factors such as
size of property etc., which
is ranged from HK$3,873 to
HK$5,333 (2020: HK$4,005
to HK$5,322) per square foot
BYARER  KAMGE

BEULBNREREENE &

NREMENRZNDER
NE - BEHRNTS,873
BT E5,3338 7T (20204 ¢
4,005/ T £5,322% L)

The higher the price per
square foot, the higher the fair
value
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16.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

16. REWVZE(E)

Investment
properties held Fairvalue  Valuation techniques Significant
by the Group Fair value at 31 March ~ hierarchy and key inputs unobservable inputs Sensitivity
REERECRENE H3B31AZATE ATEER HEFERIEBAEE  EXTUBEBARE HRE
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
iR TART
Industrial-office units 511,600 501,600 Level 3 Income approach —termyield  Term yield, taking into The higher the term yield, the
in Hong Kong account of yield generated by  lower the fair value
market average selling price
and the market average rental
from comparable properties
and adjustment to reflect the
conditions of the building,
which is 2.6% (2020: 2.7%)
REBZIEBREN 3R WNE - EHEE ERNREER6%(2020F : EHNFEEMS  ATEMR
2.1%)  BERALEYEL £

- reversionary yield

mHETEERRTSTEH
SEEZRERIELEE
DRBEFIAR

Reversionary yield, taking into
account of yield generated by
market average selling price
and the market average rental
from comparable properties
and adjustment to reflect the
risk associated with the future
rental, which is 2.6% (2020:
2.7%)

{851 % 52.6%(2020F :
2.7%)  BERALENEL
5 THERRTSTHHE
PEECRRRIEL AR
INRBARE S 2 HERR

The higher the reversionary
yield, the lower the fair value
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Investment
properties held

by the Group
REBEEZRENE

Fair value at 31 March

RA3NAZATE

2021
HK$'000
TERL

Fair value
hierarchy
NTEER
2020
HK$'000
TART

16. REWEGE)

Valuation techniques
and key inputs
HETERIERAE

Significant
unobservable inputs

EXTAEZRARE

Sensitivity

Industrial-office units
in Hong Kong (Continued)

REBZTERAENL(B)

Residential units
in Hong Kong

REBZEEEN

49,100

47,900 Level 3

= monthly term rental

-8AlE

- reversionary market unit rate

-EETSEMLER

Direct comparison method -
based on market observable
transactions of similar
properties and adjusted to
reflect the locations and
conditions of the subject
property

ERERE - ERAANE
LTEABRZSUBHE
AR EBME A E R
)

Monthly term rental for
each unit is derived from
the average of the rental as
stated in the existing rental
agreements, which is ranged
from HK$11.5 to HK$19.5
(2020: HK$11.5 to HK$19.5)
per square foot

REf BARSHEER
BENZ RN TETR
REA11.5BTE19.58T
(2020% : 1158 E19.5%

o)

Reversionary market unit rate
for each unit is compared with
direct market comparables
and taking into account of
character, location and other
individual factor, which is
HK$6,300 (2020: HK$6,100)
per square foot

BB EETHEME
B BEETSTLREE
HEBERERMEREM
{@EZ - §F7RA6,300
77 (2020% : 6,100 7T)

Price per square foot, using
market direct comparables
and taking into account of
character, location, age and
other individual factors, which
is ranged from HK$7,651 to
HK$18,848 (2020: HK$7,651
to HK$17,405) per square
foot

B8YHRER  KATSE

BULBNEERERN &

B EREEMENRE
BYARNTT,651ELE
18,8487 7T (2020 : 7,651
BILE17 4058 TT)

The higher the monthly term
rental rate, the higher the fair
value

The higher the reversionary
market unit rate, the higher
the fair value

EETHELERES 2
TEER

The higher the price per
square foot, the higher the fair
value
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16.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

16. REWVZE(E)

Investment
properties held Fairvalue  Valuation techniques Significant
by the Group Fair value at 31 March ~ hierarchy and key inputs unobservable inputs Sensitivity
REEREZRENE M3A31AZATE NTEZS MHESERIERAHE  EXTUBRBAHE HRE
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn TART
Residential units in Singapore 150,467 148,049 Level 3 Direct comparison method - Price per square foot, using The higher the price per

RETERZ EEE

Industrial units in the PRC

RPEZTREMN

359,107

337,424 Level 3

F3%

based on market observable
transactions of similar
properties and adjusted to
reflect the locations and
conditions of the subject
property

ERNBE - ERAENE
LTEABRRSUEHE
NRBEEME L E R
n

Income capitalisation of net
income with provisions for
reversionary income potential
KARBHEZWAERL
LGB NN BN R
]

market direct comparables
and taking into account of
character, location and other
individual factors such as road
frontage, size of property,
etc., which is ranged from
HK$14,954 to HK$18,020
(2020: HK$17,326 to
HK$17,891) per square foot
BYARER  HAMGE
BALBHBERERNE
IARE M ERIE R R4 E
B mEXNE 8YAR
N 14,9548 T 218,020/
70 (20205 : 17,3268 L2
17,891%70)

Capitalisation rate, which is
8% (2020: 8%) per annum

ERLE - §EH8%(2020
1 8%)

Monthly rental rate, taking
into account of market
comparables, which is
RMB11.9 (2020: RMB10.1)
per square metre

mHEREE  ZEMHA

LBE - BYARBARE &

11.970(2020% : AR%10.1
)

square foot, the higher the fair
value

The higher the capitalisation
rate, the lower the fair value

ERLERR  ATEAE

o

The higher the monthly rental
rate, the higher the fair value

1,285,074

1,262,573

In estimating the fair value of the investment properties, except for
those investment properties held for future development, the highest
and best use of the properties is their current use.

As at 31 March 2021, except for the industrial properties amounted
to HK$359,107,000 (2020: industrial properties amounted to
HK$337,424,000), all of the Group’s investment properties have been
pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group.

REEREMEZRAFER  KRRE

MRS ER RERI

MEZEBR

LEaEERTGEREZERTR -

R2021%F3A8381H BREMEHBS
359,107,000/ 7T (20204F : T ¥ N
T T 2 %(E(E A337,424,000/T) 2

TEMEN

AEERMBEREMED

HHURBE T ARENRTRE -
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LOANS RECEIVABLE 17. ERER
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FiET FHT
Fixed-rate loans receivable TE B BB E 191,637 345,742
Less: Impairment allowance W ORERE (61,458) (15,773)
130,179 329,969

Analysed as: R

Current portion mENE S 127,109 321,353
Non-current portion IEMENEL D 3,070 8,616
130,179 329,969
Secured Eg i 71,385 112,466
Unsecured IR 58,794 217,503
130,179 329,969

No aged analysis is disclosed, as in the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the aged analysis does not give additional value in view of
the nature of business of loan financing.

At 31 March 2021, the range of interest rate on the Group’s loans
receivable is 4% to 8% (2020: 4% to 14%) per annum.

Details of ECL assessment are set out in note 33 and below.

BAANBEERR  REXMEER
MEME  RE&EDTALIREHEIIE
1B MRERE DT -

R2021FE3A31H » AEEz R E K
FERENF4%ZE8%(20204F : 4%ZE
14%) °

B EEBBN G ZFBHNHESS
KRR e
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17.

LOANS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

The movement of impairment allowance for loans receivable is as

17. BWERGE)

EREFRERBZESHMT

follows:
Lifetime ECL =
12mECL  credit impaired Total
HAETEH
12{8 A5 FEEE -
FEEE EEHE By
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TR TR
At 1 April 2019 R2019F4 1R 9,192 - 9,192
Changes due to loans receivable recognised R2019F4 1B AR ERER
asat 1 April 2019 EM & E)
- Repayments (Note (i) - B HE() (830) = (830)
- Net remeasurement of ECL (Note (i) -BHEEBEZENEFE
GE) 3,827 = 3,827
New loans granted (Note (ii)) B R RTE R (B i) 3,584 = 3,584
At 31 March 2020 R2020%3A31H 15,773 - 15,773
Changes due to loans receivable recognised as 12202053 A31B A E A
at 31 March 2020 W E T E )
- Transfer to credit-impaired -BREEERNE (6,809) 6,309 =
- Repayments (Note (i) - BRRE() (7,284) = (7,284)
- Net remeasurement of ECL (Note (i) - BHEERBCENIEFE
Gagd()) 540 52,249 52,789
New loans granted (Note (i) 15 L 0 37 B R (O 2 i) 180 = 180
At 31 March 2021 R202143A31H 2,400 59,058 61,458
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LOANS RECEIVABLE (Continued)
Notes:

[0) The reversal of impairment loss of HK$7,284,000 (2020: HK$830,000) was
related to loans receivable with gross carrying amount of HK$160,886,000
(2020: HK$54,978,000) repaid during the year.

(ii) The impairment loss of HK$52,789,000 (2020: HK$3,827,000) was related
to loans receivable with gross carrying amount of HK$186,637,000 (2020:
HK$288,742,000). Details of the credit-impaired loans receivable are set out in
note 33(b).

(iii) The impairment loss of HK$180,000 (2020: HK$3,584,000) was related to loans
receivable with gross carrying amount of HK$5,000,000 (2020: HK$57,000,000)
which are newly granted during the year.

Before granting loans to outsiders, the Group assesses the potential
borrower’s credit quality and defines credit limits granted to each
borrower. The credit limits attributed to the borrowers are reviewed by
the management regularly.

Impairment assessment

The management closely monitors the credit quality of loans
receivable amounting to HK$130,179,000 at 31 March 2021 (2020:
HK$329,969,000). During the year ended 31 March 2021, impairment
loss of loans receivable of HK$45,685,000 (2020: impairment loss of
HK$6,581,000) was recognised in profit or loss. At 31 March 2021,
allowance for loans receivable amounted to HK$61,458,000 (2020:
HK$15,773,000). There are no loans receivable which are past due at
the end of the reporting period.

17.

W E R (&)
GEX

() JRLME 518 7 27,284,000 7T (20204F -
830,000 0) BERNEEREAEA
160,886,000 7T (20204F : 54,978,000
BN EREZRERE -

(i) R E B 852,789,000 7T (2020
& :3,827,0008 ) R E A E
/186,637,000 7T (20204
288,742,000/ 7T) B E R B - &
W E RSB RME 2 FF R HITE33(D) ©

(iii BEEE 180,000 7T (20204
3,584,000 7T ) B F A 37 X i &9 BR
[ #{& 45,000,000 7T (20204 :
57,000,000/ 7T) K R E KB 7 ©

Eﬁﬂjgﬁ%ﬁ\\%%ﬁﬁ C RSB

BRAZGEEERREERTE
T_L%?ﬁ’\/\ZEE%E o BIPETE B et
BRAZEESE -

BTG
EREETETN2021F3A31AZ
JE U & 130,179,000 7T (2020 4F -
329,969,000 L) 2 EEH %R - HE
202163A31BILFE  ERERZ
BB E51845,685,000/% 7T (20204 &
%6,581,0008 ) E RN BRER o B
202146 3A31H ' BRERZEER
61,458,000/ 7T (20204 : 15,773,000
PBIT) o REREEIR - WEE S AIEYK
Bk e
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18. DEBT INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER

18. BAVEARMEEKZE ZEH

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME TH
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH&T FHET
Listed investments, at fair value: FTRE - RATE
Debt securities listed in Hong REAIEIN L2 EBES - BEFH
Kong or overseas with fixed E N F4.600%Z9.500% (20204 :
interests ranging from 4.600% to 4.600% £9.125%) & B HI B /M F20224F3
9.500% (2020: 4.600% to H23H %2022 12 A 16 H (20204 :
9.125%) per annum and maturity 202142 4180 £2023%2H28H)
dates ranging from 23 March
2022 to 16 December 2022 (2020:
18 February 2021 to 28 February
2023) 36,113 36,151
Analysed as: DR
Current portion ENER S 6,261 3,623
Non-current portion ERB D 29,852 32,528
36,113 36,151

As at 31 March 2021 and 2020, debt instruments at FVTOCI are
stated at fair values which were determined based on the quoted
market closing prices available on the Stock Exchange or an overseas
recognised stock exchange.

Debt instruments at FVTOCI are listed bonds with the credit loss
allowance measured on 12m ECL basis as the credit risk on financial
instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition.
The Group assesses the ECL for debt instruments at FVTOCI by
reference to credit rating of the bond investment by rating agencies,
macroeconomic factors affecting the respective industry for each
issuer, corporate historical default and loss rate and exposure of default
of each bond investment.

Credit loss allowance of HK$55,000 was recognised in profit or loss
during the year ended 31 March 2021 (2020: HK$456,000).

Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 33.
All debt instruments at FVTOCI are denominated in United States

dollars (“USD”), a currency other than the functional currencies of the
relevant group entities, at the end of the reporting period.

20214 Kk2020F3A31H * RATF
Bt AEMEEKRRZEHBTAUR
FEFIER - AR 15 Bk 32 P ok H ) S
RUEBHLR AR Mz TSR T EE

TE o

BAFEFAAEMMEE RS ZEBT
ARR1I2EAARPEEBRERE S
EEEEREBZETES  DRARE
MpERELRMIAZEERRI &
BEREM - ARBE2EFRBBLE
FREZEEFR HERBETALR
BUTEZEBEERE  C¥ELE
HERBERLREEFREEHRE
b FHERATFESGAEMEE RS
ZEHIAZRHEERS -

HZE2021F3A31 B ILFEARAEEEIE
B 1555,00058 7T (20204 : 456,0008
TL) R IBE R RER

IERHE Z F BN IRESS

RI|ERR - MERDFEF A
2ENRZEHTAUEBEERES
WREEE RSN ERE R TT (12T ) &t
e
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PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE

The Group’s properties held for development for sale are situated in
Hong Kong.

At 31 March 2021, HK$800,000,000 of properties held for development
for sale are expected to be completed within twelve months after the
end of the reporting period, while the rest (2020: whole amount) are
expected to be completed more than twelve months.

At 31 March 2021 and 2020, the Group performed assessment of net
realisable value on its properties held for development for sale with
reference to valuations made by independent qualified professional
property valuers not connected with the Group. The valuations were
arriving at by using the residual method. At 31 March 2021, the
estimated net realisable value of the properties held for development
for sale was lower than their carrying amounts, a write-down, net of
reversal, amounting to HK$63,065,000 was recognised in profit or loss
during the year ended 31 March 2021 (2020: HK$134,309,000).

FEHERRMZE

FEBZHIEHEBRRMEDLNE

202143 4318 -+ 800,000,000 7T
ZRENERRYEEBRFREHER
1218 A R FERK + #5758 BI 78 Hi 70 57 2 H7
KB+ =@ ATK (20204 : &
) o

R20214 220203 A31H * K& E
ERBELERRBMEETYER
FEMGE NS ERASELEME
CEBUAERBEEMEMEMZG
B ZSHEDNREBHEESH - B
2021 3A31H ' HIELEBREME
A EEEHERAEERE - ©
HE2021F3A31HIEFERIEZ
TR 1E63,065,000/ 7T (20204
134,309,000/ 7T) °

Analysis of leasehold lands component HE LI D DT -
HK$’'000
FAET
As at 31 March 2020 A202063H31H
Carrying amount AREE 2,441,200
As at 31 March 2021 2021%3H31H
Carrying amount BRMEE 2,754,027
For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE2021F3A31ALFE
Operating cash outflows AR R (160,383)
Investing cash outflows RERS RS (192,251)
Total cash outflows Bem ez (352,634)
For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE2020F3A31HLEEE
Operating cash outflows ISR (315,962)
Investing cash outflows REBRES RN (501,642)
Total cash outflows REmL B (817,604)
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
Additions o 375,892 845.246
Write-down B (63,065) (134,309)
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19.

20.

PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE 19. FHEHERREMEGE)
(Continued)
The carrying amount of leasehold lands is measured at cost less any FAE T #0505 B BR B AP AR = 1
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The residual ARFINEMERBRERBRGTE - F
values are determined as the estimated disposal value of the leasehold HREERTEAEE WIS G
land component. No depreciation charge is made on the leasehold EEE - ZEF2021F %2020F3 A
lands taking into account the estimated residual values as at 31 March 31AMMETFIeRE - REHEE T
2021 and 2020. RITEER -
During the year, there was an increase in the net realisable value FRN - ATHRELEERMEZTE
of certain properties held for development for sale due to market BFERMRmEM - Bt - XFE
condition. As a result, a reversal of write-down of HK$2,400,000 (2020: B R RE # [E 2,400,000/ 7t (2020
nil) has been recognised and included in “write-down on properties F BV EARNEE Z[FEHER
held for development for sale, net of reversal” in the current year. BMEZRE - MkREG] -
All properties held for development for sale have been pledged to AEEMEFECHIELEERME
secure banking facilities granted to the Group in both years. HE AERRUEERRITEE -
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20. BEZRHEMEKRIE
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH&T FT
Trade receivables from contracts with REEHNRF 2B S EWHIE
customers 302 364
Lease receivables FEU AR & RIB 2,319 2,447
Prepayments T RIB 2,585 4,559
Interest receivable JE IR B 767 1,739
Refundable stamp duty (note) e R ENTERT (P 3E) 103,160 66,741
Deposit paid for acquisition of property ~ WEE¥I % 2 Bz & (M 5E41(a)
(note 41(a)) 10,000 -
Other receivables and deposit EMERRIERES 12,189 7,596
131,322 83,446
Analysed as: bakv=
Current portion MENEB S 28,162 16,705
Non-current portion IERENEB D 103,160 66,741
131,322 83,446

Note: In accordance with the provisions of the Hong Kong Stamp Duty Ordinance,
the Group will apply for refund of the stamp duty paid when the property
redevelopment project commences. At 31 March 2021 and 2020, the amount
is included in the Group’s non-current assets in the consolidated statement of
financial position as it is expected that the refund of stamp duty will be received
after twelve months from the end of the reporting period.

MiaE : RBBEBEERADIZ G - EMEE
BEERGE  AEBESRFREBEXM
ENFERE o 20214 K 2020F3A31H -
MR ER R E A 12 AR 2K E
ENFERLRSN - MR BB/ EARELR
BUBRRRZIFRBDEEN
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The Group did not grant any credit period to its tenants in property
investment segment. The aged analysis of trade receivables and lease
receivables, based on the invoice date, at the end of the reporting
period is as follows:

20.

B 5 R EMEWFRIR (&)

NEBWLBHRTITRAMERESELZ
TAERIES - RIEXZAH E5E
WHBEREKRERBENRESE R
BRECAATEAT -

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$’000

TERT FTHAT

0 - 60 days 0-60H 2,300 2,354
61— 90 days 61-90H 186 293
91 - 120 days 91-120H 135 164
2,621 2,811

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other receivables are
set out in note 33.

No credit loss allowance has been recognised on the trade and other
receivables as the directors of the Company consider that the amount
is immaterial.

The Group’s trade and other receivables that are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currencies of the relevant group
entities are set out below:

B 5 N H A IR 2 R B RT b 5 S
E# N33 -

HREAAREERRZREBMT R
B WERE S REMERRERE
EEERE -

REBE 2B 5 FEMERFIAER S
EERNEEE AN EETERT
LI

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$°000

FBxT FHT

UsD E7T = 5517
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21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT

BAVEFAREZEMERE

OR LOSS
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH&T FHT
Listed investments, at fair value: EWigE - RATE -
- Equity securities listed in Hong Kong ~ — A& KX EMRAERE
and United States (note (a)) (Pt 5% (a)) 84,616 39,606
~ Perpetual bonds (note (b)) - K AEFH (b)) 4,048 21,951
Unlisted investments, at fair value: REMKE - RATE :
- Principal protected deposits (note (¢))  — RZAN1F X (Fif 5E(c)) 21,341 2,523
~ Convertible note (note (d)) - AR AR IR (BT 5E (o)) = 9,050
- Investment funds (note (e)) - REES (MsEe) 11,511 10,964
~ Bullion-linked note (note (f) - R H IR (B REM) 3,921 =
~ Equity-linked notes (note (g)) - IR A& (F5E(9) 7,059 =
~ Investment in limited partnership - BRAEBIRE (ML n)
(note () 12,089 -
144,585 84,094
Analysed as: DA -
Current portion MENEB S 128,448 62,143
Non-current portion IERENEB D 16,137 21,951
144,585 84,094

The directors of the Company have no intention to redeem the
perpetual bonds within twelve months from the end of the reporting
period. Also, the earliest possible exit dates of some perpetual bonds
are after twelve months from the end of the reporting period. These
investments are therefore classified as non-current assets in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

RAREBEFIEENREART —(E
HRBEEPKAES  BEoh - KA
BEHFZ2&FREAPAREARI2(E
RA2i& - ZEREREREA BB
READERIERBEE °
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 & £202143A31HILFE

The Group’s financial assets at FVTPL that are denominated in a
currency other than the functional currencies of the relevant group
entities are set out below:

21.

BAVEIFARSEZERMEER

AEEZATEFABSNEREE
RSB ERNGEEREAINEE
FHESZIAT

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
usD e 34,760 21,951
Notes: B EE
(a) The fair values of the listed equity securities are determined based on the (a) AR E 2 A FEAR T AT TR

quoted market closing prices available on the Stock Exchange or an overseas

recognised stock exchange.

The fair values of the perpetual bonds as at 31 March 2021, which amounted
to HK$4,048,000 (2020: HK$21,951,000), are determined based on the quoted
market closing prices available on an overseas recognised stock exchange,
with fixed interests of 6.250% (2020: 5.750% to 7.375%) per annum.

ZmBRmEERE -

(b) KAEHFR2021F3A31B 2 ATFE
4,048,000/ 7T (20204 : 21,951,0007%
TORBEEINERNESFZZFABZ
TISWTEETE - BEFH*ER6.250%
(2020%F : M F5.750%%7.375%) ©

The perpetual bonds are recognised as follows: KABEWERNOT -
HK$’000
FET
At 1 April 2019 R2019F4 A 1H 4,012
Additions Byl 20,600
Interest received B AR (769)
Fair value loss recognised in profit or loss N ERENEEER (1,649)
Exchange adjustments b 5,5 % (243)
At 31 March 2020 R202063A31H 21,951
Additions 3 1,366
Settlement on redemption RERNEE (21,213)
Interest received BFE (1,445)
Fair value gain recognised in profit or loss NEER RN IERTER 3,368
Exchange adjustments [E H R 21
At 31 March 2021 M2021F3A31H 4,048

The principal protected deposits are denominated in RMB and issued by banks

in the PRC. They contain embedded derivative, the interest rate of which is

determined with reference to the exchange rate of USD against HKD and
ranges from 1.00% to 3.00% (2020: 1.40% to 3.41%) per annum with original

maturity of three months.

(© REGRAAREFEIL B ERER
1817 - EBEREITEEAE F BERZ
BEDNBEETABTZABEREF
E11F1.00%Z£3.00% (20204 : 1.40%
E3 M%) R=EAEZIE -
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21.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT 21. BAVESABZZTREE (B

OR LOSS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued) B3 (48)

(d) On 1 February 2019, the Group subscribed for convertible note issued by () R2019F2 818 » A& ERME R
a company listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange, with principal amount of BRI SRR £ 8 — KA A2 AR
HK$10,000,000 which carried interest at 8% per annum payable quarterly % - A&%/R10,000,00087T « FH|=
in arrears with maturity on 1 February 2021 at redemption amount of 100% #8% * REFHX I KRN2021F271
of the principal amount. The convertible note could be converted at any time B B AR E100% 2 A # © ATHRAR
from the date of issue to the maturity date with conversion price of HK$0.9 per RHRAFTAREINMA (L2 EAEH
conversion share. In addition, each of the Group and the issuer had the option LAGRRO0.978 T 2 HIRE I o HSh + AN
to early redeem the convertible note at any time from the date of issue to the KERFTAHATERTAREIHA
maturity date at 100% of the principal amount outstanding under the convertible 12 (R (ATB R A 52 R 2 P 0] T AR
note together with all accrued interest. IR 82 100% AR % 8 %P A EHEF

Be

On 19 March 2019, the issuer and the Group entered into a deed of F2019F3 198  ETARAKER
amendment to revise the terms of the convertible note. According to the deed BEBESOPRE GRS e S Pt S
of amendment, the option for each of the Group and the issuer to early redeem RIBEETRA - RERE RFEITATMER
the convertible note at any time was cancelled from the date of signing of the W I AT 12 R ) TR AR (B 57 2 BRI B 3
deed of amendment. AIERTRKI B VS
The convertible note is recognised as follows: AR SRR RN T

HK$’000

FHET

At 1 April 2019 R2019F4A1H 9,891
Interest received B 2 (867)
Fair value gain recognised in profit or loss AT ERERIBREER 26
At 31 March 2020 7K20203A31H 9,050
Interest received B AL (668)
Fair value gain recognised in profit or loss NEER RN IES TR 1,618
Settlement on maturity REBEREE (10,000)

At 31 March 2021

202143 H831H
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FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT 21. BAVESFABZZTREE (@)
OR LOSS (Continued)
Notes: (Continued) s« (88)
(d) (Continued) (d) (€-))
Valuation of convertible note RREBME
The convertible note was measured at fair value using the Binomial Option AR AR EIR R B X TR KR 202043 A
Pricing Model, at initial recognition and at 31 March 2020. The inputs into the 31AGEAZEAPEEEREANE - R
model as at 31 March 2020 are as follows: 2020 3A31H  ZIEA 2 8 A S
T
2020
20204
Stock price BHER HK$0.3478 7T
Conversion price AR (B HK$0.907% 7T
Volatility B EhE 75.68%
Dividend yield SRS 0%
Time to maturity B HARF 0.84 years4E
Risk-free rate b 0.56%
) The investment funds are denominated in RMB and issued by an unlisted entity (e) BREESAARKEIIELHRRBEZEE
in the PRC. The fair values of the investment funds as at 31 March 2021, which MEEEIT - REESMN20214F3731
amounted to HK$11,511,000 (2020: HK$10,964,000), are measured using the B2 AF{E11,511,000% 7T (20204 -
discounted cash flow method. The expected interest rates are 9.5% (2020: 10,964,000/ 7T) AR IR &R E AR
9.5%) per annum with maturity of less than one year (2020: one year). NFERE o EHFFEK9.5%(2020
F:95%) + TB—FHHI(2020%F : —
FH|H) o
The investment funds are recognised as follows: REESHRLT -
HK$'000
FAT
At 1 April 2019 201944 18 10,245
Interest received B YT B (558)
Fair value gain recognised in profit or loss AFER R IBTER 961
Settlement on redemption B (10,218)
Additions & 11,216
Exchange adjustments &5 A% (687)
At 31 March 2020 K2020F3A31H 10,964
Interest received B UAILE (533)
Fair value gain recognised in profit or loss ANFER RN RS TER 640
Settlement on redemption REEREE (11,851)
Additions & 11,401
Exchange adjustments R 890
At 31 March 2021 M2021F3H31H 11,511
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21.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT

OR LOSS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(U} The fair values of the bullion-linked notes as at 31 March 2021, which
amounted to HK$3,921,000 (2020: nil), are determined based on the market
closing prices quoted by a bank. The bullion-linked notes bear interest at fixed
rate ranging from 4.20% to 10.40% (2020: nil) per annum with maturity of one

month.

The bullion-linked notes are recognised as follows:

21.

BATEFABREZERMEE (@)

B

L ()

U] ELHMZEMR2021F3A31BEMATF
853,921,000 7T (20204 : £&) - T}
RIRSBITFI BT EETE - BESEN
FERIZETEFFEN F4.20%%10.40%
(2020 : \E)FHE - IR A1MER -

EEFHBRBERERNOT

HK$'000

FAT

Additions & 11,815

Settlement on maturity PR AR E (7,995)

Fair value gain recognised in profit or loss FFABEE A AR 50
Exchange adjustments [ H R 51

At 31 March 2021 R2021F3/31H 3,921

@) The fair values of the equity-linked notes as at 31 March 2021, which amounted ©) BEHBZHEN2021FE3A31 AN A F

to HK$7,059,000 (2020: nil), are determined based on the market closing prices
quoted by a bank. The equity-linked notes have maturity of three months.

The equity-linked notes are recognised as follows:

847,059,000/ 70 (20204 : &) - JhiR
BRITARKTEBET - REHMAZE
WEHAA=M@A -

B ARRIERERNT

HK$’000

FHT

Additions N 7,579

Fair value loss recognised in profit or loss SFABZMAFEERL (591)
Exchange adjustments [E H AR 71
At 31 March 2021 K2021F3A31H 7,059
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FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT 21.

OR LOSS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)
(h) The amount at 31 March 2021 represented HK$12,089,000 for interest in a
limited partnership (the “Limited Partnership”) as a limited partner (see note 38

for details).

The investment in limited partnership is recognised as follows:

BAVEIFARSEZERMEER

sk« (8)
() R202143831H M4 5 512,089,000
BITIEBBREE A (GER M 38) iz

o

HERBBMIARRBNOT

HK$’000

FHT

Reclassification from trade and other receivables B 5 I H fth FE U R 8 13,204

Fair value loss recognised in profit or loss FTABEEAFEEL (1,078)

Exchange adjustments IEH AR (37)

At 31 March 2021 R2021F3H31H 12,089
BANK BALANCES AND CASH 22. SRITHEBREAS

Bank balances and cash RITHBRES

The bank balances and cash held by the Group comprise short-term
bank deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, at
prevailing market interest rates ranging from 0.001% to 2.33% (2020:
0.001% to 2.30%) per annum.

The Group’s bank balances and cash that are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currencies of the relevant group
entities are set out below:

AEEFBZRITEHBRREBIER
WITMIHBFENF0.001%%E2.33%
(20204 : 0.001%=2.30%) 2 =8 A
2 AR 2 R ERERITIE K ©

AEELEEESEE R EEE AN
ZEBENRITEBRER ST
T

2021 2020
HK$°000 HK$'000

F#&x FHET

UsD e 2,101 252
RMB AR 35 33
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23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

23. BSREMENTRIE

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Trade payables (note (a)): B S RIEEEE)
0 — 60 days 0-60H 6,455 463
Over 90 days HBiE0H 105 =
6,560 463
Retention payable (note (b)) FER1ES (F3E (D) 9,163 8,963
Rental deposits received and rental B EES RBKRES
received in advance 28,482 31,691
Guarantee money received (note (c)) BURE £ 58 (B3 () 10,000 10,000
Accruals TEIRE A 33,008 42,977
Other taxes payable E R 5,898 6,836
Deposit received from Easyknit KBk E B 2 B YR & (T3 (0)
International (note (d)) 10,000 -
Other payables E At FE AT IR 5,934 3,236
109,045 104,166
Notes: Bt E
(@) The aged analysis of trade payables is determined based on the invoice date, (@) B S REMNFRIBERREARZERDITT
at the end of the reporting period. The average credit period on purchases of RBEZEHEE - BEZ FHRES
goods is 30 days. A30H -
(b) Retention payable is withheld from subcontractors and will be released by the (o) BRRESRT FREHRAEE R

Group within twelve months upon completion of their works.

(c) The amount represents money received from a borrower of the loan financing

business as security for loans granted.

(d) The deposit received from Easyknit International represents the deposit received (d)
for disposal of equity interests in certain subsidiaries holding properties held
for development for sale pursuant to a sale and purchase agreement dated 5
November 2020. The agreement has been terminated subsequent to the end of

the reporting period (see note 41(d)).

IRETERT_EARIH -

© ZEBAERREERBERS 2 —ftE

FRARBHEFERER RS -

F41(d) °

MKEBBREERNESZEREBSHA
2020F 11 ASHAMEE i - LERFAE
FEMENE THE A A 0 AkE K E
IS - ZIHFEE RIS BRI (RH
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24. CONVERTIBLE NOTES CONTAINING LIABILITY AND
EQUITY COMPONENTS

(@)

On 12 June 2015, the Company issued 2% convertible note due
2017 at an aggregate principal amount of HK$86,000,000 to
Madian Star Limited (“Madian”), an independent third party (the
“2015 Convertible Note”).

The 2015 Convertible Note is denominated in HKD and entitles
the holder to convert it into ordinary shares of the Company
at any time between the date of issue of the 2015 Convertible
Note on 12 June 2015 and its settlement date on 12 June
2017 at a conversion price of HK$0.85 per conversion share
(subject to anti-dilutive adjustments). The holder may redeem
the 2015 Convertible Note, at any time three months after
the grant date, at 100% of the principal amount outstanding
together with all interest accrued thereon up to and including
the date of redemption. The Company may redeem the 2015
Convertible Note at its own discretion on any business day prior
to the maturity date at 100% of the principal amount outstanding
together with all interest accrued thereon up to and including the
date of redemption. Pursuant to the adjustment provisions in the
terms and conditions of the 2015 Convertible Note, adjustments
have been made to the conversion price of the 2015 Convertible
Note from HK$0.85 per share to HK$1.81 per share with effect
from 9 October 2015 as a result of a capital reorganisation
and the completion of the issue of rights share, and further to
HK$0.33 per share with effect from 7 January 2016 as a result of
the entering into a deed of amendment to revise the conversion
price which was approved by the shareholders at a special
general meeting of the Company held on 7 January 2016.

24, WBRBREETEAE]

YN E92%)

T

[T

R2015F6 128 » AR AR
% #2%886,000,0005 7T 21T 7
2017FEIHi Z 2% Al A I = T
Madian Star Limited([Madian])
— BB E =7 ([2015F AT AR
ZHE]) o

2015 A MREZEHR A B LA
MEBEAZEANGRLBEEND
0.85B T2 AR EB(FIERE
SEHE) - R201596A1282
2015 A MREEZEITARHE
R2017F6 A128 2 & & A #/
ZAEAIEERE - RREE AR AR
Z LB o B ARERT
BEE =R ZE MM - A
100% A EEACESHEREE
R BIERER B H 2 Fr A e AR A
FEFAER2015F A AR =
& o RRBIRAMRE BB S E
BRIEMZEBEA - A100%
AEELSSHEREERBE
B BHEZ A B AR FIEF
LABEE2015F Al IR T - 1R
HB2015F AT IR R % < # Bl £
BBIARZ ARGR - BRAEHEK
e E B 2015 F A AR =
B2 HBER2015F10A9R #E
RER0.85F AL EFAR1.81
BT R2016F1B7B AR A
BITZWREEFRIAE EERFHE
BEEIENHREBZRAERH
BEmR2016F1A7HEE—F
AREFR0.3ZET -
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24. CONVERTIBLE NOTES CONTAINING LIABILITY AND
EQUITY COMPONENTS (Continued)

(@)

(Continued)

On 1 March 2017, the Company entered into the second deed of
amendment with Madian to further revise the terms of the 2015
Convertible Note. According to the second deed of amendment,
(i) the exercise period of the 2015 Convertible Note is revised
from 2 years to 7 years (i.e. the settlement date is extended to
12 June 2022); (i) the conversion price is revised from HK$0.33
per conversion share to HK$0.16 per conversion share; and (i)
the annual interest rate is revised from 2% to 3% and the interest
will be payable semi-annually in arrears instead of in one lump
sum on the settlement date. The second deed of amendment
was approved by the shareholders at a special general meeting
of the Company held on 26 April 2017. The modification of the
terms was determined to be substantial and hence resulted in
the extinguishment of the original liability component of the 2015
Convertible Note and the recognition of new liability and equity
components (the “First New 2015 Convertible Note”), resulting in
a net loss on modification of terms of convertible note amounting
to HK$1,023,000 being recognised in profit or loss during the
year ended 31 March 2018.

24.

TRREEES AT

(&)

(@)

i
X
et

K
5
9

R2017F3A180 » ARF R
Madianz] 37 & — P B ET 2 & A
HE—HEFT2015FE A R ER
R - RIBEE —MISFT2E -
(2015 F A R B EITE AR A2
FHATFBNEEAERE2022
F6H22R) ; () LREKBER
HRM0.33B LB AERA
HERH 068 T+ K (i) FIEFF
KH2BEEF] AIERBIRTYF
MARIN— MR ELEER—
IRBE AT - BEZMEFTREBEER
2017F 426 R B2 AR R
RRERIAE EEREIE - 25
BRZIETEREAEAILA L
BH2015F A MR FR 2 RHK
BEBHRARERT A G RE
=B ([ —1n ¥T2015F Al i %
R - ERITERRERERE
BUFE B £ %1,023,00058 TR
B ZE2018F3A31HILLFEZE
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24. CONVERTIBLE NOTES CONTAINING LIABILITY AND
EQUITY COMPONENTS (Continued)

(@)

(Continued)

On 26 March 2019, the Company entered into the third deed of
amendment with Madian in relation to the proposed alterations
of the conversion price of the 2015 Convertible Note, which was
subsequently terminated and replaced by the fourth deed of
amendment entered into between the Company and Madian on
8 April 2019. According to the fourth deed of amendment, (i) the
conversion price of the 2015 Convertible Note is further revised
from HK$0.16 per conversion share to HK$0.06 per conversion
share; and (i) restrictions are imposed on conversions that
would lead to an offer being required under Rule 26 of the Hong
Kong Code on Takeovers and Mergers (the “Takeovers Code”)
and/or the Company breaching the public float requirement
under the Listing Rules. The restrictions will prevent conversion
to the extent that would lead to a breach of the public float
requirements and/or require a mandatory offer under Rule 26
of the Takeover Code. The fourth deed of amendment was
approved by the shareholders at a special general meeting of the
Company held on 21 May 2019. The modification of the terms
was determined to be substantial and hence resulted in the
extinguishment of the original liability component of the First New
2015 Convertible Note and the recognition of new liability and
equity components (the “Second New 2015 Convertible Note”),
resulting in a net loss on modification of terms of convertible
note amounting to HK$37,526,000 being recognised in profit or
loss during the year ended 31 March 2020.

On 27 May 2019, the conversion rights attached to the Second
New 2015 Convertible Note were partially exercised for
HK$8,400,000, and a total of 140,000,000 conversion shares
were issued upon conversion. Further on 2 August 2019, the
conversion rights attached to the Second New 2015 Convertible
Note were partially exercised for HK$37,200,000, and a total of
620,000,000 conversion shares were issued upon conversion.

24, WBRBREETEAE]
(4&)

(@)

YN E92%)

T

[T

(&)

MR2019F3 260 » AN &)
Madian3t 155720154 Al A8 2
BOEBBREILE-DETR
B HEWRILE THAQA
i Madian# 201954 A8H F] 3L
FEMNMETZBRER - RET
FEUMEET R -+ ()2015F A
MR EE AR E BT RIERAR
70.167 it — T AE RAERAR
AR 19 0.067 7T+ K (ii) ¥ 85 e
MRS - EBRBE(EBREBER
B OSFRID ([CUBE=F A 1) 26
BHZELOR R AFRERT(E
MHRADWARIFREEKR - &
L fR BT E B - ABGE R
(REFREVRERHEK
B3R (U BE <7 BII) BB 261612 o8
HIEZL - EUGHETZEER
2019F 521 R &1TH A RF 5|
BREARE LESRERE - HiE
FHERERARERD © Bt
BHE—DH2015F Al E
BRI RA B EI DR - ATk
REE KRR B EER A
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24.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES CONTAINING LIABILITY AND
EQUITY COMPONENTS (Continued)

(@)

(Continued)

Pursuant to the adjustment provisions in the terms and
conditions of the Second New 2015 Convertible Note,
adjustments have been made to the conversion price of the
Second New 2015 Convertible Note from HK$0.06 per share to
HK$0.986 per share with effect from 4 February 2020 as a result
of a consolidation of share and the completion of the issue of
rights share.

On 31 March 2020, the Second New 2015 Convertible Note
with principal amount of HK$40,400,000 remained outstanding.
Assuming full conversion of the Second New 2015 Convertible
Note at a revised conversion price of HK$0.986 at 31 March
2020, the Second New 2015 Convertible Note will be convertible
into 40,994,419 new ordinary shares of HK$0.2 each in the
share capital of the Company.

On 11 January 2021, Madian exercised the early redemption
option under Second New 2015 Convertible Note for
early redemption of the outstanding principal amount of
HK$40,400,000 in full together with all accrued and unpaid
interest of HK$342,000, the proceeds thereof are not paid in
cash but are used as partial settlement of a loan receivable
owned to the Company by a borrower which constitute a non-
cash transaction. After the early redemption, the Second New
2015 Convertible Note has been cancelled, the Company has
been discharged from any and all of the obligations under and
the conversion rights has lapsed. The early redemption resulted
in a loss on early redemption amounting to HK$8,406,000 being
recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income during the year ended 31 March 2021.
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24. CONVERTIBLE NOTES CONTAINING LIABILITY AND
EQUITY COMPONENTS (Continued)

(o)

On 11 May 2017, the Company issued 3% convertible note due
2022 at an aggregate principal amount of HK$16,000,000 to
Easyknit International (the “First 2017 Convertible Note”).

The First 2017 Convertible Note is denominated in HKD and
entitles the holder to convert it into ordinary shares of the
Company at any time between the date of issue of the First 2017
Convertible Note on 11 May 2017 and its settlement date on
11 May 2022 at a conversion price of HK$0.16 per conversion
share (subject to anti-dilutive adjustments). The holder may
redeem the First 2017 Convertible Note, at any time three
months after the grant date, at 100% of the principal amount
outstanding together with all interest accrued thereon up to and
including the date of redemption. The Company may redeem
the First 2017 Convertible Note on any business day prior to
the maturity date at 100% of the principal amount outstanding
together with all interest accrued thereon up to and including
the date of redemption. Pursuant to the adjustment provisions
in the terms and conditions of the First 2017 Convertible Note,
adjustments have been made to the conversion price of the First
2017 Convertible Note from HK$0.16 per share to HK$2.628
per share with effect from 4 February 2020 as a result of a
consolidation of share and the completion of the issue of rights
share.
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24.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES CONTAINING LIABILITY AND

EQUITY COMPONENTS (Continued)

(0)

(Continued)

On 18 September 2020, the Company entered into the deed
of amendment with Easyknit International in relation to the
proposed alterations of the conversion price of the First 2017
Convertible Note. According to the deed of amendment, (i) the
conversion price of the First 2017 Convertible Note is further
revised from HK$2.628 per conversion share to HK$0.25
per conversion share; (i) the maturity date of the First 2017
Convertible Note will be extended to 28 August 2024; and
(iii) the interest payable on First 2017 Convertible Note will be
increased from 3% to 4% per annum. The deed of amendment
was approved by the shareholders at a special general meeting
of the Company held on 19 November 2020. And the Company
received the approval letter from Stock Exchange on 25
November 2020. The modification of the terms was determined
to be substantial and hence resulted in the extinguishment of
the original liability component of the First 2017 Convertible
Note and the recognition of new liability and equity components
(the “First New 2017 Convertible Note”), resulting in a net loss
on modification of terms of convertible note amounting to
HK$4,029,000 and net loss on remeasurement on inception
date of convertible note amounting to HK$7,040,000 of being
recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income during the year ended 31 March 2021.
On 31 March 2021, the First New 2017 Convertible Note with
principal amount of HK$16,000,000 remained outstanding.
Assuming full conversion of the First New 2017 Convertible Note
at a conversion price of HK$0.25 at 31 March 2021, the First
New 2017 Convertible Note will be convertible into 64,000,000
new ordinary shares of HK$0.2 each in the share capital of the
Company.

Conversion shares will be allotted and issued upon exercise of
the conversion rights. If the First New 2017 Convertible Note is
not converted during the conversion period up to the maturity
date, it will be redeemed on the maturity date at par with
outstanding accrued interest. Interest of 4% per annum will be
paid semi-annually in arrears up until the settlement date.
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24. CONVERTIBLE NOTES CONTAINING LIABILITY AND
EQUITY COMPONENTS (Continued)

(o)

(Continued)

The First New 2017 Convertible Note contains liability
component, equity component, and holder and issuer early
redemption options. As the early redemption options are closely
related to the host contract, they are not treated as separate
derivatives. The equity component is presented in equity heading
“convertible note equity reserve”. The effective interest rate of
the liability component of the First New 2017 Convertible Note
is 24.57% per annum and 28.39% per annum before and after
modification.

On 26 September 2017, the Company issued 3% convertible
note due 2020 at an aggregate principal amount of
HK$28,200,000 to Easyknit International (the “Second 2017
Convertible Note”).

The Second 2017 Convertible Note is denominated in HKD
and entitles the holder to convert it into ordinary shares of the
Company at any time between the date of issue of the Second
2017 Convertible Note on 26 September 2017 and its settlement
date on 26 September 2020 at a conversion price of HK$0.06
per conversion share (subject to anti-dilutive adjustments). The
holder may redeem the Second 2017 Convertible Note, at any
time three months after the grant date, at 100% of the principal
amount outstanding together with all interest accrued thereon
up to and including the date of redemption. The Company may
redeem the Second 2017 Convertible Note on any business
day prior to the maturity date at 100% of the principal amount
outstanding together with all interest accrued thereon up to
and including the date of redemption. On 18 October 2017,
the conversion rights attached to the Second 2017 Convertible
Note were partially exercised for HK$16,920,000, and a total of
282,000,000 conversion shares were issued upon conversion.
Pursuant to the adjustment provisions in the terms and
conditions of the Second 2017 Convertible Note, adjustments
have been made to the conversion price of the Second 2017
Convertible Note from HK$0.06 per share to HK$0.986
per share with effect from 4 February 2020 as a result of a
consolidation of shares and the completion of the issue of rights
share.
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24.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES CONTAINING LIABILITY AND

EQUITY COMPONENTS (Continued)

()

(Continued)

On 18 September 2020, the Company entered into the deed
of amendment with Easyknit International in relation to the
proposed alterations of the conversion price of the Second
2017 Convertible Note. According to the deed of amendment,
(i) the conversion price of the Second 2017 Convertible Note is
further revised from HK$0.986 per conversion share to HK$0.25
per conversion share; (i) the maturity date of the Second 2017
Convertible Note will be extended to 28 August 2024; and (i)
the interest payable on Second 2017 Convertible Note will be
increased from 3% to 4% per annum. The deed of amendment
was approved by the shareholders at a special general meeting
of the Company held on 19 November 2020 and the Company
received the approval letter from Stock Exchange on 25
November 2020. The modification of the terms was determined
to be substantial and hence resulted in the extinguishment of
the original liability component of the Second 2017 Convertible
Note and the recognition of new liability and equity components
(the “Second New 2017 Convertible Note”), resulting in a gain
on modification of terms of convertible note amounting to
HK$652,000 and loss on remeasurement on inception date of
convertible note amounting to 4,964,000 of being recognised
and net amount of HK$4,312,000 presented under “net loss
on modification of terms of convertible note” in consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
during the year ended 31 March 2021. On 31 March 2021,
the Second New 2017 Convertible Note with principal amount
of HK$11,280,000 remained outstanding. Assuming full
conversion of the Second New 2017 Convertible Note at a
conversion price of HK$0.25 at 31 March 2021, the Second
New 2017 Convertible Note will be convertible into 45,120,000
new ordinary shares of HK$0.2 each in the share capital of the
Company.

Conversion shares will be allotted and issued upon exercise
of the conversion rights. If the Second New 2017 Convertible
Note is not converted during the conversion period up to the
maturity date, it will be redeemed on the maturity date at par
with outstanding accrued interest. Interest of 4% per annum will
be paid semi-annually in arrears up until the settlement date.
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24. CONVERTIBLE NOTES CONTAINING LIABILITY AND
EQUITY COMPONENTS (Continued)

()

(Continued)

The Second New 2017 Convertible Note contains liability
component, equity component, and holder and issuer early
redemption options. As the early redemption options are closely
related to the host contract, they are not treated as separate
derivatives. The equity component is presented in equity heading
“convertible note equity reserve”. The effective interest rate of
the liability component of the Second New 2017 Convertible
Note is 44.06% per annum and 31.69% per annum before and
after modification.

On 28 August 2019, the Company issued 3% convertible note
due 2024 at an aggregate principal amount of HK$70,000,000
to Easyknit International (the “2019 Convertible Note”).

The 2019 Convertible Note is denominated in HKD and entitles
the holder to convert it into ordinary shares of the Company at
any time between the date of issue of the 2019 Convertible Note
on 28 August 2019 and its settlement date on 28 August 2024
at a conversion price of HK$0.055 per conversion share (subject
to anti-dilutive adjustments).

Pursuant to the adjustment provisions in the terms and
conditions of the 2019 Convertible Note, adjustments have been
made to the conversion price of the 2019 Convertible Note from
HK$0.055 per share to HK$0.910 per share with effect from 4
February 2020 as a result of a consolidation of shares and the
completion of the issue of rights share.
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24.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES CONTAINING LIABILITY AND

EQUITY COMPONENTS (Continued)

(d)

(Continued)

On 18 September 2020, the Company entered into the deed
of amendment with Easyknit International in relation to the
proposed alterations of the conversion price of the 2019
Convertible Note. According to the deed of amendment, (i)
the conversion price of the 2019 Convertible Note is further
revised from HK$0.910 per conversion share to HK$0.25 per
conversion share; (i) the maturity date of the 2019 Convertible
Note will be extended to 28 August 2024; and (iii) the interest
payable on 2019 Convertible Note will be increased from 3%
to 4% per annum. The deed of amendment was approved by
the shareholders at a special general meeting of the Company
held on 19 November 2020 and the Company received the
approval letter from Stock Exchange on 25 November 2020.
The modification of the terms was determined to be substantial
and hence resulted in the extinguishment of the original liability
component of the 2019 Convertible Note and the recognition
of new liability and equity components (the “ New 2019
Convertible Note”), resulting in a loss on modification of terms
of convertible note amounting to HK$4,952,000 and loss on
remeasurement on inception date of convertible note amounting
to HK$61,516,000 of being recognised and total amount of
HK$66,468,000 presented under “net loss on modification of
terms of convertible note” in consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income during the year
ended 31 March 2021. On 31 March 2021, the New 2019
Convertible Note with principal amount of HK$70,000,000
remained outstanding. Assuming full conversion of the New
2019 Convertible Note at a conversion price of HK$0.25 at 31
March 2021, the New 2019 Convertible Note will be convertible
into 280,000,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.2 each in the
share capital of the Company, where the number of conversion
shares is limited by the adjustment provisions in the terms and
conditions of the 2019 Convertible Note.

Conversion shares will be allotted and issued upon exercise of
the conversion rights. If the New 2019 Convertible Note is not
converted during the conversion period up to the maturity date,
it will be redeemed on the maturity date at par with outstanding
accrued interest. Interest of 4% per annum will be paid semi-
annually in arrears up until the settlement date.
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24. CONVERTIBLE NOTES CONTAINING LIABILITY AND 24. TREBESEBERERZND
EQUITY COMPONENTS (Continued) (#)
(Continued) @ (&
The New 2019 Convertible Note contains liability component and 201 OFH A MREEBRSAE
equity component. The equity component is presented in equity DRI D o B ab o T
heading “convertible note equity reserve”. The effective interest m*ﬁ%f—fﬁf?ﬁ-mff”LGﬁ #1H
rate of the liability component of the New 2019 Convertible Note I - RUBHERBE - 2019
is 15.80% per annum and 18.79% per annum before and after FHARBREBEEEBDRNENR
modification. AR R 18 2 B FRE D BIA
15.80%5.18.79% ©
The movement of the liability component of the above convertible LR ER A GRS 2 B
notes is set out below: HHT
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FHT
At the beginning of the year REF] 87,701 62,986
Issue of the 2019 Convertible Note 257720194 A] #2 i Z= 4% - 39,787
Derecognition of original liability RERARRERIGREIUE
component upon modification of WRRARZ BEKSD
terms of convertible notes (69,304) (48,834)
Recognition of new liability R E AR IR
component upon modification of IR R B EKH
terms of convertible notes 55,510 43,903
Derecognition of original liability RE XA RRERIGREIUE
component upon early redemption  FERIEA 2 B &K%
of the Second New 2015
Convertible Note (30,271) -
Conversion Hia = (23,182)
Accretion of interest FEZBAEE 18,393 16,741
Interest paid BEARFLE (3,865) (3,700)
58,164 87,701
Less: Amount with early redemption  J& : 2 Al & [ BE A% #E ~ £ B8R
option shown under current AVTEI=E=EN
liabilities (13,417) (45,431)
Amount without early redemption mIRRIIE B B AR ME B —F1& 5 HY
option and due after one year HEeFERERDABETET
shown under non-current liabilities 44,747 42,270

173



174

EMINENCE ENTERPRISE LIMITED - Annual Report 2021

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2021 & Z£2021F3A31 8 It FE

25. SECURED BANK BORROWINGS

25.

BIEMRTEE
2021 2020
HK$000 HK$'000
FET THTT

Carrying amount repayable as follows (based EEEFEZERENT (REE

on the scheduled repayment dates set out KipEAATS 2 EE B )
in the loan agreements):
- within one year -—FRA 436,348 379,177
— within a period of more than one year but - ZR—FETBBMFHEA
not exceeding two years 664,479 356,771
— within a period of more than two years but - ZAMFETNBEBRAFTHER
not exceeding five years 338,877 648,231
- within a period of more than five years - HBBRFHEA 75,229 47,561
1,514,933 1,431,740
Less: Amount due within one year shown B RRBABEETZ—FR
under current liabilities B £58 (436,348) (379,177)
Amount due after one year shown under RIERBAEIET 2 —F1& 35
non-current liabilities x| 1,078,585 1,052,563

At 31 March 2021, the Group’s secured bank borrowings carry
interest ranging from HIBOR plus 1.0% to 1.8% or LIBOR plus 0.8%
(2020: HIBOR plus 1.0% to 1.8%, LIBOR plus 0.8%) per annum,
with effective interest ranging from 0.89% to 2.77% (2020: 1.79% to
3.40%) per annum. The loans are secured by investment properties
of the Group with an aggregate carrying amount of HK$925,967,000
(2020: HK$925,149,000) and properties held for development for
sale of the Group with carrying amount of HK$2,754,027,000 (2020:
HK$2,441,200,000). The proceeds were mainly used to finance
acquisition of investment properties, development of properties and
acquisition of financial products.

M202143A318  A&EBZ2HEKIE
BITEBEEENTEARITRERS
IN1.0%%E1.8%k e HIRITRZERFE
hn0.8% (20204 : HHEMITEEF L
M1.0%%E1.8% * WBRITRERE
hn0.8%) « EEMFFENF0.89%
B2.77%(2020%F : 1.79%E3.4%) °
BRUAEEZREMERERES
H#49925,967,0007% 7T (20204 :
925,149,000 L) R A EBEFELE
BRYE 2 RME{E2,754,027,0007% 7T
(20204F : 2,441,200,0007% 7T) 1E A 1K
HoRBEXERERBREDE 9
¥UELBESRERIABE
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SECURED BANK BORROWINGS (Continued) 25.

The Group’s secured bank borrowings that are denominated in a
currency other than the functional currencies of the relevant group
entities are set out below:

SEEERAT - 2021 FiR

BEFRITIEEE

AEENAREEERDETEIUIN

ZEEIE AEREERIINT -

2021 2020
HK$°000 HK$’000
FiET FHET
usD ETT 30,665 51,895
LEASE LIABILITIES 26. HE&®E
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FiET FHT
Lease liabilities payable: EIzHEEE
Within a period not exceeding one year TR —FHEA 2,442 1,031
Within a period of more than one year but not %R — S BN BBMFHRER
exceeding two years 2,445 -
Within a period of more than two years but not % R R B2 18 T F HiR
exceeding five years 1,034 -
5,921 1,031
Less: Amount due for settlement within 12 B 12 B AEIBEE 2
months shown under current liabilities SHEBTRRBEET (2,442) (1,031)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months 12 ZEPEE &8
under non-current liabilities BATRRIERBAET 3,479 -

The Group leases a property to operate its business and these lease
liabilities are measured at the present value of the lease payments that
are not yet paid.

Lease and rentals are negotiated and fixed for a term of 2 to 3 years

AEEAMYRAELEHER - MiE
LEEB BN A NOEENRE

HR AR B

HOLHEEE RN -2 =4 (2020

o

(2020: 3 years). F o ZE) o
DEFERRED TAXATION 27. EFREBIIE

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET F#T
Deferred tax assets TR E = 8,250 =
Deferred tax liabilities EERIHAE (34,812) (27,647)
(26,562) (27,647)
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27.

DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued) 27. ELERIE(E)
The followings are the major deferred tax assets (liabilities) recognised RFEARBAFTFEERRAETEZE
and movements thereon during the current and prior years: EFHEEE BB NUREZESHOT -
ECL Revaluation Convertible
allowance  of properties  notes issued Total
BHEE
FiEEE MEER ARREE ot
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR T TR
At 1 April 2019 R201954818 - (24,393) (8,264) (32,657)
Credit to profit or loss for the year RAFEBREFEA = 3,536 2,152 5,688
Recognition upon issue of FIITARERRER
convertible note - - (4,985) (4,985)
Release upon modification of BRARRERERE
terms of convertible note 303 = = 6,132 6,132
Recognition upon modification of BRABRRERERE
terms of convertible note R - - (7,005) (7,005)
Release upon conversion SRR - - 3,699 3,699
Exchange adjustments R RE - 1,481 - 1,481
At 31 March 2020 R202053A31 A - (19,376) 8,271) (27,647)
Credit to profit or loss for the year RAFEBREPEA 8,250 1,454 2,397 12,101
Release upon modification of BRATRRREERE
terms of convertible note fRER - - 4,580 4,580
Recognition upon modification of BYABRRERERE
terms of convertible note R - = (15,781) (15,781)
Release upon early redemption REEERRR - = 1,730 1,730
Exchange adjustments EHRE - (1,545) - (1,545)
At 31 March 2021 R202143831R 8,250 (19,467) (15,345) (26,562)

At 31 March 2021, the Group has unused tax losses of
HK$186,754,000 (2020: HK$179,586,000) available for offset against
future profits. The tax losses can be carried forward indefinitely. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of such losses due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams.

At 31 March 2021, the Group has deductible temporary differences of
HK$120,110,000 (2020: HK$150,082,000). A deferred tax has been
recognised in respect of HK$50,000,000 (2020: nil) of such temporary
differences. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation
to the remaining deductible temporary difference of HK$70,110,000
(2020: HK$150,082,000) as it is not probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences can be
utilised.

MR2021F3A31H ' AEEEXHA
i 18 518 186,754,000 7T (20204F :
179,586,000/% 7T.) LA FB 1E K 88 R 2K V4
o BIBEBRBITERALE - ARK
BETERI AR HE A - R EEIER
BHEREECHBEE -

MR2021E3A31H - REREH AT
MEREZRA120,110,000% 7T
(20204 : 150,082,000/ 7T) > E %t
50,000,000/ 7T (20204 : #)% %
TREEZEBRIBELERE - ARTK
A] e FERRBUE T A A R AT 4K 40
TRHHEZE  RUERFAKATENY
BFIEZ270,110,000/%8 7T (20204 :
150,082,000 L) BMRIELEFHIEE
E °
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27. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued) 27. EFEBIIE ()
Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on dividends RIFRBEBEREHE - 200851
declared in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from 1 A1B P ENE R ARROFES
January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not been provided BB S BUTE AL o AN E A
for in the consolidated financial statements in respect of temporary HEGHEREZENERIER - W&
differences attributable to accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries BB T SRR R kR B B A B REF
amounting to HK$98,413,000 (2020: HK$84,145,000) as the Group is i 1 FE G 8 B 1 = 2.98,413,000/8 7T
able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences (2020%F : 84,145,0007 7T) sHRIEIE R
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the He BZERMEZEEERHRK
foreseeable future. RAlge T~ eEmE -
28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. IRA
Nominal value Number
per share of shares Amount
BREE RHER k]
Notes HK$ HK$’000
B aE BT FAT
Authorised: ETE
At 1 April 2019 M2019F4 /18 0.01 20,000,000,000 200,000
Consolidation of shares A bF (b) 0.01 (19,000,000,000) =
At 31 March 2020 M2020F3A31H 0.2 1,000,000,000 200,000
Increase on 23 July 2020 202047 H23RH (d)
o 0.2 1,000,000,000 200,000
At 31 March 2021 M20214F3A31H 0.2 2,000,000,000 400,000
Issued and fully paid: BEARMR -
At 1 April 2019 M2019F4 /18 0.01 2,965,832,059 29,658
Conversion of convertible notes 5 Al 8 =4 (@) 0.01 760,000,000 7,600
Consolidation of shares A b (b) 0.01 (3,539,540,457) =
0.2 186,291,602 37,258
Rights issue of shares AR A (© 0.2 745,166,408 149,033
At 31 March 2020 and 2020638318 &
31 March 2021 20213 A31H 931,458,010 186,291
Notes: Bt E

(a) On 27 May 2019, the Second New 2015 Convertible Note with a principal
amount of HK$8,400,000 was converted into shares of HK$0.01 each in the
Company at the conversion price of HK$0.06 per share. Accordingly, a total of
140,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each were allocated and issued by
conversion of the convertible note.

On 2 August 2019, the Second New 2015 Convertible Note with a principal
amount of HK$37,200,000 was converted into shares of HK$0.01 each in the
Company at the conversion price of HK$0.06 per share. Accordingly, a total of
620,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each were allocated and issued by
conversion of the convertible note.

MR2019F5H27H ' A& & B A
8,400,000 JC B 58 — 15 720154 A &
MR A S RR0.0678 T KRB KR A
AAREBREBE0.OIEBTHRG -
it » & #£140,000,0008% = I% & {H0.0178
TOR)E RAR TYIE B AR IR AR AR B
10

201948 A28 + A& #8437,200,000
HITRE Z D 2015 A AR Z 3 A
BAR0.06B TH HIRBHRMAER ARG
AREEO0.01 BT, » FEit - & 3%
620,000,000/% & AX I {E0.0178 7T #) i
BRI B AR TR AR AR T 31T -
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28. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

20.

Notes: (Continued)

(b) The Company underwent a capital reorganisation which involved, among
others, consolidation of issued and unissued shares, increase of nominal value
of paid up capital of consolidated shares and increase of nominal value of
all shares in the authorised share capital. The capital reorganisation became
effective on 8 January 2020, as a result of which (i) every twenty issued and
unissued then existing shares of HK$0.01 each were consolidated into one
consolidated share of HK$0.2 each, (i) par value per share of the Company’s
share capital was increased from HK$0.01 to HK$0.2 and (iii) the authorised
share capital of the Company be increased by increasing the par value of
all consolidated shares in the authorised share capital of the Company from
HK$0.01 each to HK$0.2 each.

(c) On 4 February 2020, the Company allotted 745,166,408 rights shares of
HK$0.2 each at a subscription price of HK$0.483 per rights share on the
basis of four rights shares for every one then existing ordinary share held. The
Company raised HK$359,915,000 before transaction costs amounting to
HK$4,336,000 with the intention at the time of rights issue to finance potential
property investments and serve as general working capital of the Group.

(d) On 23 July 2020, the authorised share capital of the Company increased from
HK$200,000,000 divided into 1,000,000,000 shares to HK$400,000,000
divided into 2,000,000,000 shares by creation of an additional 1,000,000,000
unissued shares. The par value of HK$0.2 each of the share remains
unchanged.

All shares issued during the year ended 31 March 2020 rank pari passu
with the then existing shares in issue in all respects.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

On 29 June 2012, a share option scheme (the “2012 Share Option
Scheme”) was approved by the shareholders of the Company. Under
the terms of the 2012 Share Option Scheme, the board of directors
of the Company may, at its absolute discretion, offer options to
any full-time employee, director or consultant of any member of the
Group (including associated companies) to subscribe for shares in
the Company subject to the terms and conditions stipulated therein.
The 2012 Share Option Scheme is valid during the period of ten years
commencing 29 June 2012, unless otherwise cancelled or amended.

The purposes of the 2012 Share Option Scheme are to encourage
eligible participants to work towards enhancing the value of the
Company and its shares for the benefit of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole.

28.

29.

e NCE
GERNE)

(o) RAREITT —BRASZHE AR
AU BITNARBITOMRG - NG 6
&7 B B Wi 7 T RN 386 0% FE AR AR FR
Fr A R fn B E B o ARZR E 47202041
AsAAM - HARZ()\B20RBRAE
0.01BTTHE BITMARBEITHRA KRR
A BREREMEC.BTME HHIR
% (i)VSREER R MRAH.01HBT
HANZE0.2 7T + LA K (i) BB iE AR A
EERARBEEA RN OEER TR
0.017 7T hn 2 AR 0.2/ 7T AL hn A 7)
HERERRAN o

(©) 202052 A48  RD ARG AARAR
190.48378 T ) R RE (B Bit 745,166,408
SR EEC.2B TR - RER
BRHA-BRNREA S BRI
f&fn - A2 R)#E43859,915,000/ T -
M B KA 44,336,000/ 7T © EHEFER
HEBBENYERERRES - XA
EREEN—REEED -

(d) 202097 A238 © ANARMEERA
£5200,000,0007% 7T (5 £1,000,000,000
B&)#®ZE400,000,0008 T (H A
2,000,000,0004%) * #01,000,000,000
g o TR0 T B MR TE -

FrERE ZE202093 831 8 I FE31T
ZHRHRETEEERBEHTRNE
BEREER -

URDABERI N 2R S

R2012F6 290 + AN B REBLAE—
BB AERTE (201288 A8 - 1R
B2012ME IRIERT &l 2 3 - AR AE
T REBEBIEE - BIEZT
ZI PR TE 2 G TR IR 16 1 1) 7R B (B £ 1]
RE QR (BIEHE AR 2 E A2 EE
8 EFHEMELAREARAQAR
19 2 BERRAE - 201288 A4 51 S BR JE A
Hb 75 A GEHSER] - BRIB201246
A29B BFH10FEMAN—BE &R °

2012 A BB EBR T A ERS
HEFNREARARAARERN ZEE
NFEARRR RERR 2 BB -
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

The maximum number of shares which may be issued under the 2012
Share Option Scheme must not (when aggregate with any shares to be
issued under any other share option schemes of the Company) exceed
10% of the shares in issue at the date of adoption of the 2012 Share
Option Scheme.

The maximum number of shares issuable upon the exercise of the
share options granted to each eligible participant of the 2012 Share
Option Scheme within any 12-month period, is limited to 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue. Any further grant of share options in
excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general
meeting of the Company with such grantee and his associate(s)
abstaining from voting.

The exercise period of the share options under 2012 Share Option
Scheme is determined by the board of directors of the Company and
shall end on a date which is not later than ten years from the date
of grant of the options. At the time of grant of the share options, the
Company must (a) specify the minimum period(s), if any, for which a
share option must be held before it can be exercised in whole or in
part, and (b) specify the minimum performance target(s), if any, which
must be achieved before the share options can be exercised in whole
or in past. The amount payable on acceptance of an offer for grant of
share options is HK$1.

The exercise price in respect of any particular option of the 2012 Share
Option Scheme may be determined by the board of directors of the
Company in its absolute discretion and notified to each offeree but may
not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the Company’s
shares on the Stock Exchange as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets on the date of offer, which must be a business day;
(i) the average closing price of the Company’s shares on the Stock
Exchange as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of offer; and
(iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares on the date of offer.

Details of share options granted under the 2012 Share Option Scheme
are as follows:

Date of grant Vesting period

Exercise period

29.

RO BER N 2R 5 (8)

RIF201 2B IAEFT BRI BE R TT 2R D
Bt 8B A5 (EREA R R ZEME
ORI 8 T RITZEARN S
HEE) BBRRM201 2B RE 8 E
Bz BEETRMNZ10% °

REAA121E B HAR A - E20128 i
HECEEERSHRETEAMER
FT2HERER  BTREIZERRN
HE  UAQRRBBITRHOZ1%E
PR o (Al — BRI EBBILRE 2B
BEAE - BERERARABRERE £
BERTEE  MZARAREHRE
ANBRERE -

B IR201 2 R AR 51 81 2 B AR 17 (5 A7
HARRIZEZERE  BETERE
LEREZSRBITTFZALER - R
BHBARER - NQRME@)TERE
RiEEBRBAOTEZAMFEZER
HBARR (1N B) + K (b)5E AA B AR A 2 BF =k 3B
DITEZ R MBARE 2 ZERBAEE
(tnA) - siEmE L ERE ZHE
18T ©

ARREFSIRAEBHIIEE &
TE201 288 IR AT B 2 1] 5 T B AR 48
ZITEE  THESXEHNA  HH
BITEETASLROHREN B (KA
AREERRBRAMZEARERM
AR RRD IR 2 W8 ()25
ZEHPMATAMEEED  RERAZ
FHBREBERAVARQ R RGBT
ZEFHWHE  R(NVARBRBRORE
HAPZEEUERSEARE) -

2012 BT B 2 BB AR RIS A0
T

Exercise price per share

i A BB 1T1EH BRITEE
HK$
BT
14.10.2016 Nil 14.10.2016 - 13.10.2019 0.176
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29. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 29. URMOAERIMNZRE (&)
The following table discloses movements of the Company’s share TRFBERE2012BREEHES
options held by employees and directors pursuant to the 2012 Share REEREARRIZERENRFAR
Option Scheme during prior years: BAFEEE)

Number of share options

BREHE
Exercise Qutstanding at Expired during  Outstanding at
Date of grant price 1.4.2019 the year 31.3.2020
R BH 1768 #1.4.2019 RENTIE 481.3.2020
HK$
BT
Directors BF
14.10.2016 0.176 22,600,000 (22,600,000) -
Employees EE
14.10.2016 0.176 45,200,000 (45,200,000) -
67,800,000 (67,800,000) -
Exercisable at end of the year AR A[1T{E -
Weighted average exercise MEEEITEEET)
price (HKS) 0.176 0.176 N/ATIE
All share options have been expired in prior year and no outstanding FEBBREDRAFEEEEH - RWmE

share options at the end of both years. FERWFEARITFEIEIRME -
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RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 30. REMEITHzEBZRAGE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising from TRFINAEBEREMETH 2 AE
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. 28 BREASIIERCEH - KB
Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which cash flows MEZH BBENEBERETES -
were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated SARRREREFSHIERELEER
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing activities. REHERERZKEMEFTDH B
@/}lui °©
Convertible  Secured bank Lease
notes borrowings liabilities Total
TRBREE BRARTEE HEEE g
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAET FET FTAT THAT
(Note 24) (Note 25) (Note 26)
GEZ) (BizE25) (Ht7£26)
At 1 April 2019 7M2019F4 B 1H 62,986 1,075,229 3,444 1,141,659
Bank borrowings raised E£BITER - 585,240 = 585,240
Proceeds from issue of convertible TR IR Z K 7 ek
note 39,787 - - 39,787
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITEE = (228,101) = (228,101)
Repayment of lease liabilities EBEHESRE - - (2,413) (2,413)
Interest paid * A7 & (3,700) (42,548) ®3) (46,331)
99,073 1,389,820 948 1,489,841
Non-cash changes: FReEH
- Interest expense on convertible - ARRERZHE
notes X 16,741 = = 16,741
- Interest expense on bank - RITERZFERE
borrowings - 42,396 - 42,396
- Interest expense on lease liabilites -~ FAEBEZFIEFHX - = 83 83
~ Derecogpnition of original liability — BRI B ER
component upon modification R FERRE &
of terms of convertible notes =i5) (48,834) - - (48,834)
- Recognition of new liability = IkEﬂZT#%%T—‘?W"%’K
component upon modification HERTAEDD
of terms of convertible note 43,903 - - 43,903
- Conversion - il (23,182) = = (23,182)
— Exchange adjustments -ERAR - (476) - (476)
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30. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 30. REMEETH2EEZHAERE)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES (Continued)

Convertible  Secured bank Lease
notes borrowings liabilities Total
AHEREE BEMRITEER HEEE k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHAT THT FHT FHET
(Note 24) (Note 25) (Note 26)
GEZD) (KHiE25) (Hi7£26)
At 31 March 2020 202063 A31H 87,701 1,431,740 1,031 1,520,472
Bank borrowings raised SERTER = 617,810 = 617,810
Repayment of bank borrowings BRBITEE = (534,703) = (534,703)
Repayment of lease liabilities EEHEAE - = (2,451) (2,451)
Interest paid FRFE (3,865) (33,453) (95) (37,413)
83,836 1,481,394 (1,515) 1,563,715
Non-cash changes: FReEE
- Interest expense on convertible - AR ERZFE
notes 53 18,393 - - 18,393
- Interest expense on bank - RITERZAERAX
borrowings - 33,453 - 33,453
- Interest expense on lease liabilites -~ FEBE 2 FIEFHE% - - 95 95
— Derecognition of original liability — B AR Z R R
component upon modification BRI BAREE
of terms of convertible notes B (69,304) - - (69,304)
= Recognition of new liability — B AR E R R
component upon modification KERTEEDS
of terms of convertible notes 55,510 - - 55,510
~ Derecogpnition of original -REBORREEE
liability component upon early BB iR 4R TR
redemption (30,271) - - (30,271)
- New leases entered/lease - FRI A A ERR
modified (note 15) (Ht5E15) - - 7,341 7,341
- Exchange adjustments -ERAR - 86 - 86

At 31 March 2021 R20214F3H31H 58,164 1,614,933 5,921 1,579,018
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31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

(@)

31. FEE

AERG BEXS

Save as disclosed in the consolidated financial statements, @ BREEVEHRREEIN  F
during the year, the Group had the following transactions with A AEBEKERBR 2 2E W
wholly-owned subsidiaries of Easyknit International: BRARIBUTZRS :

2021 2020

HK$°000 HK$’000

FBT FHET

Consultancy fee A& 801 -

Building management fee AEERE 420 420

Interest expense on lease liabilities HEBGBEZAMERX 93 83
The Group rented certain of its office premises from Easyknit NEERKEBEBRFAM T 35 9F
International. At 31 March 2021, lease liabilities in respect of NE o R2021F3A31H » REF
the lease contracts renewed in the current year amounted to BEEHNERAEAHNEE
HK$5,871,000 (2020: HK$1,031,000) and refundable rental & 1&/45,871,0007% 7T (20204 :
deposits paid (included in “trade and other receivables” line item) 1,031,000/ 7T) + BRI ATRE
amounted to HK$416,000 (2020: HK$416,000). Heke(BEEIBES REAM
FEWGRITE B #) £416,000%8 7T

(2020%F : 416,000/ 7T) °

Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, a director of the Company, also holds 21.20% ARRESTEERL LI MABE
(2020: 19.09%) equity interest of Easyknit International through EBMAENERERBEXERERZ
an entity wholly-owned by her. 21.2%(2020%F : 19.09%) IHE °
Details of the convertible notes issued to Easyknit International, (o) EEITHKEBRR Z T EIREEN

are set out in note 24(b), (c) and (d). During the year, the interests
on these convertible notes are as follows:

SFIBEEM E24(b) © (c)FI(d)F 5]
oo FR - LR ERE S A F
BN ¢

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000

FBT FHET

Accretion of interest MEZBARIEE 12,966 9,183
Interest paid BRFLE 3,257 2,069
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31.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

()

31.

AERE/BERS (@)

Compensation of key management personnel ) EEBABZHMN
The remuneration of executive directors and other members of WTESREMEIZEEBAER
key management during the year was as follows: FRAZHMESAT :
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FBT FHT
Short-term employee benefits mEEERA
Salaries and other benefits e kEMBER 13,391 11,492
Contributions to retirement benefits BIREAE B
schemes 128 72
13,519 11,564
The remuneration of directors and key executives are determined EERTETRABZEME DR
by the remuneration committee and executive directors, HEFMEE S RATESIRRE
respectively, having regard to the performance of individuals and MALTZRBARMSBEME
market trends. JE °
In January 2011, the Company entered into an employment @ HR2011F1A - ARRIEEEK

agreement with Mr. Koon Wing Yee, the spouse of Ms. Lui
Yuk Chu, to act as general manager of the Company. The
employment agreement, which constitutes a connected
transaction, commenced on 21 February 2011 but may
be terminated by either party at any time by three months’
notice. The monthly salary has been adjusted a few times to
HK$350,000 with effect from 1 April 2019. The remuneration of
Mr. Koon Wing Yee as general manager of the Company during
the year ended 31 March 2021 was HK$4,550,000 (2020:
HK$4,550,000) and was included in the “compensation of key
management personnel” in (c) above. Details of share options
of the Company granted to Mr. Koon Wing Yee are set out in (e)
below.

In November 2020, the Company entered into an employment
agreement with Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy, the daughter of Ms.
Lui Yuk Chu, to act as a senior special advisor of the Company.
The employment agreement, which constitutes a connected
transaction, commenced on 25 November 2020 but may be
terminated by either party at any time by three months’ notice.
The monthly salary is HK$20,000 with effect from 25 November
2020. The remuneration of Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy as a senior
special advisor of the Company during the year ended 31 March
2021 was HK$84,000 (2020: nil).

ZLTZRBEKBEERLE
AtE  EREAAANABK
B 2B —EHRERSZIRA
WaEm2011F2A21 ALK - 2
AREMESERERER—F
BY=-EABRMMAKL - FA
FEED TERAEEHR2019
F4 518 #4350,0008 7T ° &
Z2021F3A31HILEFANE K
EREEBARBBEE 2
% 54,550,000 7T (20204 :
4,550,000 7T) R E BB £
CEZITEEBAE ZHH
AN BEARRARERTFTBEXRELE
BRE 2 FIEHIINA T ()E -

2020511 A - ARRIEEEIK
ZEMLAREAIMREZ LETEAR
e EEAQT S RERE
B ZEARZEXEHNRS
R2020F 11 B25H BIMA AR -
B — A RTRE R IR AT =18 A
BA I - 82020511 A25H
A © A% A20,00087C ° B
AIfRZ Lt REE202143A318
LIEFEEFEARRD 7= R4S B AR
/) %M &84,0005% 7T (20204 -
) o
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©

As set out in note 29, share options granted to directors of the
Company and their close relatives are as follows:

e P BHmRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &£ 202143 A31H I F &
3. BEALIRE BEXS(E)
e) WAMIFE20PTHEL - BEARIER AR

BZEERAETBENOT

Number of share options

BREHE
Outstanding at Outstanding at
1 April Expired during 31 March
2019 the year 2020
R20194 A20205F
4718 #gR REREIE 3831 B #ig
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHET THET
Directors )
Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim BB R 11,300,000 (11,300,000) =
Lui Yuk Chu EEK 11,300,000 (11,300,000) -
22,600,000 (22,600,000) -
Employees (==
Koon Wing Yee, the spouse Bk ' & bk 2 /B
of Lui Yuk Chu 11,300,000 (11,300,000) -
Ku Wai Ming, a cousin of ~ H{&RH + EEHRZKRH
Lui Yuk Chu 11,300,000 (11,300,000) -
22,600,000 (22,600,000) 5
45,200,000 (45,200,000) -

No equity-settled share-based payment expenses were

recognised in both years.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group received rental ()
income totalling HK$288,000 (2020: HK$288,000) from certain

close relatives of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu.

NREEEHERRAAESEE
ZBRMZNER -

HZE2021F3A31HILFER -

AEBMUNMEERLLTZET
2 e U A ££288,000/8 7T
(20204 : 288,000/ 7T) °

On 18 January 2021, the Group completed the disposal of (@ H2021F1818H + AN&EE A

its entire 100% equity interest in a subsidiary, Lion Capital
Investment Limited (“Lion Capital”), for a cash consideration of
USD1 (equivalent to HK$7.8) (see note 35((a)) to Mr. Koon Chun
Ting, the son of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu. Lion Capital has been acting
as a trustee for the Company in relation to certain listed equity
securities. During the year ended 31 March 2021, Lion Capital
has charged the Company commission fee of USD385,000
(equivalent to HK$2,982,000) from 18 January 2021 to 31 March

2021.

ET(HER7.SBT)MESR
B SR B H A KB A RlLion
Capital Investment Limited ([ Lion
Capital]) # 2 #6100% A% # (5Bt
H)35(() FEERLLEZTE
B3E LA » Lion Capital—E #
FARAREF ETRAEFA
FEEA o HLE2021F3A31H IE
£E - Lion Capital@ AR &
W E 202141 A18 A 2021
3 A31H385,000% 7t (&
2,982,000/ 7T) K& ©
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32.

33.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balances.
The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts, which includes
convertible notes and secured bank borrowings disclosed in notes
24 and 25, respectively, net of cash and cash equivalents and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital
and other reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a regular
basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the cost of capital
and the risks associated with the capital. Based on recommendations
of the directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through new share issues and raising or repayment of bank borrowings
and other debts.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

32.

33.

RN

—
B

=g

AEBHEEABITEENBRAE
EETERIEERELE  B2BR
BERBEAREHREBRETEm AR
RFERBHZAOR - REHZERE
RSB BEFERSTE -

AEBZEARBREERFHE &
B BRI L 24 R 2581 58 2 AT
REERERMRTEE - T5HRE
RERRS KB HITHRA - REf
wm A R B AR R R B

vy
Pas
m ©

ARBPEETEHMBRIERNRE - 5R
BN -y EEZEEARAR
EAMMREERR - REEFNES
AEERGEBBETHRMREEHER
RITEEREMER - A FEREE
KRR -

TRIA

a.  Categories of financial instruments a. S®EMITEZEHR
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FBT FHT
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at FVTPL AT EFABZ 2 EMEE 144,585 84,094
Debt instruments at FVTOCI BAFEFAEMEZEREZ
EBTA 36,113 36,151
Amortised cost (including cash and BHERAN(RERE R
cash equivalents) ERRE)
- Trade and other receivables - B 5 MEMmEKIE 3,758 9,699
— Loans receivable - B ER 130,179 329,969
- Bank balances and cash - RITER KBRS 112,260 357,767
426,895 817,680
Financial liabilities A=l
Amortised cost SRR
— Trade and other payables - B 5 REMENKIE 64,390 49,546
— Convertible notes - AR R 58,164 87,701
— Secured bank borrowings - BHEMRTEE 1,514,933 1,431,740

1,637,487 1,668,987
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b.
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Financial risk management objectives and policies b.
The Group’s major financial instruments include financial
assets at FVTPL, debt instruments at FVTOCI, trade and other
receivables, loans receivable, bank balances and cash, trade
and other payables, convertible notes, secured bank borrowings
and lease liabilities. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure that appropriate measures
are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

) Currency risk

The carrying amount of the group entities’ foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at

TRIAE)

BMERAREEREEREE
AEEZIZRMTIEBERA
FEAABRGZEREE  BAQ
FEFARBEEKE ZERT
B BH5MEMEWIR - B
B BB=EARMZRTE
Ko RITHEHERE  HHRE
M RIA - ATMRER - K
MRTEELEERE - 252
BT A ZFHEDWENERME
N ZELBMT AT KRR
R In{A] P AR 5% 5 [ B 2 R SR 8 51
T e EREERREEZER
B AR ORSE By N2 B RO SR EUE &
R

5@k
)  EBEEER

R EHR - SASNEFIE
ZEBERIEREEY

the end of the reporting period is as follows: BREEWT :
Liabilities Assets

af& BE
2021 2020 2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT FHET FHET
USD against HKD ELRBTT = = 28,892 15,329
RMB against HKD ARBHET - - 35 33
USD against SGD EITHITIE T 30,665 51,895 44,082 48,542

Sensitivity analysis BURRE DT

The Group is mainly exposed to the exchange rate risk on
USD against SGD for the foreign currency denominated
monetary assets and monetary liabilities.

Under the pegged exchange rate system, the financial
impact on exchange difference between HKD and USD
will be immaterial, and therefore no sensitivity analysis has

been prepared.

REBBINEDIE 2B
BEREBARZELR
X ERERERTILIM
BT R -

HREREZGE - BT
HEXTIERERZ PR
BUYTEKR - #ULRER
HERE DT °
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

()

Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5%
increase and decrease in USD against SGD. Sensitivity
rate of 5% is used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary and adjusts their translation at the end of the
reporting period for a 5% change in foreign currency rates.
The sensitivity analysis represents the debt instruments
at FVTOCI, and financial assets at FVTPL and secured
bank borrowings where the denominations are in USD. A
positive number below indicates a decrease in post-tax
loss where USD strengthen 5% against SGD. For a 5%
weakening of USD against SGD, there would be an equal
and opposite impact on the post-tax loss.

33. E@MITE(E)

b. MBEKREEREBERBEE

15 /2 b (4)

()

B (#)

BURE DT (48)
TRFMIE T AREY
SETT I AN T FHE AR
TE5% M GREE  MEB[A
TEEBEABRSEIE
[ B - £ P 5% HY B =%
B REEEEHAEN
EXRBH TG - GURE
DITEBREREENINE
FHERY - WAERSHR
HEHME - AR INEE
KEH5% ° GRED T
KRR RXFEF AR
PHEHBEZEFTA &
AFEFABRZEBE
E - BEARITERIAR
AT REMARITE
#he TEMEHRRRER
TUH T N T ES%
HREBRRD o RZETT
R M TR E5% » Al
BHRREBEELEREM
BROFE -

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHET

(Increase) decrease in post-tax loss B > (8 n) (671) 168

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis reflects
the exposure at the year end, but not the exposure during
the year.

The amounts of the RMB denominated monetary assets
of the group entities are not material. In management’s
opinion, the financial impact on exchange difference
between HKD and RMB will be immaterial, and therefore
no sensitivity analysis has been prepared.

ERERS  BRERESN
REREZFEABER - M
PRIREANER -

SEEBAARKEFER
ENEEMNSRITE
R BEERR  SHE
TTEARE 2 HRE R =
HOMBEETK - Bt
RETHUREDH -
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

U

(i)

Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy to eliminate the currency exposures.
However, the management monitors the related foreign
currency exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposures should the need
arise.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s primary cash flow interest rate risk relates
to its principal protected deposits which are classified as
financial assets at FVTPL and secured bank borrowings.
The interest rates and terms of repayment of the secured
bank borrowings of the Group are disclosed in note
25. The Group is also exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to certain financial assets at FVTPL, debt
instruments at FVTOCI, bank balances, fixed-rate loans
receivable, convertible notes and lease liabilities. The
Group has not used any derivative contracts to hedge
its exposure to such interest rate risk, however, the
management monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider other necessary action when significant interest
rate exposure is anticipated.

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk on financial
liabilities is detailed in the liquidity risk management
section of this note. The Group’s cash flow interest rate
risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of HIBOR
and LIBOR arising from secured bank borrowings.

33. TRMITAE

b. MBEREEREBERBEGE

45 L ()

() EEERRGE
FRE T (B
7 g2 [ 35 B 3 45 0 M 4

(i)

BEOEGREERR - A
M EEEeETEEN
B 2 SN LB B 18 2 A
BERERRBAINEER
EITE M o

T 7

AEBNEERSREAR
REBERANTRERH -
BETRESBEARAF
Bt \BHZERMEER
BEMBITER - AEH
BIEMEBITEREOF R F
ERIEHEN 25+ #
B ANEBEMmMES T
AEEFABREZEHE
B UAFEFAEMLE
ErEKEMNERIA
RITRES - EURE T FIR
B TmBREENEE
BEZFERER - NEH
WAREREALITES DL
SREHEH R ERE A
- ERESEEFER
% WHEBHEEEAF
ERKBKEEREIEM
MBI o

AEBENEREA R ZH=X
RERERAME 2 RBE
SRREE AL
AEB RS RENXME
BEBRE BB EAIRT
BEZEBRTAERR
BKE
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Total interest revenue/income from financial assets that
are measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI is as
follows:

33.

TRMIAGE

b. MBEKREEREBERBEE

i

(i)

5 (&)

FIE 2 2 (4)

RE K AR A FER
AR EEERAEZE
BB E P B WE A
BT

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FiET FHET
Interest revenue F B U
Financial assets at amortised cost ~ ZEEKX AT E 2 EMEE 18,944 19,540
Other income H A
Financial assets at amortised cost ~ HE AT E 2 £ MEE 1,166 4,557
Financial assets at FVTOCI BAFEFAEEEmKRE
ZEREE 2,151 2,416
Total interest income 1 F) B A 22,261 26,513
Sensitivity analysis BRRE DT

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for non-derivative
instruments as referred to above at the end of the
reporting period and the stipulated change taking place
at the beginning of the financial year and held constant
throughout the reporting period. A 50 basis points (2020:
50 basis points) increase or decrease is used when
reporting interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of
the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

AT 8RR EARER
VA P 3t 5 Sk 5 B R 3 9F
PTETAZFRRRE R
FERRBZOERE
NBERARERTE

EEE - 50fEE %2 (2020
F : SOfEEAEE) HE Nk
BAOEARMEZEEA
8 YRR IE 3R & & B KA
REHEEFAENEZ A8

ARET -
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

If interest rates had been 50 basis points (2020: 50 basis
points) higher or lower for its variable rate borrowings
and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s
post-tax loss for the year ended 31 March 2021
would increase/decrease by HK$6,324,000 (2020:
HK$5,976,000).

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analyses are
unrepresentative of the inherent interest rate risk as the
year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during
the year.

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to other price risk through its
investments in listed equity and debt securities, equity
linked notes and bullion linked note. The management
manages this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with different risks. The Group’s price risk
is mainly concentrated on listed equity instruments and
listed debt investments at FVTOCI quoted in the Stock
Exchange or an overseas recognised stock exchange of
issuers operating in property investment and development
and banking and finance industry sector. In addition, the
Group has appointed a special team to monitor the price
risk and will consider hedging the risk exposure should
the need arise.

33. TRMITAE

b. MBEREEREBERBEE

45 3 (4)
@) FIEmEREE
SREIT ()

(i)

WEEAFEFABEZ
EEEBEZFESRRE
F501E E %25 (2020 = 50
B2 i T A E b B
F2021F3A3ALEFE
ZFiE BB M,
6,324,000/ 7T (20204 -
5,976,000 7T) °

EBERE  ABEED
i e R KRB X[
% B FIR R R b R
FRRR -

E M (ETE AR
BRRER EHRARE
BES  BREHBRER
B HBREE  AEEX
XEMEBRRR - EEE
BERFATRRRZRE
HAENEEZER - A&
EERRBREIZEPR
BRAREZ LHRAT
B BRAFESABRZ
EHEBREREATE
FPARMEEKREZ EH
BERRE  EBTARE
MERERER - B
BB HBEXEBR
RITREBITE « WIN
AEBECHEA— R EX
VA BS (B AR B M A8 & 8
EREFHTZAR -
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Other price risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risk at the reporting
date.

If the prices of the listed equity instruments (including
equity securities and perpetual bonds) have been 5%
(2020: 5%) higher/lower, post-tax loss for the year
ended 31 March 2021 would decrease/increase by
HK$4,433,000 (2020: HK$3,078,000) as a result of the
changes in fair value of listed equity instruments.

If the prices of the listed debt instruments at FVTOCI
have been 5% (2020: 5%) higher/lower, investment
revaluation reserve for the year ended 31 March 2021
would increase/decrease by HK$1,806,000 (2020:
HK$1,808,000) as a result of the changes in fair value of
listed debt instruments at FVTOCI.

In the managements’ opinion, the financial impact on price
risk of equity-linked notes and bullion-linked notes will be
immaterial, and therefore no sensitivity analysis has been
prepared.

33. E@MITE(E)

b. MBEKREEREBERBEE

45 B (4E)
(i) EAERSE R A
WREE DT

BAT SR 5 1 R AR I
s BEBARE 2 RAE
R -

M EMRATEBIK(E
FERAEFH R KAEF)
EF T PE5% (20204 ¢
5%) * M 2202143 A
S1AIEFEZREEIE
BERETRATIAZA
FEZ MR D18 m
4,433,000/ 7t (20204F :
3,078,000/ 7T) °

MR A EFAEMEE
Wz EHERTEER
EF T PE5% (20204 ¢
5%) * M E202153 A
S1ALLFEZRESHE
EESRE A EF AR
fthEERE 2 FMEBST
B2 AT EES ML M,
841,806,000 7T (2020
4 : 1,808,000/ 7T) °

EEERS REHAR
BEREcHAREHE
RERNFBZELTE
R R EREEERED
#r o
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 March 2021 and 2020, the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due
to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties are
primarily attributable to trade receivables, lease receivables,
loans receivable, other receivables, bank balances and debt
instruments at FVTOCI. The Group does not hold any collateral
or other credit enhancements to cover its credit risk associated
with its financial assets, except that the credit risks associated
with loans receivable is mitigated because they are secured over
guaranteed money, marketable securities or properties.

Except for financial assets at FVTPL, the Group performed
impairment assessment for financial assets under ECL model.
Information about the Group’s credit risk management,
maximum credit risk exposures and the related impairment
assessment, if applicable, are summarised as below:

33. TRMITAE

b.

B E S EE R EREE @

1S ER R EF L

M202143H31H K202043 A
318 AEEFEEEYEF A
KEBTEAMESZHBKIBLRN
BAEERREERAENESHE
WzoE - HERKREIE - ERE
o HEAbEURGRIE « SRITA B
BRAFEF AR MbEEEEZH
EHTHE - AEBEWESFH MR
e H M EE IR REH  A
BEHOREERBEERR
HEREWEFEEEERRER
% FRAEEANRES L
MEH R EIEEA

BRAFERABRGE . EBEE
S REBERERBEEEHEE
AEEREEETT T RIERE °
FRAEEEERRER &KX
EERRBERZAEBEN G
GERMERRENT
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 33. &I A
b.  Financial risk management objectives and policies b. HHEREERZERBEEKGE)
(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) 1= B 7 b2 K Bt B 7712 (4B)
The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment for the TEESREECNIBEERR
Group’s financial assets comprises the following categories: AR BIEA TR

Financial assets other than

Internal credit rating Description Trade and lease receivables trade and lease receivables
tREE
AEEETR 5 BERAERKHE (FEEESREERRHE)
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default ~ Lifetime ECL - 12m ECL
and does not have any past-due amounts not credit-impaired
ER8R RHUFAENERELTREMASET REBNNEHEEEE - 12MEAEHEEER
B WEEEEERE
Medium risk Debtor frequently repays after due date Lifetime ECL - 12m ECL
not credit-impaired
R BEABERBBAARER BEANNEREERE - R EARREEER
WEEEEERE
High risk There have been significant increases in Lifetime ECL = Lifetime ECL =
credit risk since initial recognition through not credit-impaired not credit-impaired
information developed internally or external
resources
SRR BRABERNERSNBRBEERR BEBANEREEEE - BEEANRBEEEE -
BER WEEEEERE WEHEEEERE
AR B AIE 1 A0
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is Lifetime ECL = Lifetime ECL =
credit-impaired credit-impaired credit-impaired
BR BERBRAAENRESAE REANNEREERE - BEARANRBEERE -
BEREEERE ERAFERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor ~ Amount is written off Amount is written off

is in severe financial difficulty and the Group
has no realistic prospect of recovery

HisH FRBETESARAREMBRE -~ SBMHE SEME
SEAR B E A



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P BHmRME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #{Z=20214F3A31H It F &

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The table below details the credit risk exposures of the Group’s
financial assets, which are subject to ECL assessment:

SWWEEERAT - 2021 F3R

33. E@MITE(E)

b.

BBEREEBERBK ()

1= E/m e R E AL ()

TREFIAEE S REERIEE
HEEBEFENEERRF

15 :
External Internal Loss
Notes  credit rating creditrating  12m or lifetime ECL raterange  Gross carrying amount
128 AR EEEBN
Wi MBEETR RABEETR  RHEEER BAZEE BREE
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER ThL
Debt instruments at FVTOCI
RATEF AR MR ENRE 2
BBIA
Investments in listed bonds 18 Caal to Ba2 (2020: N/A 12m ECL 0.52% to 37,598 39,801
(note (if) B1 to Ba2)() 6.12%
itz R & (k) CaalZEBa2 (2020F T 128 AT 0.52%%
B1%Ba2)() EEER 6.12%
Financial assets at amortised
cost
RESHASIE 2 SREE
Loans receivable 17 N/A Low risk 12m ECL 4% t0 9% 85,102 345,742
ERER TR BER 12f8ATEH 4%Z9%
BEEE
N/A Loss Life time ECL - 65% t0 82% 106,535 -
credit impaired
TER B# EIEBHN 65%%82%
BEREEEE-
BRXE
Trade receivables from contracts 20 N/A (i) Lifetime ECL - N/A 302 364
with customer not credit impaired
BEFRE A ARMEN TER EEBHN FER
BRREEHE-
FERXE
Lease receivables 20 N/A (i) Lifetime ECL - N/A 2,319 2,447
not credit impaired
HERKHIE TER EEBHN FER
BEEEHE-
FERXE
Other receivables 20 N/A (i) 12m ECL N/A 3,456 9,335
E TER 12fEATEH TR
REEE
Bank balances 22 Prime =2 to A1 N/A 12m ECL N/A 112,202 357,716
(2020: Prime =2 to
Al)
FiTHs EE-2EA TEA 12fEATEH TER
(2000% : HER EEBR

-2 ZA)
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33.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

33. E@MITE(E)

Financial risk management objectives and policies b. HM¥EREEEEZEREEGE

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

1= B R R B EEF 1 ()

Notes: P 3E

i) For the purpose of ECL assessment, the Group estimates with [0] REHEEBBRIEMS - 8%
reference to external credit rating and forward-looking information that SNERAE B AT A N 30 B RE M E A
is available without undue cost or effort. & - REBEBGEE -

(ii) For the purpose of ECL assessment, the Group considers the gross (ii) RIEHEEEETENE - A%
principal amount and the related contractual interests of the debt EEEEBILANASRBER
instruments. As at 31 March 2021, the gross principal amount of these HHREM A DS - 202143 A
debt instruments amounted to HK$38,812,000 (2020: HK$38,720,000). 31H ' ZEBBEIANAE L

#438,812,0007 7T (20204 :
38,720,000%7T) °
(iii For the purpose of internal credit impairment, the Group considers (il RASEERENS @ AEEZE

if there is any past due record or other relevant information available
without undue cost or effort to assess whether credit risk has increased

significantly since initial recognition.

Debt instruments at FVTOC!

The Group assesses the credit risk of investments in debt
securities at the reporting date. The Group’s debt instruments at
FVTOCI mainly comprise listed bonds that are graded by credit-
rating agencies as per globally understood definitions and some
bonds without external credit rating are assessed by internal

credit ratings.

BREAEMANES S BAL
ERALENTE2 A AARA
RIS & AR A EH AR 2
BEREAEN -

BERFEGARMEE K E
BKITA

REERREBRTHEBIES
BENEERR - AEEIEZAT
Bt \Ett2Eks BB TR
FTEREHEATRHBERES
KIRMRH)E R ETI RN ETE
7 - —HERBINRE ARTARME
%A@ iB N A AR RETTRT

fly ©
12m ECL
128 BFEERE B k18
HK$'000
FHT
At 1 April 2019 R2019F4/81H 181
Changes due to debt instruments at FVTOCI BAREATE AR MEE R E 2 B
recognised as at 1 April 2019 TAMNEHHN20195F4 A1 B ER
— Upon redemption - FE Ok (36)
— Net remeasurement of ECL - BHEEEE 2 FER (13)
New bonds purchased HEHES 505
At 31 March 2020 72020438318 637
Changes due to debt instruments at FVTOCI AREATEF AR ME2ERE 2 B
recognised as at 31 March 2020 T AMEHN2020F3 A31 B fER
- Upon redemption - B R (466)
- Net remeasurement of ECL - TEHEEEBFER 108
New bonds purchased BEHES 413

At 31 March 2021

M202143H31H 692
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Loans receivable

The Group has concentration of credit risk in relation to loans
receivable, amounting to HK$130,179,000 at 31 March 2021
(2020: HK$329,969,000), from a few borrowers with 55%
(2020: 34%) of the balance secured by guaranteed money of
HK$10,000,000 (2020: HK$10,000,000), marketable securities
with fair values of approximately HK$61,725,000 (2020:
HK$63,307,000) or properties with estimated fair values of
HK$25,370,000 (2020: HK$29,409,000). There have not been
any significant changes in the quality of the collateral held for
the loans receivable. In addition, the unsecured loans receivable
as at 31 March 2021 amounting to HK$36,377,000 (2020:
HK$148,719,000) are with personal guarantee. The largest
borrower of the Group by itself accounted for approximately 10%
(2020: 14%) of the Group’s loans receivable at 31 March 2021.
The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
loans receivable to minimise credit risk. The management has
a credit policy in place and the exposures to the credit risk are
monitored on an ongoing basis. Impairment allowances on
outstanding loans receivable are determined by an evaluation
of financial background, financial condition and historical
settlement records, including past due rates and default rates,
of the borrowers and relevant information from public domain at
the end of each reporting period. The borrowers are assigned
different grading under internal credit ratings to calculate the
ECL, taking into consideration of the estimates of expected cash
shortfalls which are driven by estimates of possibility of default
and the amount and timing of cash flows that are expected from
foreclosure on the collaterals (if any) less the costs of obtaining
and selling the collaterals.

EHMIAGE

BBEREEBERBEK(E

=B R R B EEF 1 ()

FEWE

AEEBEARKBELBER
AR202153A831B2¢8E A
130,179,000 7T (20204 :
329,969,000/ T) 2 E W E 3
ZEFEERK  HF55%
(20204 : 34%) 2 HEERE
$10,000,000/8 7T (20204 :
10,000,000 L) « EM&EH
ZAFELXE61,725,000%
7L (20204 : 63,307,000/
T EZHFTRAFENR
25,370,000 7T (20204
29,409,000 7T) © FE W E FIK
HRMEERFEERE L - I
Hh + 202143 A31H 2 B
FEUE 3K 48 5836,377,000/5 70
(20204 : 148,719,000/ 7T) &
BAER - EREE - XEH
ZERANERARFHNERER
202143 H31 B 2 FEW B =4
10%(2020%F : 14%) - AEE S
KRR E R BN E ZCE TR
Rl LR EEERR - EEE
HIEEERR I EEREER
B o BB EERARSRE S
ReMBESR Mk RBE
B BIEEEIE REHX
RAHERABE - BEEARE
BERKERZBERE - SHEXR
ARBARIEETRES B TR
B ERATEEREERE
WHEE BIEHR SRR Z (EaT
THIRIR A 5T 49,2 7 g2 14 I 78 A7
ERDUIEBEZ RS RN ERE
(A )R A ERE ki EEH G
LA o
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Loans receivable (Continued)

Included in the gross amount of loans receivables are
HK$106,535,000 due from a borrower and other individuals
(with personal guarantee from that borrower). During the year
ended 31 March 2021, the management assessed taking into
account the relevant information from public domain such
balances became credit-impaired and has taken various actions
to recover the balances. At the end of the reporting period, the
management has requested the borrowers to make settlements
before maturity dates of the loans and total settlements of
HK$22,855,000 were received from the borrowers subsequent
to the end of the reporting period. For the remaining balances,
an accumulated impairment loss of HK$59,058,000 was
recognised at 31 March 2021.

Trade and lease receivables and other receivables

No allowance for impairment was made since the directors of
the Company consider that the probability of default is minimal
after assessing the counterparties’ financial background and
creditability.

Bank deposits and bank balances

No allowance for impairment was made since the directors of
the Company consider that the probability of default is negligible
as such amounts are receivable from or placed in banks with
good reputation.

33.

TRMIAGE

b.

PR EE R EREEE

1= B/ fe R 6 (E 51 ()

FEWE ()

BB SR 48 B R B 3E R URAE A
MEAEA (B ERARAER)
#7106,535,000/5 7T ° & 22021
FIANALFE  BEEZR
AHEFEFHHBBE ST EZRELS
HREFEFEARE - LERNE
TBITEN IR Bl 4% © RIREHAR -
EEECERBRALERSIH
HANEME  WAREHRESRE
KA R E| 4858 /722,855,000
TLREE c R T EH - BER
202163 A31 BERE TR AL
859,058,000/ 7T °

HSRHEERAMBEWNE
RAERZEFORBERRE
R - WRAEHRERBEA
ARAEERREOHXGD -

RITEHRIRITAERR
WRABELRERBEARRE
ERRBOBEMARBAENZ
SELBENUBMBXTFRREEE
ZIRIT e
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33. E@MITE(E)

Financial risk management objectives and policies b. H¥EKREEBZREEGE
(Continued)
Liquidity risk THEE SRR
In the management of liquidity risk, the Group monitors and RS EeRBEEmMS A&
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate BN AEEEIEER AR K
by the management to finance the Group’s operations. The FEr7HRSNRERRSIINMERER
management monitors the utilisation of borrowings and ensures DIREFRE o EIEEEIEE 7
compliance with loan covenants. B) A I R HL 38 ST B AR o
As at 31 March 2021, the Group has available unutilised bank MN2021FE3A31H » K&EH
loan facilities of HK$392,256,000 (2020: HK$193,663,000). EAHBABLTEREE A
392,256,000/ jT (20204 :
193,663,000/ 7T) °
The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual TRFAWNAREFBZSHEBEZR
maturity for its financial liabilities. The table has been drawn AU EEREARE o Ih 3 JhiRANE
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities BRI ES A k=
based on the earliest date on which the Group can be required SRBEFRFTRBEESREY R
to pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. ERNEENNERAESHEERE °
Liquidity table TEESFK
On More than
demandor 3 months but Total
Effective  less than less than undiscounted  Carrying
interestrate 3 months 1year  1-2years  2-5years Over5years cash flows amount
BEXS BiB3fEA KBRS
EBAZE  DR3ER BHME 1-26 5% BBSE REAE REE
%  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
AL TAL TAL TAR TAL TAL TAL
2021 021
Non-derivative financial ~~ 3EfTE £ BB E
liabilities
Trade and other BAREMERE
payables - 55,227 9,163 = = = 64,390 64,390
Convertible notes THREE 21.32 28,371 = o 72,800 = 101,171 58,164
Secured bank EERETEE
borrowings 1.95 90,077 366,699 679,284 351,130 77,677 1,564,867 1,514,933
Lease liabilities HEAE 218 637 1,910 2,496 1,040 = 6,083 5,921
174,312 371,172 681,780 424,970 77,677 1,736,511 1,643,408
2020 2020%
Non- derivative financial ~ FFiTA 2B A (E
liabilities
Trade and other B HREMERNTE
payables - 49,546 - - - - 49,546 49,546
Convertible notes TAREE 22,91 69,538 - - 72,100 - 141,638 87,701
Secured bank BERROEE
borrowings 3.05 370,092 42,158 382,256 672,963 51,452 1,518921 1,431,740
Lease liabilities HEBR 355 624 416 - - - 1,040 1,081
489,800 42,574 382,256 745,063 51,452 1,711,145 1,570,018
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33.

c* Fair value

(i

by wAk: Y R WA HEE

Rttt

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 33. LRI A
c A¥E
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are () AEERELEMEEEZ
measured at fair value on a recurring basis AFEFSEZEHMEEZ
o FE
Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured at MOXREB ZERMEER
fair value at the end of the reporting period. The Board WEHKIZAFENE
has delegated the valuation work to the management to EEgR BHEIEEZT
determine the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs HKEERE  LIEEAFEE
for fair value measurements. FTEREE A ERITAE
N ¢
In estimating the fair value, the Group uses market- EEFAFER  NEE
observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level RABEE A MG AT E R
1 inputs are not available, the Group engages third B o WEEESE —LH
party qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The ABE  AEBZEE=
management works closely with the qualified external HABWRGEEMETH
valuers to establish the appropriate valuation techniques - BEEHREERINGD
and inputs to the model. The management reports the HEMBEESE  UEZL
findings to the directors of the Company regularly to BENGERNEEL @
explain the cause of fluctuations in the fair value. ANE - EEEEHRAEAAR
RAIESWMERATHER U
BEATERBNRA -
The following table gives information about how the TR A B8 & F 5%
fair values of these financial assets are determined (in EoRMEELATFAELE
particular, the valuation techniques and key inputs used). =T 2 A E RN R A
) -
Fair value Valuation techniques and
Financial assets Fair value at 31 March hierarchy key inputs Significant unobservable inputs
SREE W3R B2 ATE NTERE  GERGREABE EXFTBEZHA
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
Tan TAR
Debt instruments at FVTOCI
BRATEFARB2EREZ
BHIE
- Listed debt securities 36,113 36,151 Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active market ~ N/A
LERES F1R REBTSPARME &R
Financial assets at FVTPL
BOTETABGZEREE
- Listed equity securities 84,616 39,606 Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active market ~ N/A
EmRAES 18 RERMHTARMLE TER
- Perpetual bonds 4,048 21,951 Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active market ~ N/A
XAEH E18 RERTSPARME @R
= Principal protected 21.34 2623 Level3 Discounted cash flows = future cash Potential retum rate of 1.00% to
deposits flows are estimated based on 3.00% (2020: 1.40% to 3.41%)
exchange rate of USD against HKD per annum
and expected yields of the
instruments
RAEH £330 FRRSRE -RAXALRENEE  BERAEXEF1.00%Z3.00%

(20204 : 1.40%%3.41%)
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 33. E@MITE(E)
c.  Fair value (Continued) c. AFEGE

() FEBREEEMHEER

() Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are ol A
U & AVEHEZSBEE

measured at fair value on a recurring basis (Continued)

AFEGE)

Fair value Valuation techniques and
Financial assets Fair value at 31 March hierarchy key inputs Significant unobservable inputs
SRHEE R3ASIAZATE LRERE  HERGREAZE EXTUBEZHA
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
TAR THL
=~ Convertible note - 9,050 Level3 Binomial Option Pricing Model Volatility of 75.68% at 31 March 2020
BEes 230 “EABETERE R202053A31 R B %75.68%
= Investment funds 11,511 10,964  Level3 Discounted cash flows  future cash Weighted average cost of capital
flows are estimated at 8.61% (2020: 7.29%)
REES £3k FRRSNE -HARRENERTT  METHESKABH1%
fiat (2020% : 7.29%)
- Bullion-linked note: 3,921 - Level? Based on fair value of underlying assets ~ N/A
which are substantially derived from
level 1 input and fixed interest rate
SHRENTE 228 ERREZ BB NEREEATER TER
EEf®
- Equity-inked notes 7,059 = Level2 Based on fair value of underlying assets ~ N/A
which are substantially derived from
level 1 input
REBRE ol ERREZRBAEBEEATE  FEA
= Investment in limited 12,089 - Level3 Net asset value quoted from Net asset value of the underlying
partnership fund manager investments
ARARRE £33 EeRBENEELE RERANEESE

A slight increase in the weighted average cost of capital
used in isolation would result in a slight decrease in the
fair value measurement of the investment funds, and vice
versa.

A slight increase in the potential return rate and volatility
used in isolation would result in a slight increase in the fair
value measurement of the principal protected deposits
and convertible note, and vice versa.

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 in both
years.

B 0 AT B A
AR B A 3 00 4 28 R
ARG ATENERE T
B B2 IR -

B8 YB {0 A 0 A2 1 SR 2R A
RED M B B IR NS F BUR
SREFRM AT EIRE R
A ERTERAEM -
[R2IREA »

MEFEIRBEIH
F2RREIR 2 HENE
%o
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 33. LRI A
c. Fair value (Continued) c. NFE (8)
(i) Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements (i)  FE3RA-FEEHE IR
Principal Investment in
protected  Convertible  Investment limited
deposits note funds  partnership Total
RAER  TRREE REES BERE¥RE %
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHT TR TR TR
At 1 April 2019 R2019F4 518 25,800 9,891 10,245 - 45,936
Purchases BE 99,240 - 11,216 - 110,456
Interest received BT & (756) (867) (553) - (2,176)
Realised fair value gain REZEARRZES
recognised in profit or loss BRTE - - 453 - 453
Unrealised fair value gain RERABRZRE
recognised in profit or loss BATEESR) Y = 26 508 = 534
Settlements e (120,601) - (10,218) - (130819)
Exchange adjustments X AR (1,160) - (687) - (1,847)
At 31 March 2020 R2020%F3A31H 2,523 9,050 10,964 - 22,537
Purchases BE 78,072 - 11,401 - 89,473
Reclassified from other REMERESNDE
receivables - - - 13,204 13,204
Interest received BUF B (547) (668) (533) = (1,748)
Realised fair value gain RERAERZEE
recognised in profit or loss BRFE 547 1,618 647 o 2,812
Unrealised fair value loss RERABRZRE
recognised in profit or loss BAVERAE - - @) (1,078) (1,085)
Settlements BE (60,015) (10,000) (11,851) - (81,866)
Exchange adjustments i i AR 761 - 890 (37) 1,614
At 31 March 2021 202163 /431H 21,341 - 11,511 12,089 44,94




SWWEEERAT - 2021 F3R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R M R

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #{Z=20214F3A31H It F &

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

C.

Fair value (Continued)

(iii)  Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
that are not measured at fair value on a recurring
basis
Except for the convertible notes issued, the directors
of the Company consider that the carrying amounts
of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate to their fair values.

At 31 March 2021, fair value of liability component of
the convertible notes issued by the Company, which is
recognised at amortised cost of HK$58,164,000 (2020:
HK$87,701,000) (note 24), was HK$60,364,000 (2020:
HK$99,328,000). The fair value is determined using
Trinomial Option Pricing Model at Level 3.

34. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES THROUGH
ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(@

On 6 April 2020, the Group entered into a conditional sale
and purchase agreement with an independent third party for
the Group’s acquisition of the entire issued share capital and
shareholder loan of Nice Able for an aggregate consideration of
HK$89,116,000.

The principal assets of Nice Able are property purchase
agreements, which were signed on 25 March 2020, entered into
by Nice Able for the acquisition of some units in two blocks of
buildings with respective owners and a provisional agreement,
which was signed on 25 March 2020, for the acquisition of the
entire issued share capital and shareholder loan of Success Mark
for an aggregate consideration of HK$58,000,000. The date
of completion of acquisition of Success Mark is 22 July 2020,
where the Group is responsible for the payment for completion.
Success Mark is the registered owner of a unit in one block of
the buildings.

The Group plans to acquire the remaining units and demolishes
these two buildings in Hong Kong and redevelop the combined
sites. Details of these transactions are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 6 April 2020 and circular dated 21 May
2020.

On 22 June 2020, the Group completed the acquisition of Nice
Able and the shareholder’s loan of Nice Able. The shareholder’s
loan was eliminated in full on consolidation.

33. TRMITAE

C.

D HE ()

(i) RERBEFEMEERR
FlETEZEHEERT
HEEZAFE
BREHRTHAIRERRE
S RRREFRS R
A M MR R HKA
JIRMEREERERA
AR EREL A FER
%=,

MR2021F3A31H ' AR
AIBITH I RBREENE
& 210 B A F B (R 8 85
A HE 258,164,000/ 7T
(20204F : 87,701,000
7T) (Ff 5 24) 60,364,000
B (2020 4%

99,328,000/ 7T) ° AF
BERESFEIRFEHA=EA
HARE T (BAEAURETE /Y ©

34. FRBWBHBLAAUWBEERER

(@)

MN2020F4 860 AEFHE
BYE=—FARAEENBRE
89,116,000/ 7T U & Nice Ablez
EEHEBITRARBEERE L
B EE RS -

Nice Able” & Z & & ANice Able
202053 H25H R HREER
ABUEEMIEZEY 2 B T B
RT3 2 B& I 19 3% 20204 3 A
25H 7] 32 LA %8 X {858,000,0007%
TCUK B B I 8 BT R B B TR AR
MR EZ 2 M o UiEIE
WM E R TR B # /5202047 A
22H - MAEETF B ERTKE
TR o BRI E Ty — B EE
Mz — BB 2 ELHEBA °

NEE B W BB T AL IR
MIERE B ZEYMIEREH
- BEAZSERHZHBIR
AAFBH A2020F486H 2
NN B HIA202095 8218 2

M20205E6 228 © AEBEE R
B U B Nice Able & Nice Ablez
BRER - BRRERREHES
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34. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES THROUGH 34. FEBWEBHEARKWBEERAERE
ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) (#&)
(@)  (Continued) @ (&
The net assets acquired at the date of acquisition were as REEBNE 2 FEEBN
follows: Ik
22 June
6H22H
2020
HK$’000
FAT
Deposits paid for acquisition of properties held for WL EREYE
development for sale BffiEe 89,116
Net assets acquired Frik g 2 FEE 89,116
Cash outflow on acquisition: WhEZRBeRmE
Consideration paid BRARE (89,116)
On 22 July 2020, Nice Able completed the acquisition of some 7202097 A22H + Nice AblelA
units in two blocks of buildings with respective owners for an REINR S R 1B 151,750,000 7T
additional cash consideration of HK$151,750,000 and completed MMEEF 2B EMSaHE
the acquisition of Success Mark and the shareholder’s loan of AWEETEAMN - Wik KEEIB
Success Mark. The shareholder’s loan was eliminated in full on WA RIERZRRER © RER
consolidation. BREEHR2FEIEE -
The net assets of acquired at the date of acquisition were as RUEE B BB WS 2 FEEE N
follows: Ik
22 July
7822H
2020
HK$’000
FBT
Properties held for development for sale RIEHEBRRME 58,135
Other receivables EAth U R 1
Other payables E b FERR 97)
Tax payable FERHIE (39)
Net assets acquired kg FEE 58,000
Cash outflow on acquisition: WiE 2 BB e R

Consideration paid BEfRE (58,000)
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34. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES THROUGH
ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(@)

(Continued)

The Group elected to apply the optional concentration test for
the acquisitions of Nice Able and Success Mark in accordance
with HKFRS 3 and concluded that:

(@  The land and building components of each unit, together
with the in-place leases, are considered a single
identifiable asset; and

(o)  The group of units in two blocks of buildings is a group of
similar identifiable assets because the assets are similar in
nature and risks associated with managing and creating
outputs are not significantly different.

Consequently, the Group determined that substantially all of the
fair value of the gross assets acquired is concentrated in a group
of similar identifiable assets and concluded that the acquired set
of activities and assets is not a business.

On 17 November 2020, the Group entered into a conditional
sale and purchase agreement with an independent third party
for the Group’s acquisition of the entire issued share capital
and shareholder loan of Upway International for an aggregate
consideration of HK$45,000,000. Top Lead, the wholly-owned
subsidiary of Upway International, is the registered owner of
a unit in Fung Wah Factorial Building (“Fung Wah Properties”)
located in Kowloon.

On 25 November 2020, the Group completed the acquisition
of Upway International and Top Lead (collectively the “Upway
International Group”) and the shareholder’s loan. The
shareholder’s loan was eliminated in full on consolidation. Upon
completion, the Group owns 29 units representing approximately
93.33% of the undivided shares of the building.

34.

ERWENBARWBEERER

(&
@ @

REBERB(CERBY RS LD
F 35 E 1 E U Nice AbleAIE
WmRE RN SR ERR
WS H AT 455

@  BEEAA LAY E K
DR IE G KR B E A
BRIEE : A

b) MEREEDHHBELE AR
FHMALEE  ARELEEN
A0 B EEEMAEE R
MR EREER -

Hit » AEERTEMKENEE
ENRTFEEER L 2HEHE
—HBLRTRNEEST - L5
Hasw - TR — R FEEH
BEDZIAER -

(b) M2020F11A178 » "EFEH
BYE=HIVBEKHEEEH
% ' LA {845,000,000/% st Uk
BELRERZZ2HBBITRAR
REER - £ LAB 2 2EH B
ARHERERMNANELET
BMAE(LEYE]) —EEMH
A A

R2020411 H250 » NEER
B ¥ BB R A B B (578
[MELBERER]) RREERD
IR - REEFREHIEZEIR
o RHTEME - AEBEEHF29
BEEAL + KEZEEY TR 5 E
3 93.33% °
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34. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES THROUGH 34.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(b)  (Continued)

The net assets acquired at the date of acquisition were as

ZRWENBARWBEERER

(&)

REERE  BRBNEERE

follows: U
25 November 2020
2020511 A25H
HK$’000
T
Properties held for development for sale RIELHERRYME 45,000
Trade and other receivables B 5 R EH MUK 16
Other payables E bR (231)
Tax payable FERTFRIE 91)
Net assets acquired WilE 2 BEFE 44,694
Net cash outflow on acquisition: B 2 ISR
Consideration paid BERRE (45,000)
Net settlement received on receivables and payables BB W GRFN B 2
HEFEE 306
(44,694)

The Group elected to apply the optional concentration test for

the acquisitions of Upway International Group in accordance with
HKFRS 3 and concluded that the land and building components
of one unit, together with the in-place lease, are considered a

single identifiable asset.

Consequently, the Group determined that substantially all of the
fair value of the gross assets acquired is concentrated in that
unit and concluded that the acquired set of activities and assets

is not a business.

AEEEZREEBYBREE
B 55357 ¥ = E BRR & B 10 W B
FERE RSP EAR - WSH
HEwm— EE AL T RS
By BEMMWEE  HWRA—
HE—HWAIHREE -

B - RS [ R R AT B 1 B
AT PrA AT EEEDERH
B WISHAR - PIREm—
RIEBMEETE —IRET -
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34. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES THROUGH

34. FRWBHBLAAUWBEERER

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) (4&)

() On 9 July 2019, the Group entered into a conditional sale () H2019%F7H9E ' A& EEF
and purchase agreement with an independent third party for VE=ZHFUEFDITLBE G
the Group’s acquisition of the entire issued share capital and BEWZE @ A AEBEWHEEXtra
shareholder loan of Extra Glory Limited ("Extra Glory") for an Glory Limited([Extra Gloryl) £y &
aggregate consideration of HK$153,833,000. HEBITRARKRER - K

{8 /158,833,000 7T °
On 23 September 2019, the Group completed the acquisition of R2019F9H23H + AEETK
Extra Glory and the shareholder loan. The shareholder loan was U BEExtra Glory R R E 3K »
eliminated in full on consolidation. REFREEEE TREERK -
The net assets acquired at the date of acquisition were as RERE  BRENEEFE
follows: 1w
23 September 2019
201998 23H
HK$’000
FAET
Deposits paid for acquisition of properties held for BERELEEEYME
development for sale Bftize 153,833
Net assets acquired WiiE 2 BEFE 153,833
Cash outflow on acquisition: g 2 B E R
Consideration paid BEfRE (153,833)

On 10 October 2019, Extra Glory completed the acquisition of
all units in two blocks of buildings with respective owners for an
additional cash consideration of HK$290,500,000.

R20194E105108 - Extra Glory
4290,500,0007% 7T H S8 SNR &
REZTKES B EFTRERER
FHFTA BAL -
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34. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES THROUGH
ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(d)

In October 2019, the Group completed the acquisition of 100%
equity interest in Real Supreme Limited ("Real Supreme"), Jumbo
Rainbow Limited ("Jumbo Rainbow") and Silver Prosper Holdings
Limited ("Silver Prosper") (collectively the "Real Supreme
Group"), and their respective shareholder loans in form of a step
acquisition for a total cash consideration of HK$347,000,000.
The shareholder loans were eliminated in full on consolidation.

The net assets acquired at the date of acquisition were as
follows:

34. FBWBHBLAAUWBEERER

(&)

©)

R2019F 1078 + A& @I
BHXWHENE R - TR
Real Supreme Limited ([Real
Supreme]) * Jumbo Rainbow
Limited ([Jumbo Rainbow) % &
BREBAERAA(NERE]100%
%4 (& 7% ([Real Supremet=E])
REZEHNRRER  £ReR
{8 /4347,000,000/8 7T ° A B
23 7T IRERE R -

Wiz H  BREBENEEEN
TS @

October 2019

20194108

HK$’000

T

Property, plant and equipment L E N 47

Properties held for development for sale FRIELHERRME 347,809

Trade and other receivables B 5 R H MUK 67

Bank balances and cash RITHEBRIAS 5

Other payables E bR (928)

Net assets acquired Wil 2 FEE 347,000
Net cash outflow on acquisition: I B e 2 IS MR ¢

Consideration paid EXHRE (347,000)

Bank balances and cash acquired WEEHSRITAE SR IR & 5

(346,995)

The principal assets of Extra Glory (see note (34(c)) are
provisional agreements entered into by Extra Glory for the
acquisition of all units in two blocks of buildings with respective
owners. The sole asset of Real Supreme is a provisional
agreement for the acquisition of all the issued share capital in
and loan to Jumbo Rainbow (including its subsidiary, Silver
Prosper) which is the registered owner of all units in two blocks
of buildings. The Group plans to demolish these four buildings in
Hong Kong and redevelop the combined sites. Details of these
transactions are set out in the Company’s announcement dated
10 July 2019 and circular dated 6 September 2019.

Extra Gloryf = Z & & (R M5
(34(a)) ZExtra Gloryzs z] Y Fa A%
e ARESaEFIRER
FEEEY T A BN - Real
SupremefIE—EEEZ A K
Fabs i - WeBEJumbo Rainbow
WATE B EITRAME R (B
HFRARERE - ZARIEMEE
FHABEMMNEMES) - A%
Eit B EBAFRENEET
WEFREEHENEF - BE
REMFBRARARAG A A
2019F 7 A10BMAMMBE A
201959 A6 H K@ KA -
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35. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 35.

(@)

On 18 January 2021, the Group completed the disposal of its
entire 100% equity interest in a subsidiary, Lion Capital, for a
cash consideration of USD1 (equivalent to HK$7.8).

The net assets of Lion Capital at the date of disposal were as
follows:

HEMRB AT
@@ M2021F1818H @ A&EE®

AR SR E1ET(HESERT.8
BIL) HEERKE QR Lion
Capital#) 2 35100% % 1 K& i% 3=

& Z HLion Capital®)/F & EWN
T

18 January 2021
2021%F1H18H
HK$’'000
F&T
Bank balances IRITHERR 77
Other payables H i R R (77)
Net assets disposed of/gain on disposal of subsidiaries i & & EF%8,
HE B A ml s -
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEMEENRESRAFE :
Cash consideration received WEZReRE -
Bank balances disposed HERITHER (77)
(77)

On 23 August 2019, the Group completed the disposal of its
entire 100% equity interest in a subsidiary, Empire Sail Limited
("Empire Sail"), and shareholder loan for a cash consideration of
HK$361,600,000. The principal assets of Empire Sail and its sole
subsidiary (collectively the "Empire Sail Group") are investment
properties in Hong Kong.

M2019F8A230 + AEE R
X JAZR & R B 361,600,000/ 7T
i & E KB 2 AlEmpire Sail
Limited(TEmpire Saill) #) & &b
100% & # R AR E 5K - Empire
Sail R HME— B AR (51 A
[Empire SalfEB M EFZEER
REBZIZEME
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35. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(0)

(Continued)

35. HEMWBAEEE)

()

The net assets of the Empire Sail Group at the date of disposal

€))

i & ~ B Empire Sailt=EH)HFE

were as follows: EWT :
23 August 2019
201948 H23H
HK$'000
T
Assets classified as held for sale — investment properties 18 A {EHE 2 EE
- REMHE 304,000
Deposits paid and prepayments [EEREERIEINEN 89
Rental deposits received WS ES (603)
Shareholder’s loan RRE R (226,184)
Net assets disposed of P& & EF58 77,302
Net gain on disposal: & 2 e F 5
Consideration received Bz RE 361,600
Net assets disposed of HELEFH (77,302)
Transfer of shareholder’s loan BRI R E R (226,184)
Transfer of rental deposits EEANZRS (603)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMRBAR W 57,511
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEMEAMNIRSRAFRE
Cash consideration received B ZHENRE 361,600
Settlement of rental deposits AR stE (603)

360,997
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS 36. EEEM
At the end of the reporting period, the following assets of the Group RBERR  AEEERTIEET
were pledged to banks to secure credit facilities granted to the Group: RITIERERIETFTAEEZEESE
B

2021 2020

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHT FET

Investment properties L& 925,967 925,149

Properties held for development for sale FEHERRERYE 2,754,027 2,441,200

3,679,994 3,366,349

In addition, rentals in respect of the above investment properties and
future sale proceeds and rentals in respect of the above properties held
for development for sale were also pledged to these banks.

o - IR EMER S R EiFE
HEZRMEARZHEEMFFEAR

T TR T IR1T o

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 37. RERNZH

The Group as lessor AEEERSHBAA
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET T
Property rental income earned during the year & RBRELZ 2 & WA 45,276 47,694
Less: Outgoings AR (3,057) (3,695)
Net rental income He WA FE 42,219 43,999

All of the properties held for rental purposes have committed lessees
for one year to nine years (2020: one to ten years) from the end of the
reporting period without termination options granted to tenants.

Undiscounted lease payments receivable on leases are as follows:

R|EHR - MERAREEZMEY
ERABRAAE —FENF (20205 ¢
—FE1F) BRMEPRTRILE

B

HA R 2 REBLNRAT

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHT

Within one year —FR 52,407 41,145
In the second year E_F 29,952 28,75
In the third year F=F 12,171 14,824
In the fourth year Euiks 8,196 9,379
In the fifth year FRE 5,181 6,055
After five years hF& 7,878 32,260
115,785 127,398
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38.

39.

COMMITMENTS 38. RiE
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Capital expenditure contracted for but EETAE B AR R ERE B ISR P
not provided in the consolidated financial BEZARA @R
statements in respect of
- investment properties —1REME 441 408
— interest in limited partnership (note) —BRAEE A A#ER (M) 25,795 33,483
26,236 33,891
Note: PRE -
The amount at 31 March 2021 represented US$3.3 million (equivalent to 7202143 4318 Z £ ¥1§3,300,000% 7T (HHE
HK$25,795,000) (2020: US$4.29 million (equivalent to HK$33,483,000)) for subscription 725,795,000/ 7T) (20204 : 4,290,0003 T :
for interest in the Limited Partnership as a limited partner. The purpose of the Limited 18 E 783,483,000 L) ARNEBERAEE A
Partnership is primarily achieving capital appreciation and participation through REBREB AT - ARAEEAAZEN
investments in equity and equity-related securities in Asia-Pacific and Europe and FEABREALERSHAD A KBUMBRAR K
portfolio funds with a similar investment focus. The business of the Limited Partnership RAEEEFRERRESHERAUZEER
will be conducted and managed by one single general partner (the “General Partner”) - BRABLATINEBHHE —BLEBEEA
who will act as agent of the Limited Partnership while the investment committee of the [EREBANKERER - LBABABES
Limited Partnership (comprising individuals who are not connected with the Group) BEREBRANRIEA - MEREZRAINIE
shall decide and approve all investment and divestment decisions of the Limited & 7z 8 (F B 7 5% B 00 A B s 1) 1B A ZEL B IR AR
Partnership with reference to the investment objective. The limited partners of the REBBEREREEARELHNKRENBER
limited partnership, including the Group, shall take no part in the operation of the E o RIBLBERAZTHRE  TAHERE
Limited partnership on the management or conduct of the business and affairs except BRABIZAREBABERAEE)NME2EAR
with the written consent of the General Partner. Details of this transaction are set out in ERNABRERESIFAREBREH LS -
the Company’s announcements dated 27 March 2019 and 10 May 2019. RS2 HBEHNARRE AL A2019963A27H K
201955 410 WA °
RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES 39. RIREFRFHE

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. Under the MPF
Scheme, the employees are required to contribute 5% of their monthly
salaries or up to a maximum of HK$1,500 and they can choose to
make additional contributions. The employer’'s monthly contributions
are calculated at 5% of the employee’s monthly salaries or up to a
maximum of HK$1,500 (the “mandatory contributions”). The employees
are entitled to 100% of the employer’s mandatory contributions upon
their retirement at the age of 65, death or total incapacity.

Employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC are members of the state-
sponsored pension scheme operated by the PRC government. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage of their
payroll to the pension scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to the pension scheme is to make the
required contributions.

AREHERBERBRHMEREE S F

Bl R R AT RK
BASBRHERH ) - NEHESH

ZT EEERESAFSERS%K
?%E1&mﬁn'ﬁﬁkaﬁﬁﬁ
%’MM cBEBAEFABIEREEZ
B# $E+§1;i\a"%\5%_y,i§i%%1 500
5’57‘5(@%”’\!{{#%@) 1R B 655 Rk
B LT RARITAE AR - 7]
ZHEERHFIERRZ100% °

KRBz B AR ZEES AP BEEA
’““"Z.ZﬁﬁﬁﬂLWﬁ? sHEIRKE - K
BRARARFETADLMERS
*JrilH,\T KEHZBEEERBRNK
SRIBUEHFTARE 2 R -
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES (Continued)

There were no forfeited contributions utilised to offset employers’
contributions for the year. The employers’ contributions which have
been dealt with in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income were as follows:

39. RKBEAETEE

AEE AL F R WA A EE 8
ETHF - ENGERBRaERkEMBEER
BmRPEEZREHKWT

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Employers’ contributions recognised in RiBz PR 2B E MR
profit or loss 381 357

At the end of the reporting period, there were no forfeited contributions
available to reduce the contributions payable in the future years.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2021
and 31 March 2020 are as follows:

K& R - R B R A A
AR AR K FE 2 BRI o

40. EEZWBARZFFE

R20219F3 931 H &202043H31H -
ARBETBEMBAB ZFHBMT :

Nominal value of issued Proportion of nominal
Place of incorporation/ share capital/paid-up value of issued share
establishment and registered capital/ capital/paid-up registered
Name of subsidiary operation stated capital capital held by the Company  Principal activities
BRITRE/ VS|
BRmRE/ BREIRA/HR
WEARER HMRY/RUREERE  BRRAEE afRAEER AL TEER
2021 2020
Directly held:
EERE
Fanju Investments Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Investment in securities
(‘BVI")/Hong Kong
REREERAT ABANES/BR LaRIET ErRE
Glory Link Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Investment in securities
ARRERRAT] &b LaRIET EARE
Indlirectly held:
FERE
Capital Well (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$1 100% 100%  Property investment
EN(ER)BRAR ik LRRIBT nERE
Chancemore Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Property investment
REBAREE/BR LaRIET NERE
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40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 40. FEMB QTR ZF15EE)

Place of incorporation/

Nominal value of issued
share capital/paid-up

Proportion of nominal
value of issued share

establishment and registered capital/ capital/paid-up registered
Name of subsidiary operation stated capital capital held by the Company  Principal activities
BRARE/ NG
BREMBER/ BRIRA/HR
WEARER EMAL/ RIREEHSE  BPRARE EMRAEERSL TEER
2021 2020
Indliectly held: (Continued)
FERE  (8)
City China International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Loan financing
HHERERAR Eh LRk ERRE
Clever Wise Holdings Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Property investment
BEARERAR RBRAREE/BR LERIET nERE
Daily Leader Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Property development
ABRELEE/BR LERIET NELR
Excellent East Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property investment
BEERAR Bk LRRIET NERE
Extra Glory Limited Anguilla/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Property development
ZEN /B LaRET NEER
Gainever Corporation Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Investment in securities
KEBFRAR % LakoAT BrRE
Giant East Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property investment
ERERAA Bl LERIBT NERE
Goldchamp International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100% 100%  Property investment
trEERARAA &k EiRA%10,000%E T NERE
Golden Top Properties Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Property investment
REEXERAT ik LiaRoA T NERE
Grow Well Profits Limited BVI/Singapore Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Property investment
and investment in
securities
RBRLBES/ MK EERIET NEREREFRE
Janson Properties Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Property investment
EBEXERAT Y LiaRoA T NERE
Main Lucky Enterprises Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS1 100% 100%  Property development
BRbEARAR B LRRIET NERR
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PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 40. TEMBERARZFEGE)
Nominal value of issued Proportion of nominal
Place of incorporation/ share capital/paid-up value of issued share
establishment and registered capital/ capital/paid-up registered
Name of subsidiary operation stated capital capital held by the Company  Principal activities
BRAREK/ NG
BREMBER/ BRIRA/ R
WEARERE EMAL/ RIREEHSE  BPRARE EMRAEEEAL TEER
2021 2020

Indiirectly held: (Continued)
F#RE  (8)

Nice Able BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% - Property development
REBARES/BR LaRIET NEER
Real Supreme Limited Anguilla/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Property development
ZEN /B LaRIET NEER
Silver Prosper Holdings Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property development
REEEERAT £k TaRIET NELR
Success Mark Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% = Property development
B E &b LaRIAT NELR
Top Channel Enterprises Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property investment
BHEEBRDA Bk LTaRIET NERE
Top Lead Investment Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% - Property development
HERE ik TaRIET NELR
Treasure Arts International BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Property development
Group Limited
ZHERERERAR ABRERES/BR LaRIET NELR
Wealth Plan Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property development
FEZERBRLA 3 LARIET NEER
Wellmake Investments Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$9,998 (Non-voting 100% 100%  Property investment
deferred shares HK$2")
BLREBRAA Bk LidiRo,008 B (EREHR MERS
EER2AETY
(Easyknit Enterprises (Huzhou) PRC Registered US$25,544,206 100% 100%  Property investment
Co., Ltd.) (‘Enterprises Huzhou”)™
XEREMMBRAR G S iR A25,544,206% T NERE
* The non-voting deferred shares of Wellmake Investments Limited carry no * BRI ERRAFZ EIRERIETERE
rights to receive notice of, attend or vote at any general meeting and have very BEBRERBRRAEZBE - HEIR
limited rights to participate in a distribution of profits and, on liquidation, to the AEEERE - BEAFZERENES
repayment of the amount paid up on the shares. A & - BB RE - BREIEHRGD
e - I
* Enterprises Huzhou is a wholly foreign owned enterprise established in the * MMEZRR —HERPBK L ZHNEERE
PRC, to be operated for 50 years up to 14 December 2054. ¥ KEHAS0F - EE20545F 128
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40.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company, which, in the
opinion of the directors of the Company, principally affected the results
of the year or constituted a substantial portion of the assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors of the Company result in particulars of excessive length.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other subsidiaries
that are not material to the Group. Majority of these subsidiaries
operate in Hong Kong. The principal activities of these subsidiaries are

40.

FTEMBRE 2FHE @

REARRAEEZER - ERAIITR
ZARBMBAR  REEZEAR
FEZEBEIBRASEEETE
Mo REARANEZTZERIILE
M BARZFBASEERBRIT
o

RIBEHR - ARFHEEME AL
EmMErrREEZMBLRE - %
MEBARABONEEEE - WEH

summarised as follows: BARZ EEXBHEAT
Principal activity Principal place of business Number of subsidiaries
FEXEK FTEEEME ML R E

2021 2020
Investment holding Hong Kong 28 26
BB BB
Inactive Hong Kong 7 7
JER IR )
Inactive PRC 2 2
IEEER P

37 35

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at 31 March
2021 or 31 March 2020.

BAEM B QR N202143831H 8
20203831 A BT MESES -
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EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD

The following significant events took place subsequent to 31 March

2021:

(@)

On 1 March 2021, the Group has successfully bid of Nos. 93
and 95 Catchick Street (“Catchick Properties”) located in Hong
Kong under the public auction held by the Land Tribunal. The
Group owns approximately 95.83% of the Catchick Properties
before the auction. The consideration for the acquisition of the
remaining unit to be paid by the Group is HK$5,446,000. At 31
March 2021, an aggregate sum of deposits paid to the vendors
amounted to HK$10,000,000, which is included in “trade and
other receivables” in the consolidated statement of financial
position. The acquisition of the remaining unit was completed
on 1 April 2021 and the remaining balance has been refunded
to the Group on 7 April 2021. Details of the transaction are set
out in the Company’s circular dated 3 December 2020 and
announcement dated 1 March 2021.

The Group is the registered owner of more than 80% of the
undivided shares of Fung Wah Properties which is situated in
Kowloon. In September 2019, the Company filed an application
to the Lands Tribunal for an order to sell all the undivided shares
of Fung Wah Properties (including those owned by the Group) for
the purposes of the redevelopment of the Fung Wah Properties
site, with the intention to bid in a public auction and acquire
all remaining portions of Fung Wah Properties. An ordinary
resolution at a special general meeting held on 19 February 2021
was passed to approve the possible disposal of all portions of
the Fung Wah Properties now owned by the Group (if the Group
is not successful in the auction). On 1 March 2021, a hearing
was held by the Lands Tribunal. After the hearing on 29 April
2021, the Lands Tribunal has concluded on the decision for an
order for sale of Fung Wah Properties by public auction with
reserve price of HK$800,000,000. On 23 June 2021, the Group
was the successful bidder at the auction and completion for the
acquisition of the remaining units of the Fung Wah Properties is
scheduled on or before 23 July 2021. Details of the transaction
are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 23 June
2021.

4. R{EPREBEE

ATEXREHFEANR2021F3A31HZ

% :

(@)

R2021FE3A18 » AEBER+
B ERITHAFRMBE K
BN AN B A EEHI3% K95
FAHEEWED - RIBER - K&
SEERSTEYHEA95.83%H)
o AEEESMREHRTE
iz 2 K18 55,446,000/ 7T ° K
20214F3A31H ' EXfIF¥&E A
H)42 & 4858 /10,000,000 7T *
WEFASREVBRAIEIE S
R H A FENFRIE ] o Tk B ALY
IWEE B MR2021F4 B1HZMK »
BHEDR2021F4A7HRER
AEE - XRHFABHRAQAAR
HA 42020512 A3EMEE L A
B A2021F3R1HMAMA ©

AEBRBMRNENLDEYE
80% LA AT 53 B (5 8w B F R
A A o 201998 » AR EH
THBRERERLEMEE
EVE(REAEEEENIBH)
MR DEDRE - WEFERE
EYEMM  BEEAFRAESF
FRAR 0 U IR L EE Y R BT AR
B8 o R2021F2 A19H £1THY
BREFRAE LRBT —HER
RER - UETREREEBIR
HmAMMAYEYEILSHG (MR
SEREEEHREFRKT) - 2021
F3A1H  THEHERTE
e R20214F4 B29AMEA
& THIEEBRELIRE @ AR
FAHEA L ELEYE KB
800,000,000 7T ° 120214
6H23H '+ REBINNBEK
BRIEE - WEER2021F7A
23R 3 2 B STk UR B L ZE ) S
TEBL - RGFIFRHNARFH
#152021F6 A23HHBER °
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41.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD
(Continued)

()

Pursuant to the joint announcement issued by Easyknit
International and the Company on 11 February 2021, a voluntary
conditional cash offer was made by Easyknit International to
acquire all the issued shares of the Company at share offer price
of HK$0.50 per share. The cash offer was closed on 21 April
2021. At date of approval of consolidated financial statements,
Easyknit International held approximately 74.76% of the issued
share capital of the Company. The Company has become a
subsidiary of Easyknit International subsequent to the end of the
reporting period.

On 5 November 2020, the Company and Easyknit International
entered into a sale and purchase agreement, pursuant to
which, among other things, Easyknit International conditionally
agreed to purchase, and the Company conditionally agreed
to sell, the entire issued shares of Above Ace Limited (“Above
Ace”) and Success Edge Limited (“Success Edge”), wholly-
owned subsidiaries of the Company, of which the major
assets are properties held for development for sale. And the
Company agreed to procure the assignment of sale loans
to Easyknit International, at an aggregate consideration of
HK$1,100,000,000 (subject to adjustments).

On 30 April 2021, Easyknit International and the Company
entered into a termination agreement, which they agreed
to terminate the sale and purchase agreement. Pursuant
to it, amongst other things, the Company shall refund the
deposit received of HK$10,000,000 (see note 23) to Easyknit
International. The amount has been refunded on 14 May 2021.

41.

HE

HR1ZETE (F)
IR 45 ok 2= BIBR B2 K A B 7R 2021

F2R11BEEHEES QM K
ZEBRETHRELEBKRERSK
8 - AERA%150.507 TTH R (5
KWEEWBAARMACET
fxfh o IWEHEER 202164 A 21
H&R  REUEGHMB®RERZ
B kEBEBRFERAAEET
BRAKIT74.76% ° sk 3 Bl &9 Fft
BAT -

2020611 A5H + R A Ek
ZEBRETERGE  EF -
KEBEBREGRGREREE Lt
2HEBITRN  ARBBK
HRELE L2 PE BT
R - RARMWEZEKRB R
A)Above Ace Limited([Above
Acel) & Success Edge Limited
(lSuccess Edgel) * EXE%&
ERFEEREEME - XATA
AERERKAIKEREREREER
X #R{E”1,100,000,0007%
TT(EHE) -

2021F4A30R + kEFHEEAK
RAEFIURIEHE  CFTRE
RIEEE WM - RIEZ = (K
FEE)  ARRARB KRG
410,000,000 7t (R M 5£23)
RERKERE - ZSEER
2021F5 14 RIE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R M R

For the year ended 31 March 2021 & £202143A31HILFE

42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 42. RNQ B ZB#EARRER

2021 2020
HK$°000 HK$’000
FiET FHET
Non-current assets IEMENEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE KK 336 912
Interests in subsidiaries and RETE A RS R
amounts due from subsidiaries NG/ C ] 3,148,732 2,617,847
3,149,068 2,618,759
Current assets MENEE
Other receivables o Ath pE W R TE 182 306
Financial assets at fair value through BATEFABZZEREE
profit or loss 14,702 -
Bank balances RITHEERR 66,558 35,049
81,442 B5¥3585)
Current liabilities MBEE
Other payables H fth FE 1~ 308 11,754 962
Convertible notes ARSI 13,417 45,431
25,171 46,393
Net current assets (liabilities) RBEEBERBFE 56,271 (11,038)
Total assets less current liabilities REERTBAG 3,205,339 2,607,721
Non-current liabilities FERBEE
Deferred tax liabilities RERIBAE 15,343 8,270
Convertible note AR ER 44,747 42,270
60,090 50,540
3,145,249 2,657,181
Capital and reserves BN R #ERE
Share capital RN 186,291 186,291
Reserves (note) e () 2,958,958 2,370,890
3,145,249 2,657,181
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e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #{Z2021F3A31H It F &

42.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 42. AR T 2R K GE)
(Continued)
Note: B 3E -
Movements of the Company’s reserves during the current and prior years are as ARRZRENFARBEFEZEBNT
follows:
Convertible
note Share
Share equity Capital  Contributed options  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve surplus reserve  (losses) profits Total
TRREE 23t
RIVRE BRfRE R HARH  BREGRE (FB)FE ek
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TARL FEL FHL TAL TEL FhT FEL
At 1 April 2019 #2019 F4A18 2,076,148 56,646 53,194 261,126 1,257 (201,275) 2,247,096
Loss and total comprehensive expense  ESERAFE 2 ARS8
for the year - - - - - (168844) (168,844)
Recognition of equity component of R ARREE 2 BHHK S
convertible notes - 30,213 - - - - 30,213
Deferred tax liability on recognition of ~ HRR AT AR E 1 7 %
equity component of convertible KA EEHERRE
notes - (4,985) - - - - (4,985)
Transfer upon modffication of terms of ~ ERX A ARE FIEF B
convertible note - (48,710) - - - 48,710 -
Deferred tax liabilties released upon XA ARFEKTEHR
modification of terms of convertible  EREFIBR B
note - 6,132 - - - - 6,132
Recognition upon modification of BRARRRE TR
terms of convertible note - 42,456 - - - - 42,456
Deferred tax liability on recognition of B AR B E AT EFRER
equity component upon modification @K 2 EEHBEE
of terms of convertible note - (7,005) - - - - (7,005)
Issue of shares on conversion of HRTRREERETRA
convertible note 38,000 (22,418) - - - - 15,582
Deferred tax liability released upon HRTRREERFREL
conversion of convertible note fEaE - 3,699 - - - - 3,609
Rights issue of shares #iR 206,546 = = = = = 206,546
Transfer upon expiry of share options & IR HE 5 AR 88 4 = = = = (1,257) 1,057 =
At 31 March 2020 1202063 A31R 2,320,694 56,028 53,194 261,126 - (320,152) 2,370,890
Profit and total comprehensive BERAFERENESE
income for the year - - - - - 503,961 503,961
Early redemption of convertble note 12 FBEETHRRESE - (2,065) - - - - (2,065)
Transfer upon early redemption of REBOATAREERER
convertible note - (16,397) - - - 16,397 -
Deferred tax liabilies released upon 1R R BB AR E HE #ik
early redemption of convertible ELFERE
note - 1,730 - - - = 1,730
Transfer upon modification of terms of ~ E KA AR ZHEHE
convertible note o2l = (43,876) = = - 43,876 -
Deferred tax liabiliies released upon ~ EHARREE EHRE
modification of terms of convertiole ~ EEHBEE
note - 4,580 - - - - 4,580
Recognition upon modification of ERMARZEGEHERED
terms of convertible note - 95,643 - - - - 95,643
Deferred tax liability on recognition of B Al AR E R (5B R
equity component upon modification XMz EXHIBRE
of terms of convertible note - (15,781) - - - - (15,781)
At 31 March 2021 2021%3A318 2,320,694 79,862 53,194 261,126 - 244,082 2,958,958
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Financial Summary

MBENBE

RESULTS e

Year ended 31 March
BE=ZA=1+—HLEE

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT FHIT FHT FET
Revenue S 36,518 49,605 62,228 80,682 80,253
(Loss) profit before BREL AT (E518) 5 F
taxation (29,592) 54,608 50,910 (209,657) (190,743)
Taxation IE 2,965 (1,069) (400) 3,465 9,950
(Loss) profit for the year 722 R A% B 15 AR
attributable to owners F 2 (F518) a5
of the Company (26,627) 53,539 50,510 (206,192) (180,793)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE
At 31 March
R=B=+—8
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHT FHET FHET FHET FExT

Total assets BEE 3,407,650 4,011,917 4,034,545 4,602,993 4,613,337

Total liabilities waE (955,497) (1,296,629) (1,300,375) (1,661,124) (1,732,044)

Equity attributable to AN AR A

owners of the Company  ## = 2,452,153 2,715,288 2,734,170 2,941,869 2,881,293

Notes: P 3E

(a) On 1 April 2018, the Group has applied HKFRS 9 "Financial Instruments" and HKFRS (@) MR2018F4A1H » AEBEEAEEVERE
15 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers". Accordingly, certain information for the A FESRIEMIAIRBBMHERE2REAFES
years ended 31 March 2016, 2017 and 2018 which was prepared under HKAS 39 WIBFAHNBAL - At - RIBEB AR
“Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” and HKAS 18 "Revenue" may FEIORIMBIE : BRRIAEZIRBEBGE
not be comparable to the years ended 31 March 2019, 2020 and 2021. RIZE185E [ A IR fl B E 20164 20176 K&

20183 A31 HILFEME T &K al o s
£2019%F + 20204 202143 A31 H L F[Z i
1TEEER -

(o) On 1 April 2019, the Group has applied HKFRS 16 "Leases". Accordingly, certain (o) MR2019F4A10 - ASBEEAE BV KRS
information for the years ended 31 March 2016, 2017, 2018 and 2019 which was ERE16RIHE] - Bt - RIBEBGER
prepared under HKAS 17 "Leases" may not be comparable to the years ended 31 FATHIAE IR AEE20164F « 20174F
March 2020 and 2021. 2018F K% 2019F 3 A31 HILFEME FTER A

BE R B £ 20204 k202143 A31HILFE
L -
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A. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

A. REYE

Approximate
gross floor/

Location 3k Purpose saleable/site area Lease-term
BREgm,
A& EA thEEE MHEHOFEH
(sq.ft.)
(FAR)

1. Ground Floor BERELT Commercial 578 Long
No. 148 Johnston Road L3 [SES KA
Wanchai 14858~
Hong Kong

2. Ground Floor BAEEE Commercial 472 Long
No. 6 Cannon Road =Eg [EES KA
Causeway Bay B5E L T
Hong Kong

3. Sixth Floor BE Industrial 8,608 Medium
Nos. 650-652 FlE I H Ef
Castle Peak Road, and 650-6525% * 61Z &%

No. 18A Wing Hong Street K ERH118A%%
Kowloon

4. Second Floor NE Industrial 2,981  Medium
Nos. 790, 792 and 794 R EE I # Hj
Cheung Sha Wan Road 7905k ~ 7925% K2 7945%

Kowloon 218

5. Unit B on First Floor NBEB ILB64657 - 64857 Industrial 1,910  Medium
Fung Wah Factorial Building R64BASE EBET X RE T HHA
Nos. 646, 648, 648A —B 8B
Castle Peak Road,

Kowloon

6. Roof NBEKEEE205E R A Industrial 2,910 Medium
No. 20 Wing Hong Street T HHA
Kowloon

7. Fifth Floor JLREK BRAT205% 1 Industrial 3,402  Medium
No. 20 Wing Hong Street T A Hf
Kowloon

8.  House 9, Villa Castell RKIHERB205 Residential 1,599  Medium
No. 20 Yau King Lane FRILFESSRFRE *= A

Tai Po
New Territories
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YR E

At 31 March 2021 202143 H31H

Approximate
gross floor/

with a total of twenty building
blocks being built

Location 3k Purpose saleable/site area Lease-term
Wgm,
Az BR/MEEE HOFH
(sq.ft.)
(FAR)
9. Units 1 and 2 on Seventh Floor #1540 B K2 B 800355 Residential 2,086 Medium
Block D and Car Parking Space Y RIEE DR 157 *= HER
No. 46 on Lower Ground Floor 2R Ef RAR[EHh T L
Shatin Heights F465%
No. 8003 Tai Po Road
Shatin
10.  Third Floor EREBBI61R = Residential 781 Medium
No. 161 Wong Nai Chung Road F= h Hj
Hong Kong
11.  Easy Tower, No. 609 NERDE Industrial/ 74,458  Medium
Tai Nan West Street N P 760955 commercial A ER
Cheung Sha Wan KEES T %
Kowloon
12. 15 Ardmore Park #04-03 15 Ardmore Park #04-03 Residential 2,885 Freehold
Singapore 259959 N4 259959 *=E G
13. 15 Ardmore Park # 06-04 15 Ardmore Park #06-04 Residential 2,885  Freehold
Singapore 259959 #7003 259959 F= i)
14. 15 Ardmore Park #18-02 15 Ardmore Park #18-02 Residential 2,885 Freehold
Singapore 259959 #7hn3 259959 *= G|
15.  Anindustrial complex located at — T EFOAREE 208 Industrial 1,805,534  Medium
No. 108 of Dongliang Road, BRI 2 Y T o A
Zhili Town, Wuxing District, AR BT A
Huzhou City, Zhejiang Province SN T SR B A B SR
of the People’s Republic of China TRERBE 10855

223
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First Floor, half share of
Second Floor, Third Floor,
Fourth Floor and Fifth Floor
No. 95 Catchick Street
Kennedy Town

Hong Kong

— =i ERAE

B. PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE B. FHELHEBRERYF
Location bk Purpose Approximate  Lease-term Stage of completion
site area
Jithe BRBEEE BOFH TR
(sa.ft.)
(FAR)
Unit A1, A2, B1, B2, C1, C2 NEFILEG46 Industrial 9,206  Medium For redevelopment
and D on Ground Floor, 648 B4BASE I% b fFER
Unit A, C, D on First Floor, SEIRAE
Unit A, B, C on Second Floor, ﬁﬂrmn; A
UnitA,B,C, DonThid Floor, ~ C2RORML
UntA B, G, Don Fourth Foor, 2 0" DAL
o © ZHA B CEfI-
Unit B, C, D on Fifth Floor, 1A B G DEL -
Unit A, B, C, D with Roof on MigA B C - DEfI -
Sixth Floor TR G DEfL
Fung Wah Factorial Building NEA B C DEfL
Nos. 646, 648, 648A ERA
Castle Peak Road
Kowloon
Wing Cheong Factory Building NERDEENE1215% Industrial 5483  Medium Under development
No. 121 King Lam Street KEIERE I% ] Bl
Cheung Sha Wan
Kowloon
Nos. 11, 13 and 15 BRMEEMBEAEN 13 Commercial 2857 Long Under development
Matheson Street R EES =5 BET
Causeway Bay
Hong Kong
Nos. 1B~ 1E EBBRMMEZTE1B-1ER  Residential 4,940  Long For redevelopment
Davis Street *FE R fEER
Kennedy Town
Hong Kong
Ground Floor to Fifth Floor BREREHHERFHHMLTE  Residential 2,182  Long For redevelopment
No. 93 and Ground Floor nRRSHENT 2 —r K% RH fEEs2
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